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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors
(the “Directors”) of LongiTech Smart Energy
Holding Limited (the “Company”) together with
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), |
hereby present the annual report of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the
“Reporting Period”) to all shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”).
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2021 was the first year of China’s implementation of the “dual carbon”
goal. During the year, the solar power industry in China continued to boom
and has consecutively ranked first in the world in terms of the output of
photovoltaic components, the newly installed capacity of solar power plants
and the total solar installations. Data released by the National Energy
Administration of China shows that as at the end of 2021, China had a total
installed solar power generation capacity of 3,060 gigawatts (GW), and the
newly installed capacity was 54.88GW, representing an increase of 13.9%
year-on-year. Of the newly installed capacity, distributed solar power
generation accounted for over 50% for the first time in history by
contributing 29.28GW or 53.4%. Household solar power generation has
become a main source of distributed power generation with its newly
installed capacity accounting for 21.6GW and making up 39.4% of China’s
newly installed capacity. The newly installed capacity of solar power plants
hit a new record high in 2021 but fell short of industry expectation.
According to the statistics of China Photovoltaic Industry Association, due
to the rising price of silicon (an upstream material), photovoltaic component
prices soared by 22.9% year-on-year and the costs of solar power plant
systems increased by 4% year-on-year in 2021. The willingness of
companies to invest was undermined by the increasingly suppressed
profitability in the solar power plant industry.

Against the backdrop of challenging environment, the Group intensified its
efforts in developing its principal business while safeguarding the well-being
of its staff during the Reporting Period. The Group realised a revenue of
RMB462,642,000 for the Reporting Period, representing a growth of
approximately 16.70% as compared to the same period of last year, which
was attributable to the increased sales revenue from the household solar
power generation system business. Despite such year-on-year increase in
revenue, the Group recorded a loss attributable to owners of the Company
of RMB28,221,000 for the Reporting Period, as compared to the profit
attributable to owners of the Company of RMB1,064,000 for the same
period of last year. This was attributable to the lower gross profit of the
household solar power generation system business as a result of the rising
raw material prices, together with the derecognition of deferred income tax
assets of approximately RMB37,000,000 by the Group for the Reporting
Period.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERME

Moving forward to 2022, the global economy appears to be weaker than
previously thought. Although we see a promising future for development of
renewable energy sources, in particular of solar and wind power, the
business and investment environment continues to be difficult and tough
amid hiking raw material prices under inflation pressure and supply chain
disruption, uncertain pandemic situation with the emergence of new
COVID-19 variants, and heightened geopolitical tensions. In the new fiscal
year, the Group will continue to uphold its fundamental principle of
implementing measures to manage risks, control costs, generate revenue
and achieve steady development, striving to recover the investments it
made. Meanwhile, the Group will further develop its business and grasp
suitable business opportunities to promote sustainable and robust
development of the Group.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | hereby extend my sincere gratitude to all
Shareholders, investors, customers, suppliers and business associates for
their continued support. | would also like to thank all employees for their

tireless efforts and contribution in 2021.

Wei Qiang
Chairman

29 March 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in smart energy business with focus on
the operation of solar power plants (including sales of household solar
power generation systems) and public infrastructure construction business
in relation to the Baoding Donghu public-private partnership (PPP) project.

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a revenue of
RMB462,642,000 (same period of 2020: RMB396,413,000), representing
an increase of approximately 16.7% as compared to the same period of
last year, which was primarily attributable to the growth in sales of the
household solar power generation systems business. Loss attributable to
owners of the Company was RMB28,221,000 (same period of 2020: profit
attributable to owners of the Company of RMB1,064,000). Such turnaround
to loss from profit was primarily attributable to: (1) the lower overall gross
profit margin as a result of the impacts of rising costs of raw materials for
photovoltaic and other factors, albeit the growth in revenue from the
principal operations, in particular of sales of the household solar power
generation systems business; and (2) the derecognition of deferred income
tax assets of approximately RMB37,000,000, which was nil for the same
period of 2020, in view of changes in business environment.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Smart Energy Business

The Group’s smart energy business, positioned as comprehensive energy
services for the user side, mainly serves to meet the demands from
customers in industrial, commercial and residential sectors as well as public
institutions. The Group provides its customers with a full range of smart
energy comprehensive utilisation services based on various energy sources
including electricity, heat and gas by leveraging on its smart energy cloud
platform (the “Cloud Platform”) with proprietary intellectual property rights,
to help customers improve their energy utilisation efficiency and reduce
energy consumption cost, whereby building a diversified, clean and low-
carbon energy supply system.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB & am S AT

The Group works to realise the above business objectives by integrating its
energy systems with internet technology. On one hand, the Group acquires
premium energy assets and projects by expanding its offline business in
comprehensive energy supply such as electricity, heat and gas, and
generates stable operation and investment returns from operating and
managing such assets. On the other hand, the Group uploads the real-time
data of electricity, heat and gas consumption of its industrial and
commercial enterprises and residential users to the Cloud Platform,
integrates and analyses such big data, and taps into the energy
consumption potential of customers, so as to provide them with other full
industrial chain services, including multi- energy complementation of
electricity, heat and gas, smart operation and maintenance, energy trade,
energy efficiency analysis, and consultancy management to energy finance
and energy big data.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s smart energy business mainly
represented its solar power business, covering the operation and
management of existing solar power plants and sales of household solar
power generation systems. In particular, the Group had a total of 11
existing solar power plants with an aggregate installed capacity of
approximately 64 megawatts (MW), which remained the same as the same
period of last year. During the Reporting Period, the Group had a total
power generation capacity of approximately 79,660 MWh (same period of
2020: 80,690 MWHh). In terms of the household solar power generation
systems business, the Group mainly sold and installed household solar
power generation systems in Hebei Province. During the Reporting Period,
the Group sold and installed household solar power generation systems
with capacity of approximately 82.5 MW (same period of 2020: 62.4 MW).
During the Reporting Period, in order to save management fees, the Group
disposed of its business of provision of distributed gas heating and campus
hot water services which was of a small size and scale. Meanwhile, the
Group’s transformer station can provide power supply and related value-
added services in Hefeng Industrial Park in Xinjiang, which was subject to
the settlement of enterprises in the park.

During the Reporting Period, the smart energy business contributed
approximately RMB316,898,000 (same period of 2020: RMB248,264,000)
to the Group’s revenue, representing an increase of approximately 27.6%
as compared to the same period of last year, which was primarily
attributable to the growth in sales of the household solar power generation
systems business. Loss for the period amounted to RMB28,016,000 (same
period of 2020: loss of RMB3,592,000). Such increase in the loss was
primarily attributable to the decrease in gross profit of the household solar
power generation systems business and the derecognition of deferred
income tax assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Public Infrastructure Construction Business

The public infrastructure construction business refers to the construction
and related preliminary investment and post-construction, operation and
management of public infrastructure under the Baoding Donghu Project in
Baoding City of Hebei Province. During the Reporting Period, the public
infrastructure construction business contributed approximately
RMB145,744,000 (same period of 2020: RMB148,149,000) to the Group’s
revenue. Profit for the period amounted to approximately RMB2,684,000
(same period of 2020: loss of approximately RMB3,582,000). The
turnaround to profit from loss was primarily attributable to the decrease in
management fees and finance expenses incurred for the public
infrastructure construction business as compared with last year.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Although the global economy made a strong rebound after the COVID-19
pandemic started to ease in 2021, the recurrent pandemic waves, the
worsening inflation, the soaring commodity prices and the intense
geopolitical tensions have shaped a complex and challenging
macroeconomic landscape for 2022, which will no doubt be a year of
frustration and hardship.

Amid these trying times, there has remained a general trend of reducing
carbon emissions and developing clean energy sources. Therefore, the
market outlook for electricity generation from renewable energy sources, in
particular of wind and solar power, is still promising. Under the guidance of
“dual carbon goals”, China’s solar power industry will continue to grow
rapidly and will see simultaneous increases in centralised distributed
installations. Household solar power generation are the main force of
distributed solar power generation. According to a document issued by the
National Development and Reform Commission, subsidies for new projects
of household solar power plants will be cancelled starting 2022, which
implies that the household solar power plants business is entering into a
stage of fully market-driven and competitive development.

In 2021, due to the continuous increase in price of polycrystalline silicon,
one of the major materials for photovoltaic components, the cost of
investment for solar power plants trended upwards rather than downwards,
which greatly affected the installed capacity and growth rate of solar power
plants. If the price for solar power plants stays at a high level in 2022, the
profit margin in the industry will further be suppressed and accordingly, the
newly installed capacity of solar power plants is expected to continue to be
affected and delayed in 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB & am S AT

In the new fiscal year, we will continue to adopt a robust development
strategy and positively address the challenges from changes in external
environment. We will also timely harness the development opportunities
presented by industry changes. While cost control and risk management
are ensured, we will intensify our efforts to expand the development model
of our principal business, thereby deliver attractive returns to our
Shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and Gross Profit

The Group’s revenue and gross profit for the Reporting Period amounted
to RMB462,642,000 (same period of 2020: RMB396,413,000) and
RMB87,654,000 (same period of 2020: RMB87,308,000), respectively. The
gross profit margin was 18.9% (same period of 2020: 22.0%)).

The increase in revenue as compared to the same period of last year was
primarily attributable to the increase in sales revenue of the household solar
power generation systems business. The decrease in gross profit margin
as compared to the same period of last year was primarily attributable to
the lower gross profit margin of the household solar power generation
systems business as a result of the rising costs of raw materials for solar
power generation systems.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group incurred selling and distribution expenses of RMB18,242,000
during the Reporting Period (same period of 2020: RMB11,150,000),
representing an increase of 63.6% as compared to last year, which was
primarily attributable to the increase in expansion scale of the household
solar power generation systems business.

Administrative Expenses

The Group incurred administrative expenses of RMB63,622,000 during the
Reporting Period (same period of 2020: RMB40,688,000), representing an
increase of 56.4% as compared to last year, which was primarily because
of the reversal of a large amount of share option fees in the same period of
last year but there was no such fee reversal for the Reporting Period, and
the increase in impairment provisions for fixed assets as compared with the
same period of last year.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited Annual Report 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Reversal of Impairment Losses/Impairment
Losses on Financial and Contract Assets

During the Reporting Period, the Group made a reversal of impairment
losses on financial and contract assets of RMB5,735,000 (same period of
2020: impairment losses of RMB3,316,000), primarily attributable to the
recovery of certain financial assets measured at amortised cost by the
Group during the Reporting Period, on which reversal of impairment losses
was therefore made.

Finance Expenses — Net

Net finance expenses amounted to RMB6,290,000 for the Reporting
Period (same period of 2020: RMB15,507,000), representing a decrease of
59.5% as compared to last year. Such decrease was primarily attributable
to the decrease in borrowings.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense amounted to RMB38,873,000 for the Reporting Period
(same period of 2020: income tax expense of RMB2,240,000), representing
an increase in the expense of 1,635% as compared to last year. Such
increase in the expense was primarily attributable to the derecognition of
deferred income tax assets amounting to approximately RMB37,000,000
due to the changes in business environment.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or
Loss

The Group held two financial assets for investment purpose during the
Reporting Period, which were stated at fair value:

(1)  The Group was interested in 6,935.6307631 class A shares in an
unlisted investment fund, Yue Xiu Stable Income SP, which is an
independent third-party investment fund. On 8 December 2021, the
Company served a redemption notice to the fund to redeem all of its
remaining shares in the fund, being 6,935.6307631 class A shares,
at the redemption proceeds of approximately HK$57,430,000. The
final redemption proceeds shall be subject to completion of audit by
the fund and any adjustment to be made to the relevant redemption
price as a result of the audit. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 8 December 2021 and the
circular of the Company dated 20 December 2021.

Based on the audit result of the fund for the year ended 31
December 2021, the final redemption price was approximately
HK$57,410,000. The Company has received the above redemption
proceeds in full before the date of this report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB & am S AT

During the Reporting Period, a fair value gain arising from the fund of
approximately HK$909,000 (equivalent to RMB776,000) (same
period of 2020: fair value loss of approximately HK$250,000,
equivalent to RMB222,000) was incurred. Upon completion of the
redemption, the Company no longer holds any interest in the fund.

(2)  The Group held unlisted exchangeable corporate bonds issued by
Supreme Trillion Development Limited, an independent third party. In
August 2020, the Group requested to redeem the exchangeable
corporate bonds. As at 31 December 2020, the remaining principal
amount of the exchangeable corporate bonds was HK$715,000
(equivalent to RMB602,000) with a fair value of HK$1,142,000
(equivalent to RMB962,000). During the Reporting Period, the Group
fully recovered the remaining principal and interest income of
HK$1,142,000 (equivalent to RMB962,000) of the above
exchangeable bonds.

During the Reporting Period, no interest income was included in
other gains as fair value gains (same period of 2020: fair value gain of
approximately HK$36,000, equivalent to RMB30,000).

The Group’s investments primarily consist of long-term projects in the
areas of smart energy and public infrastructure construction, which
generally take extended periods of time to generate positive cash flows. In
the event of any unexpected event that has a negative impact on the
business and prospects of the smart energy industry, the Group’s overall
business performance may be affected. In light of the above, as part of the
Group’s development plan and risk control, the Board considered that the
inclusion of investment in financial assets would help diversify its asset and
investment portfolio and reduce the impact of any market risk on the overall
business of the Group.

The strategy of the Group with respect to the investment in financial assets
is not to invest in speculative securities but mainly in investments with lower
risks, with the initial investments focusing on investment funds managed by
qualified and licensed investment managers or low-risk bonds. Such
investment funds or bonds invest in low-risk underlying assets with relative
low price volatility, high liquidity, short to medium term and/or stable
income stream.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Liquidity, Financial and Capital Resources

Cash position

As at 31 December 2021, bank balances and cash amounted to
approximately RMB240,661,000 (31 December 2020: RMB155,585,000),
of which approximately RMB18,341,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB139,000) was restricted bank balances (mainly used for the expenses
incurred under the Baoding Donghu Project). Such increase in bank
balances and cash was primarily attributable to the full or partial recovery of
investment in financial assets by the Company.

Total current assets and current ratio

As at 31 December 2021, total current assets and current ratio (total
current assets/total current liabilities) were approximately RMB728,627,000
(81 December 2020: RMB743,960,000) and 6.24 (31 December 2020: 6.27),
respectively. The decrease in total current assets was primarily attributable
to the decrease in receivables during the Reporting Period and the
decrease in current ratio was the result of the decrease in current assets
although current liabilities basically remained the same.

External borrowings and pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had external borrowings of
RMB211,000,000 (31 December 2020: RMB235,400,000), of which
RMB211,000,000 was secured by certain machinery at solar power plants
with a carrying amount of RMB266,055,000 and the collection rights of
future receivables of certain subsidiaries (831 December 2020:
RMB235,400,000 was secured by certain machinery at solar power plants
with a carrying amount of RMB285,107,000 and the collection rights of
future receivables of certain subsidiaries).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB & am S AT

Gearing Ratio
The table below sets forth the calculation of gearing ratio of the Group as
at the dates indicated:

BELER
TREIAEER AR ARG E B RO H -

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TF

+=—H=+-8 +ZA=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARBEF T

Bank loans RITERK 211,000 235,400
Lease liabilities HEarE 12,737 11,939
Less: Cash and cash equivalents BWBRERREEEY (222,320) (155,446)
Restricted cash R H3R & (18,341) (139)

Net (cash)/debt (B&)/ E%FE (16,924) 91,754
Total equity B 1,171,591 1,201,916
Total capital (Net (cash)/debt plus total equity) WER(BE) MBI FaEmES

1EEE) 1,154,667 1,293,670

Gearing ratio (Net debt/total capital) BELER(BERFETBELX) N/ATE A 71%

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s net debt was negative which was
primarily attributable to the repayment of loans and the full or partial
recovery of investments in financial assets during the Reporting Period.

The proportion of long-term and short-term debts was 64.4% and 35.6%,
respectively (as at 31 December 2020: 89.6% and 10.4%), of which the
borrowings of RMB211,000,000 in respect of solar power plants were
gradually repaid by the proceeds from electricity sales. Therefore, the
Group was not exposed to any significant insolvency risk.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from external borrowings.
During the Reporting Period, the external borrowings, which mainly
represent bank borrowings for solar power plants, bear interests at rates
ranging from 5.39% to 5.63% per annum (same period of 2020: 5.23% to
5.46% per annum). The interest rates applicable to borrowings of solar
power plants were charged at the lending rate of the People’s Bank of
China for the same period plus 10% to 15%, with risk derived from the
changes in China’s policy on interest rate, but the Group expects the
impact of the interest rate risk on the Group’s consolidated profit or loss to
be insignificant.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Exchange Rate Risk

As the Group’s principal activities are carried out in the PRC, the Group’s
transactions are mainly denominated in Renminbi, which is not freely
convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign exchange transactions
involving Renminbi must take place through the People’s Bank of China or
other institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign exchanges. The
exchange rates adopted for foreign exchange transactions are the rates of
exchange quoted by the People’s Bank of China that are determined
largely by supply and demand.

The Group currently does not have a policy on foreign currency risk as it
had minimal transactions denominated in foreign currencies during the
Reporting Period, and the impact of foreign currency risk on the Group’s
operation is minimal.

Investment Commitments

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had investment commitments of
RMB101,600,000 (31 December 2020: RMB101,600,000), which were
mainly the Group’s obligations of capital contribution to its associate
Longyao (Beijing) Clean Energy Technology Company Limited* (F&#2(1t )
H2EBREH AR A7) (‘Longyao Beijing”) that shall be fulfiled by 31
December 2025. Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
31 December 2021 for details.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities (31 December 2020: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION, INVESTMENT
AND DISPOSAL

Material Acquisition and Investment

The Group had no material acquisition and investment during the Reporting
Period.

Material Disposal

The Group had no material disposal during the Reporting Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB & am S AT

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

The Group had 80 employees as at 31 December 2021 (31 December
2020: 269 employees). Such decrease in the number of employees was
primarily due to the downsized expansion of the Group’s household solar
power generation systems business in the second half of the year.
Employees are remunerated according to the nature of their positions,
individual qualification, performance, work experience and market trends,
and subject to periodic reviews based on their performance. Meanwhile, to
attract and retain high-caliber employees to ensure smooth operation and
accommodate the continued expansion of the Group, the Group offers
competitive remuneration and benefit packages to employees at different
levels, including discretionary bonuses, various training programs,
sponsorship for further study and share option schemes for the benefit of
the Directors and eligible employees of the Group.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS

Executive Director

Mr. Wei Qiang, aged 39, joined the Company as an executive Director, the
chief executive officer of the Company and a member of the Remuneration
Committee on 11 November 2015. On 29 June 2017, Mr. Wei Qiang was
appointed as the chairman of the Board and chairman of the Nomination
Committee of the Board. Mr. Wei Qiang has around 14 years of work and
management experiences in the clean energy industry. Mr. Wei Qiang has
also been serving as a director of a rural bank initiated by Chengdu Rural
Commercial Bank since 2013. Since August 2018, Mr. Wei Qiang has
served as a senior management of Longjitaihe Group which is engaged in
integrated diversified industries including real estate development,
commercial operations and new energy. From 2003 to 2006, Mr. Wei
Qiang studied at the University of Auckland in New Zealand majoring in
Finance and from 2007 to 2009, studied business administration and
information strategies at Tsinghua University. Mr. Wei Qiang is the son of
Mr. Wei Shaojun, the ultimate controlling Shareholder of the Company and
the non-executive Director.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENAREEE

Non-executive Director

Mr. Wei Shaojun, aged 58 joined the Company as the chairman, an
executive Director, chief executive officer and the chairman of the
Nomination Committee in January 2015. Mr. Wei resigned as chief
executive officer on 11 November 2015. On 29 June 2017, Mr. Wei
resigned as the chairman of the Board and chairman of the Nomination
Committee of the Board and was re-designated as a non-executive
Director. Mr. Wei is the founder, the controlling shareholder and the
chairman of Longjitaihe Group and Mr. Wei has more than 25 years of
experiences in real property development business operation, business
management, etc. Mr. Wei is a National Model Worker, and Peking
University Post EMBA. Mr. Wei is currently serving as a director and the
chairman of the board of Jiangsu Tongda Technology Co., Ltd. (Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, stock code: 002576). Mr. Wei is the father of Mr. Wei
Qiang, the executive Director and chief executive officer of the Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Han Qinchun, aged 63, joined the Company as an independent non-
executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee in February 2015. Dr. Han had resigned as the
member of the Nomination Committee, and was appointed as the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee on 28 June 2016. Dr. Han is currently the
president of Hong Kong International Financial Assets Market Limited. Dr.
Han obtained a Doctorate degree in philosophy in urban economics and
management from The University of Hong Kong in 1998. He also obtained
a bachelor’s degree from Xi’an University of Architecture and Technology in
1982. He has rich experience in the PRC property sector, financial
investment, equity capital market and listed companies’ management. He
had worked in securities and investment in Bank of China International
Holdings Limited, Agricultural Bank of China Securities Limited (now known
as Agricultural Bank of China International Holdings Limited) and Everbright
Securities Company (Hong Kong) Limited. He served as the vice-chairman
and co-president and executive director of Hong Long Holdings Limited (now
known as Suncity Group Holdings Limited), a listed company on the main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1383) for three years. Over the
past three years, he served as an independent non-executive director for
the following Stock Exchange listed companies, namely Century Ginwa
Retail Holdings Limited (stock code: 0162) and Lingbao Gold Company
Ltd., (stock code: 3330).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John, aged 55, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee,
a member of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee
on 16 October 2015. Mr. John Wong Yik Chung is a qualified accountant
and has over 32 years of experience in auditing and corporate finance
work, with extensive exposure to the business enterprises in the PRC. He
is the founder of Vantage Group and TMF China, which provide
professional outsourcing solutions to companies investing in the PRC and
targeting at international customers. Mr. Wong graduated from the
University of Melbourne. He is a fellow member of each of the Australian
Society of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He also obtained a PRC Certificate of
Independent Directorship in 2002. Over the past three years, he served as
an independent non-executive director for the following Stock Exchange
listed companies, namely Perfect Optronics Limited (stock code: 8311),
Xinjiang Xinxin Mining Industry Co., Ltd. (stock code: 3833) and Beijing
Capital Land Ltd. (stock code: 2868). He currently serves as an
independent non-executive director of EcoGreen International Group
Limited (stock code: 2341) which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Han Xiaoping, aged 64, joined the Company as an independent non-
executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee on 28 June 2016. He worked as journalist in CAAC JOURNAL
of the Civil Aviation Administration of China (CAAC) from 1986 to 1988. He
established China Energy Net in 2000 and served as managing director
since then, and he also serves as the chief writer of Energy Review, Chief
Researcher of China Energy Net Research Center. He currently serves as
deputy director of China Energy Research Society Distributed Energy
Professional Committee, expert of China Southern Power Grid Expert
Committee and expert of China Gas Strategic Development Committee.
Over the past three years, he served as an independent non-executive
director of Beijing Jingneng Clean Energy Co., Limited, a listed company
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 579). He currently
serves an independent non-executive director of Tianjin Tianbao Energy
Co., Ltd., a listed company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1671); and an independent non-executive director GCL Energy
Technology Co., Ltd, a listed company on the Main Board of Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (stock code: 2015).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENAREEE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

At the date of this report, the senior management of the Group comprises
the executive Director above, namely Mr. Wei Qiang, and Ms. Zhao Hua.
The biographies of Ms. Zhao Hua are set out below:

Ms. Zhao Hua, aged 36, joined the Company as the executive vice
president in January 2020. She is mainly assisting the chief executive
officer of the Company to take full charge of the daily operation and
management of the Group. Ms. Zhao was an executive Director of the
Company from 26 February 2015 to 11 November 2015. From July 2014
to July 2016, she served as the executive vice president of Hedao
International Commercial and Trading Co., Ltd., where she was responsible
for the business segment of commercial operation. In 2013, she served as
the executive vice president and secretary of the board of directors of
Lightway Green Energy Technology Co., Ltd., responsible for financial and
human resources management. Ms Zhao graduated from Central University
of Finance and Economics in 2010, with a major in administrative
management and obtained a master’s degree in management. She
graduated from Beijing International Studies University in 2007, with a major
in international politics and obtained a Bachelor of Laws degree. Ms. Zhao
is the wife of Mr. Wei Qiang, the executive Director and the chief executive
officer of the Company.

Details of the interests of the Directors in the Company are disclosed in the
section headed “INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS” under the “Report of the Directors”.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Reporting Period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are smart energy business, public
infrastructure construction and the related preliminary investment and post-
construction operation management business, with gradual expansion and
diversification to other clean energy business.

An analysis of the performance of the Group for the Reporting Period by
segments is set out in note 5 to the audited consolidated financial
statements. The principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the audited consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in the
“Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss” on pages 81 to 82 of this annual
report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and assets, liabilities and equity of
the Group for the last five financial years and the financial key performance
indicators of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out on page 192 of
this annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The business review for the Reporting Period and an indication of likely
future development in the business of the Company are set out in the
sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report. Our risk management system and a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties that the Company may
be facing are provided in the “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual
report.
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FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to ascertain the entitiements to attend and vote at the forthcoming
annual general meeting to be held on Tuesday, 31 May 2022 (the “Meeting”),
the transfer books and register of members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, 26 May 2022 to Tuesday, 31 May 2022, both days
inclusive, during which period no share transfers can be registered. In order
to qualify for attending the Meeting, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Hong Kong branch
share registrar and transfer office of the Company, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 25 May 2022.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 14 to the audited
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

Details of interest-bearing borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2021 are set out in note 30 to the audited consolidated financial statements
in this annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no equity-linked agreements were
entered into by the Group, or existed during the Reporting Period.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s issued share capital during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 29(a) to the audited consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands where the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares of the
Company (the “Shares”) on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Reporting
Period are set out in note 29(b) to the audited consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively in this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2021, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity Shareholders was RMB1,066,391,000 (31 December
2020: RMB1,094,823,000).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group did not make any charitable donations during the Reporting
Period (2020: donated distributed gas heating equipment to four
kindergartens in Gaobeidian City of Hebei Province with a value of
approximately RMB190,000).
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the smart energy and public
infrastructure construction businesses. The smart energy business, which
mainly comprises the operation of solar power plants and sales of
household solar power generation systems, is an environmentally friendly
business. With the focus on the smart energy business, the Group strives
to develop clean energy sources and is committed to protecting the
environment and mitigating the impact of its operations on the environment.
The Group’s public infrastructure construction business represents the
Baoding Donghu PPP project. The project is to develop a new functional
urban area in Baoding city highlighted with ecological culture. The project
comprises a lake district with an area of 660 mu, park and green space
with an area of 250,000 square metres, Guan Hanging theater and
museum with an area of approximately 70,000 square metres and urban
protective green belt with an area of 310,000 square metres. The project
connects to public and infrastructural facilities such as the municipal road
of 4.68 square kilometres, educational facilities for primary and secondary
schools, and public stations. It will improve the urban function of Baoding
city, enrich the cultural asset of the city, and enrich the cultural life of the
citizens while bringing benefits to the environment.

In the course of developing its smart energy and public infrastructure
construction businesses, the Group is mainly subject to the supervision and
restriction under the following environmental laws and regulations: the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Environmental Protection, the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and
Control of Atmospheric Pollution, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste,
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Appraising of Environment
Impacts and the Regulations on the Administration of Environmental
Protection of Construction Projects. The Group has paid consistent
attention to complying with the laws and regulations on environmental
protection. Throughout the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with
the relevant laws and regulations on environmental protection that have a
material impact on the Group.
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We also recognise the importance of maintaining mutually beneficial
relationships with stakeholders, including our Shareholders and investors,
government organs, employees, customers, suppliers and local
communities. Their support is vital to the Group’s sustainable development.
We pay close attention to the needs of all our stakeholders, offer solutions
to address their needs and continuously interact with them in ways that are
conducive to the sustainable growth of the Company, the industry and the
community. For details of the Group’s environmental, social and
governance report for 2021, please refer to the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” of the Company to be issued at the latest by the end
of May 2022.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group operates its businesses mainly in Mainland China. The
development and operation of the Group’s smart energy and public
infrastructure construction businesses in the PRC are mainly regulated by
the local laws and regulations on renewable energy, electricity supply and
construction projects, as well as various policies and industry guidelines
issued by such local governments. There was no incident of non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that had or would have a
significant impact on the Company during the Reporting Period.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Connected Transaction

The Group didn’t carried out any connected transaction (other than
connected transactions that were fully exempted under Chapter 14A of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) during the Reporting Period.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

The Group carried out the following continuing connected transactions (other
than continuing connected transactions that are fully exempted under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) during the Reporting Period:

(1)

First Master Agreement and Second Master
Agreement in relation to the supply of electricity
First Master Agreement

On 10 July 2017, Gao Bei Dian City Guangshuo New Energy Group
Co.,ltd. (5T AEFEREEFRAA) (“Guangshuo”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
master agreement (“‘First Master Agreement”) with Longjitaihe
Property Co., Ltd. (“Longjitaihe Property”, & &= B X AR A7)
in respect of the continuing connected transactions between
members of the Group and Longjitaihe Property and its subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the terms of the First Master Agreement, members of the
Group will lease roof top and related storage and operation spaces
from Longjitaine Property and its subsidiaries for the installation of
the solar power plant facilities of the Group, and upon the solar
power plants get connected to the grid, supply electricity to
Longjitaihe Property and its subsidiaries.

No rent is payable by Guangshuo in respect of the leasing of roof
tops and other operational spaces from Longjitaihne Property. This
arrangement is in-line with common market practice and in-line with
the agreement commonly adopted by Guangshuo with independent
third party customers under similar circumstances.

In respect of the supply of electricity by Guangshuo to Longjitaihe
Property, the fees will be based on the unit price per kWh as
published by the Provincial Price Bureau of which the power station
projects are located at (which is subject to adjustment from time to
time), with a discount of no more than 20% being offered in
comprehensive consideration of the free rental of roof top and the
electricity usage of the landlord, etc. The transactions under such
electricity purchase agreement are conducted in the usual and
ordinary course of business of the Group on normal commercial
terms, and under equivalent conditions, the terms and consideration
are similar to those offered to independent third party customers.

The First Master Agreement has a term of 20 years for the leases
and a term of 25 years for the supply of electricity. The annual caps
under the First Master Agreement in respect of the supply of
electricity to Longjitaihe Property during the term of the agreement
will not exceed RMB10,000,000.
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Longjitaihe Property is a company controlled and owned by Mr. Wei
Shaojun, a non-executive Director and the controlling Shareholder of
the Company. The transactions contemplated under the First Master
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Second Master Agreement

On 10 July 2017, Guangshuo entered into another master agreement
(the “Second Master Agreement”) with Longjitaihe Group Limited
(“Longjitaihe Group Limited”, EEZMEBEBRAF]) (formerly
known as “Longjitaihe Industrial Co., Limited”, (R ZEZRMEZEAR A 7))
and Lightway Green Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (“Lightway Green
Energy”), in respect of the continuing connected transactions
between members of the Group and Longjitaihe Group Limited,
Lightway Green Energy and their subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the terms of the Second Master Agreement, members of
the Group will lease roof top and related storage and operation
spaces from Longjitaihe Group Limited and Lightway Green Energy
and their subsidiaries for the installation of the solar power plant
facilities of the Group, and upon the solar power plants get
connected to the grid, supply electricity to Longjitaihe Group Limited
and Lightway Green Energy and their subsidiaries.

No rent is payable by Guangshuo in respect of the leasing of roof
tops and other operational spaces from Longjitaihe Group Limited
and Lightway Green Energy under the Second Master Agreement.
This arrangement is in-line with common market practice and in-line
with the agreement commonly adopted by Guangshuo with
independent third party customers under similar circumstances.

In respect of the supply of electricity by Guangshuo, the fees will be
based on the unit price per kWh as published by the Provincial Price
Bureau of which the power station projects are located at (which is
subject to adjustment from time to time), with a discount of no more
than 20% being offered in comprehensive consideration of the free
rental of roof top and the electricity usage of the landlord, etc. The
transactions under such electricity purchase agreement are
conducted in the usual and ordinary course of business of the Group
on normal commercial terms, and under equivalent conditions, the
terms and consideration are similar to those offered to independent
third party customers.
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The Second Master Agreement has a term of 20 years for the leases
and a term of 25 years for the supply of electricity. The annual caps
under the Second Master Agreement in respect of the supply of
electricity to Longjitaihe Group Limited and Lightway Green Energy
during the term of the agreement will not exceed RMB8,000,000.

Longjitaine Group Limited and Lightway Green Energy are companies
respectively controlled and owned by Mr. Wei Shaojun and Mr. Wei
Qiang, both are the Directors of the Company. The transactions
contemplated under the Second Master Agreement constituted
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 27 April 2017, 9 June 2017, 10 July 2017 and the circular
dated 22 May 2017.

The transaction amounts under the First Master Agreement and the
Second Master Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2021
were approximately RMB3,060,000 and RMB7,168,000 respectively.

In October 2018, Guangshuo completed the acquisition from
Baoding Lightway Green Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (“Baoding
Lightway”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lightway Green Energy) a
10.2 MW distributed solar power plant located at the Lightway
Industrial Park, Hebei Province, the PRC. Upon completion,
Guangshuo supplied electricity to Baoding Lightway, and Baoding
Lightway has undertaken that its annual minimum electricity
consumption is not less than 10 million degrees per year (except the
normal physical decline of 0.7% per vyear), otherwise Baoding
Lightway should pay the difference to Guang Shuo. During the
Reporting Period, Baoding Lightway has fulfilled the above-
mentioned minimum electricity consumption commitment. The
transaction amount of electricity sold by Guangshuo to Baoding
Lightway is included in the Second Master Agreement.

Implications under the Listing Rules

As the annual caps in respect of the continuing connected
transactions under the First Master Agreement and the Second
Master Agreement on an aggregate bases are expected to be more
than 0.1% but less than 5%, the First Master Agreement and the
Second Master Agreement are subject to the reporting,
announcement and annual review requirements and exempted from
the independent Shareholders’ requirement under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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(2) 2020 Renewal Agreement and 2021 Renewal

Agreement

On 12 June 2020, the Company entered into the 2020 renewal
agreement (the “2020 Renewal Agreement”) with Longjitaine Group
Limited, pursuant to which the Company has agreed to provide
through the Company or any of its subsidiaries to Longjitaihe Group
Limited or any one of its subsidiaries, and/or third parties designed
by Longjitaihe Group Limited, collectively or individually, a revolving
loan in a maximum principal amount of up to RMB18,000,000 for the
availability period commenced from 13 June 2020 and ended on 12
June 2021. As the 2020 Renewal Agreement has expired, the
Company entered into the 2021 renewal agreement (the “2021
Renewal Agreement”) with Logjitaihe Group Limited on 18 June
2021 to renew the 2020 Renewal Agreement for another one year
from 18 June 2021 to 18 June 2022, with the maximum principal
amount of the revolving loan adjusted from RMB18,000,000 to
RMB11,000,000.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 12 June 2020 and 18 June 2021.

The maximum transaction amount under the 2020 Renewal
Agreement for the period from 1 January 2021 to 17 June 2021 was
approximately RMB14,487,000.

The maximum transaction amount under the 2021 Renewal
Agreement for the period from 18 June 2021 to 31 December 2021
was approximately RMB11,000,000.

Implications under the Listing Rules

As at the date of the 2021 Renewal Agreement , Longjitaihe Group
Limited was held as to 99% by Mr. Wei Shaojun, a non-executive
Director and the controlling Shareholder of the Company.
Accordingly, the 2021 Renewal Agreement and the transaction
contemplated thereunder constituted continuing connected
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the transactions
under the 2020 renewal agreement and 2021 renewal agreement
exceeded 0.1% but were less than 5%, the transactions was only
subject to reporting, annual review and announcement requirements
but were exempt from the circular and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(2

REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EETHRE

S_ZEFHHBR_-F
— R

R-ZZ-_ZTFERAT-B ARrHEER
ENEEFTURBRRER T _ZFFH
HBHR(=—B_BFEHHBH]  &Ei - K

ARIRAEEBARAAI N EEMMME AR
M (R k@R E R &E B kB  AEf—
MHEBAR N SEEFMEBIEENE
“HREBRER AR BARKE
18,000,000 ' BB BT =T F <
BA+T=HRBIRE-_ZT - —FA+
“HHER DT _TFEHIBEIHE
RAKRABRIR-ZZE-_—F A+ \BEHEESE
MEEFY-_ZE-_—FEFHR(=F=
—EEHBRE) UEHEFRE T - —
FRNA+TNBRBREZZE-_—_FA+NH
S5—F BREFNASEREAARE
18,000,000 7T # 2 = A K% 11,000,000 7T °

HERL2HARRBHR T _ZTF XA
TTHRZZE-—FXATN\HBHHNAE

R_FE_—F—HA—H=E ——FXA
+tE':gf§¢Eﬁm%ET%?ﬁ
RG5O/ ANRE14,487,0007T °

RZE-_—FNA+\BE_T=_—%F+
A=+ B ZE—FEFHFHEET
NEZEER5EELH A ARE11,000,0007T -

AR Al B % 2
R-ZZE-_—FFHHZEH BEZNE
BHARAFATEERERERALE
FEERBONER  Aitt —T-_—F &
%%%&EET%@ﬁMi%%Wiﬁﬁ
AIF14AATH T AR RIS AR E

HR_E_EFEFNHER_TE=_—FF
FHEETRINEAE P EXEBB0I%
BERS% ZRXRFHEHEET EMRAE
1MEET$ﬁ FEERRAEHE B
TER BB TR M B R R ERTE o

BEEZNESRRERARAA FH 2021

29



30

REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EETHE

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions set out above and have confirmed that the
continuing connected transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group; (i) on normal commercial terms or
better; and (jii) according to the agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
issued their unqualified letter containing the auditor’s findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions above-
mentioned in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been submitted by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

Save for the continuing connected transactions disclosed above, the Board
is of the view that those material related party transactions disclosed in
note 35 to the audited consolidated financial statements as contained in
this annual report do not constitute “connected transactions” or “continuing
connected transactions”, as the case may be, that are subject to the
reporting, announcement or independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of the above connected transactions.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately
43% (2020: 49%) of the total sales for the Reporting Period and sales to
the largest customer included therein amounted to 32% (2020: 37%) of the
total sales for the Reporting Period. Purchases from the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 63% (2020: 56%) of the total
purchase for the Reporting Period and purchase from the Group’s largest
supplier included therein amounted to 26% (2020: 17%) of the total
purchase for the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates or any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued Shares) had any
interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands that employees are valuable assets. The Group
provides competitive remuneration package to attract and motivate the
employees. The Group regularly reviews the remuneration package of
employees and makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market
standard.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with its suppliers and customers to fuffil its immediate and long-
term goals. To maintain its brand competitiveness and dominant status, the
Group aims at delivering constantly high standards of quality in the
products and service to its customers. During the Reporting Period, there
was no material and significant dispute between the Group and its
suppliers and/or customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and currently are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Qiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Dr. Liu Zhengang (resigned on 29 January 2021)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Wei Shaojun

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Han Qinchun
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John
Mr. Han Xiaoping

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association, at the
forthcoming Meeting to be held, Mr. Wei Shaojun and Dr. Han Qinchun will
retire from office as Directors, and being eligible, have offered themselves
for re-election as Directors. At the forthcoming Meeting, ordinary resolutions
will be proposed to re-elect Mr. Wei Shaojun and Dr. Han Qinchun.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND OTHER
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and other senior management are
disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received a written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his independence in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers that
all independent non-executive Directors are being considered to be
independent by reference to the factors stated in the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Meeting has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the service contracts of the Directors, the Company has not
entered into any contract with any individual, firm or body corporate to
manage or administer the whole or any substantial part of any business of
the Company during the Reporting Period.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 37 to the
audited consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) of the
Company is set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument policy and
structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior management of
the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market practices. The remunerations of the
Directors are determined with reference to the economic situation, the
market condition, the responsibilities and duties assumed by each Director
as well as their individual performance.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, and five highest paid individuals
during the Reporting Period are set out in notes 7 and 37 to the audited
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefits scheme of the Company
are set out in note 7 to the audited consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

CHANGE TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT
OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change to information
in respect of a Director after the interim report for the six-month ending 30
June 2021 is set out below:

1. Since 30 September 2021, Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John resigned as
an independent non-executive director of Beijing Capital Land Ltd.
(listed on the Main Board of Stock Exchange, stock code: 02868).

2. With effect from 1 January 2022, Mr. Wei Qiang’s annual
remuneration from the Company has been changed from
HK$300,000 to RMB1,600,000.

Save as disclosed above, for the Reporting Period, there was no change to
information which is required to be disclosed and has been disclosed by
Directors pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 35 to the audited consolidated financial
statements and in the section headed “Connected Transactions and
Continuing Connected Transactions” in this annual report, neither Director
nor entity connected with the Directors had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to the business of the Group subsisting at any time during the
Reporting Period or at the end of the year to which the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the
Reporting Period was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate, and none of the Directors or any of their spouses or
children under the age of 18 were granted any right to subscribe for the
equity or debt securities of the Company or any other body corporate or
had exercised any such right.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors
or any of their respective associates had engaged in or had any interest in
any business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Pursuant to Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the following current Directors
held share interests and/or directorships in companies engaged in
businesses which compete or likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Group:
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Mr. Wei Shaojun holds share interests and directorships in Longjitaihe
Group Limited (together with its subsidiary, the “Longjitaihe Group”), and
Mr. Wei Qiang works as a senior management in Longjitaihe Group,
Longjitaihe Group engages in businesses of public infrastructure
construction business. As smart energy business constitutes the Group’s
principal business activities, the Group currently has no plan to further
expand public infrastructure construction business after the Baoding
Donghu Project is complete. On this basis, it does not exist any material
competition between the businesses of the Group and those of the
Longjitaihe Group.

Each of the Directors is aware of his fiduciary duties as a Director of the
Company which require, among other things, that he acts for the benefit
and in the best interests of the Company and avoids any conflicts between
his duties as a Director and his personal interest.

As the Board is independent of the boards of the aforesaid companies and
maintains three independent non-executive Directors, the Group operates
its businesses independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses
of the aforesaid companies.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 22 November 2011.

1. Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain the
eligible persons, to provide additional incentive to them and to
promote the success of the business of the Group.

2. Participants

The Board is authorised, at their absolute discretion and subject to
the terms of the Share Option Scheme, to grant options to subscribe
the Shares to, inter alia, any employees (full-time and part-time),
directors, consultants, advisors, distributors, contractors, suppliers,
agents, customers, business partners or service providers of the
Group.
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Total number of Shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the number of the issued Shares of the Company as
at the Listing Date. On 12 June 2018, the Company had refreshed
the scheme mandate limit of the Share Option Scheme to 10% of the
aggregate number of the Shares of the Company in issue as at that
date, i.e. a total of 137,842,200 Shares, representing 9.28% of the
number of the Shares of the Company in issue as at the date of this
report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted to any grantee (including both exercised and
outstanding options) under the Share Option Scheme, in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue.

Period within which the Shares must be taken
up under an option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may
determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant
subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

Minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised

The Board may in its absolute discretion set a minimum period for
which an option must be held and performance targets that must be
achieved before an option can be exercised.

Time of acceptance and the amount payable
on acceptance of the option

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount
payable by the grantee of an option to the Company on acceptance
of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00.
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Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price solely
determined by the Board and notified to a participant and shall not
be lower than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant of the option; (i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the option;
and (i) the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant of the
option.

Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme became unconditional on the Listing Date
and shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing
on 22 November 2011, subject to the early termination provisions
contained in the Share Option Scheme. As at 31 December 2021,
the Share Option Scheme has been expired.

The Company shall be entitled to issue options, provided that the total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme does not exceed 10% of the
shares in issue as at 12 June 2018, the date on which the Company had
refreshed the scheme mandate limit of the Share Option Scheme. The
Company may at any time refresh such limit, subject to the Shareholders’
approval and issue of a circular in compliance with the Listing Rules,
provided that the total number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
all the share option schemes of the Company does not exceed 30% of the
Shares in issue at the time.
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As at 31 December 2021, details of the movement of the share options
under the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

RZEZ—F+-A=+—8B EREEE
TEHBREEFNFBET

Number of Share Options
BREHA
Closing
price Adjusted
preceding exercise
date of Exercise price Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed
grant  price (HKS per Asat duringthe duringthe duringthe during the Asat
Name and category of (HKS per (HKSper  Share) 1 January Reporting Reporting Reporting  Reporting 31 December
participants Date of grant Exercise period share) ~ Share) (Note 1) 2021 Period ~ Period  Period Period 2021
B mgs
AEEN  AER R
WnE TEE (B8R B ABE  ARE  ARE ARE -“B--F
B (@_ﬂi‘ ('S_Hﬁ Br) —B--F  HER ,ﬁﬁf’ajlh BER BER T2A

SHREREZRER BHAH fTEHE Brn) #xm) (W#1) -A-H B ki3 EH %% =1-8

Directors

EZ

Dr. Liu Zhengang 19 January 2017 19 January 2018 to 21 November 2021 (Note2) ~ 1.603 22 18364 399,333 - - - (399,333 -

ARREL “E—tF-AthAB “2-\F-AtnBZE )

“$-FH-A-t-A(E)
14 September 2018 1 Apri 2019 to 31 March 2026 (Note 2) 2 2 N/A 1,600,000 - - — (1,600,000 -
—Z-\§¥hATHEA :%*hﬁ@ﬂ*ﬁ?:?:ﬁﬁ TER
=A=t+-H(HF2)
Dr. Han Qinchun 26 January 2018 26 January 2018 to 25 January 2028 1711 21382 1.77% 359,400 - - - - 359,400
HREBL “Z-N\E-A-tKB ZE-N\E-A-f/KRZ
R \E-AZtRH
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John 26 January 2018 26 January 2018 to 25 January 2028 1.711 2132 17796 359,400 - - - - 359,400
BERLHE —F-\f-A=tAA ZE-N\F-A=fAHZE
“Z-)\f-A=+ZA
Mr. Han Xiaoping 26 January 2018 26 January 2018 to 25 January 2028 1711 2132 1.77% 359,400 - - - - 359,400
BRTRE ZE-\f-A=tR”B ZE-N\F-B=fARHE
ZZ-\f-R=+xH

Subtotal 3,077,533 (1,999,333 1,078,200

Nt

Other eligible persons 26 January 2018 26 January 2019 to 25 January 2028 (Note 2) 1711 2132 1.77% 8,807,197 - - - (8,807,197) -

EpaBRAL “E-\F-AZtRR ZE-AF-A-tRRE

“E-\F-A=+EA(KF2)
11 May 2018 1 February 2019 to 10 May 2028 242 24 N/A 780,000 - - — (780,000 -
—Z-\¥1R+-H —E-NE-RF-AR-F-N\FRATAH @R
14 September 2018 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2026 (Note 2) 2 2 VA~ 14,160,000 - - — (14,160,000) -
—Z-\§fhATHEA :?*hﬁ@ﬂ*ﬁé N TER

—E-AEZA=+-R(ME2)

Subtola\ 23,747,197 = = - (23,747,197) =

/J\a»

Total 26,824,730 - - — (25746530) 1,078,200

@5

Notes: B3 -

1. Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, adjustments are required for 1. BIEERESEOER R AR ETHR - 1T
the exercise price and the number of Shares available for subscription under the FERABIEM AT EEREZRE Z2IRMHEE BE
outstanding share options as a result of the Company’s rights issue, with effect HAE BT \FE=A=-t+=-BE4E%-- 25
from 22 March 2018. The exercise prices of the share options granted on 19 RZEBE—+tH&E—AT+hBEZZE—NFE—A=Z+t
January 2017 and 26 January 2018 were adjusted to HK$1.8364 per Share and HRFEENEREZTHEEEFAE A TAL1.836475
HK$1.7796 per Share, respectively. For details, please refer to the announcement TR ERE1.77968 T - BT IE 28 A AT B H
of the Company dated 21 March 2018. AT \F=ZA=-+—HAmMRE-

2. These share options granted will be subject to vesting in three tranches within three 2. ZERYZERESNIEFHE I =HEE - B

years. The vesting of share options is based on the fulfiment of certain performance
targets of the Group, including but not limited to the financial performance of the
Group as well as the grantee’s individual performance.
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During the Reporting Period, no expense arose from share-based payment
transactions previously recognised as part of employee benefit expense (the
year of 2020: the reversal of expense arising from share-based payment
transactions previously recognised as part of employee benefit expense
was RMB12,879,000).

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
THE DIRECTORS AND THE CHIEF
EXECUTIVE IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any interests which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange, were as follows:

() Interest in the Shares and underlying Shares
of Company
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Number of Shares/ Approximate

underlying Percentage of

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares held shareholding
ERG

BEEnR B EEMEE HERGEE BRESAB DL
Mr. Wei Shaojun Founder of a discretionary trust 970,534,633(L) 65.37%
BOELRE —IHEHBIFEEEHRKZ A
Mr. Wei Qiang Beneficiary of a discretionary trust® 970,534,633(L) 65.37%
ot A4 —IEHMEEENE @ AP
Mr. Han Xiaoping Beneficial owner® 359,400(L) 0.02%
BETITAE EmEA AL
Dr. Han Qinchun Beneficial owner®” 359,400(L) 0.02%
BRAEET EmEaAY
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John Beneficial owner® 359,400(L) 0.02%
=HEBEAE EmEA AL
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Notes: M‘T Ef .

1. King River Developments Limited is deemed to be respectively interested in 1. King River Developments Limited % 1% /& i3 1@ & 74
422,872,512 Shares, 534,462,121 Shares and 13,200,000 Shares (totally Longevity Investment Holding Limited, Lightway Power
970,534,633 Shares) through its control over Longevity Investment Holding Holdings Limited } Harvest Oak Holdings Limited
Limited, Lightway Power Holdings Limited and Harvest Oak Holdings B 12 5 #E - T D Bl R422,872,5120% Bk 15
Limited, and Zedra Trust Company (Singapore) Limited (formerly known as 534,462,121 i% i% 13 % 13,200,000 8% A% 15 (& &t
BNP Paribas Singapore Trust Corporation Limited) is deemed to be 970,534,633 A 1) R #E A #E 25 + K Zedra Trust
interested in 970,534,633 Shares through its control over King River Company (Singapore) Limited (&l 7% BNP Paribas
Developments Limited, and Mr. Wei Shaojun is deemed to be interested in Singapore Trust Corporation Limited) % 18 % &
970,534,633 Shares as a founder of the discretionary trust. The details of i3 H 7 King River Developments Limited &) 12 1] &
which are set out as follows: 970,634,633 B fn R B s AR E 5L

£ (FERBIBERERILA) R /A1 970,534,633
DA R BRFBEET
Direct Number of
Name of controlled corporation Name of controlling shareholder % control interest Shares
TEREEEER ERBEREE ERBESL Bi#EEm BHEHAE
King River Developments Limited Zedra Trust Company (Singapore) Limited 100.00 N 970,534,633(L)
5
Longevity Investment Holding Limited King River Developments Limited 100.00 Y 422,872,512(L)
=
Lightway Power Holdings Limited King River Developments Limited 100.00 Y 534,462,121(L)
=
Harvest Oak Holdings Limited King River Developments Limited 100.00 Y 13,200,000(L)
=

2. Mr. Wei Qiang is deemed to be interested in 970,534,633 Shares as a 2. AALE(EFAERXEZA)IEE AR
beneficiary of a trust. 970,534,633 ik E HE 25 ©

3. Mr. Han Xiaoping is interested in 359,400 share options of the Company. 3. 82 B% 7 4% 4 12 359,400 A% 2K 1 &) B A% 4 o %

o E
4. Dr. Han Qinchun is interested in 359,400 share options of the Company. 4. 8 &= & 18 + 11 359,400 % 7K X 7 & A% 4
Ao

5. Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John is interested in 359,400 share options of the 5., = H B St 4 7 359,400 A A 7] BE AR #E R
Company. Bl o

6. The letter “L” denotes the long position in Shares. 6. FEILIRTRBROD 278 °
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EETHRE

(i) Interest in the Shares of Associated (i) RiEH =ERH HER
Corporations

Approximate

Capacity/Nature Number of percentage of
Name of Director Name of associated corporation of interest Shares held shareholding
EEnA HECEE S B #EMtE FAEROBE REBOE D
Mr. Wei Shaojun Longevity Investment Holding Limited Beneficial owner 1L 100%
BRLERE BamEAA
Mr. Wei Shaojun Harvest Oak Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 1(L) 100%
BROERE BaERA
Mr. Wei Shaojun Lightway Power Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 1L 100%
BROERLE BEamlEBA
Note: The letter “L” denotes the long position in Shares. M : FRILIERABROHIEFA -

Save as disclosed above and save for the share options as set out under @ T FriEEE RSN ERES 2| — &b >
the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, as at 31 December 2021, @ pessp . P - - —®F+ - B =+—08
none of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests @& Zgi A QN FF BT H A 2R AR 7 8 H{F
or short position in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the ([ fgB A B (F 55 B 25 1 B &5 (€0 BEXVER) &Y
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part  gr ¢ - AR B R E S h BT RIEZ AR
XV of the SFO) which would be required to be notified to the Company and  H# = (& | SEXVEF B 7 % 845 2 /8 &1 & A A 7 % B
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or s Figh i 25 si X A > SR R A5 RIS IE0 £
which would be required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be 350 (&8 F /8 2% 20 A 5 (& B it 25 50 10 i #E 25 3 3%

entered in the register referred to therein, or otherwise notified to the &  siiREIEEFHIE FAEME AN D 7] & BT
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. FF ) RE2S SR A o
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF x
THE SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND i
&

all

R R
X 18
B

H A
il

ot
FHt

B
Bk

*
%

B/X
=

OTHER PERSONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, so far as is known to the Directors, the following RZ-Z=-Z—E+-_A=+—H ZEBESHH " T
persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company as J| A+ GEEXFIFEEN AR EETHFETH
disclosed above) had interests or short positions in Shares or underlying A B)REM S IBER GO IEEREBR A LEE
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock &5 55XV EF E 2 K 37 2B HY 5 X 28 [A] 2N A &) I B
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO X FriRBEME R SA R SR IBEFH MBI E K
or, which were recorded in the register to be kept by the Company under  {fl £ 336 &LV A AR BFENE LT HER
section 336 of the SFO: HIAE :

(i) Long Position in the Shares and underlying () RBRAREBERONEFS

Shares
Number of
Shares/ Approximate
underlying  percentage of
Name of Substantial Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held shareholding
RS IRFEREK
FTERRER B EEMtE HERGEE ADk
Zedra Trust Company (Singapore) Limited Trustee™ 970,534,633(L) 65.37%
(formerly known as BNP Paribas Singapore ZEA
Trust Corporation Limited)
Zedra Trust Company (Singapore) Limited (Al 7% BNP
Paribas Singapore Trust Corporation Limited)
King River Developments Limited Interest of controlled corporation”  970,534,633(L) 65.37%
ZEHEEER
Longevity Investment Holding Limited Beneficial owner!” 422,872,512(L) 28.48%
EmERAY
Lightway Power Holdings Limited Beneficial owner!" 534,462,121(L) 36.00%
BEmERAY
Notes: B
1. King River Developments Limited is deemed to be respectively interested in 1. King River Developments Limited # 1% 4 5 i@ &
422,872,512 Shares, 534,462,121 Shares and 13,200,000 Shares (totally P Longevity Investment Holding Limited, Lightway
970,534,633 Shares) through its control over Longevity Investment Holding Power Holdings Limited 52 Harvest Oak Holdings
Limited, Lightway Power Holdings Limited and Harvest Oak Holdings Limited &) 22 il # - i 9 5l 7 422,872,512 % X
Limited, and Zedra Trust Company (Singapore) Limited (formerly known as 15 534,462,121 i% P& 15 5. 13,200,0000% i& 17 (&
BNP Paribas Singapore Trust Corporation Limited) is deemed to be 51970,534,633 /% B 1) ¥ A # &+ K Zedra
interested in 970,534,633 Shares through its control over King River Trust Company (Singapore) Limited ( Al T BNP
Developments Limited, and Mr. Wei Shaojun is deemed to be interested in Paribas Singapore Trust Corporation Limited ) %%
970,534,633 Shares as a founder of the discretionary trust. 18 B & 1B E R King River Developments Limited
B 122 I #E 72 070,534,633 R AR 17 7 7 A 4 2= -
MBLELEERRBELARIAN)ERA
970,634,633 A& 17 R HE B #E = o
2. The letter “L” denotes the long position in Shares. 2. FEILIRTRROKLEFER -
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Save as disclosed above, and as at 31 December 2021, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief executive of
the Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which would be
required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During the Reporting Period, the Company was not involved in any litigation
or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim of material
importance is known to the Directors to be pending or threatened against
the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company’s Articles of Association provide that each Director or other
officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his or her office or
In addition, the Company has arranged
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance in respect of relevant
legal actions against the Directors.

otherwise in relation thereto.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”), comprising
the three independent non-executive Directors, has reviewed the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
together with the management and the external auditor of the Company.
The Audit Committee is of the opinion that such statements have complied
with the applicable accounting standards, and the disclosures required by
the Stock Exchange and other relevant legal requirements, and that
adequate disclosures have been made.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal information on the corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” of this annual report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital, being the prescribed minimum percentage of public float
approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted under the Listing Rules,
are held by the public at all times during the Reporting Period and as of the
date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Reporting Period prepared in
accordance with IFRS were audited by BDO Limited (“BDO”) who shall
retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming
Meeting of the Company.

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

The Group did not have any significant post-period events after 31
December 2021 and up to the date of this report.

By order of the Board

Wei Qiang
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hebei Province, the PRC, 29 March 2022

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited Annual Report 2021

RHAAREFRE

REARBARABEMRBEEZMAAM KA
BEPRRRBEAFHAY ARFADHTR
K@ E D25% (BN B ATt & & £ AR Bl
AFNITAKEARFRE) EALARAL
KA -

¥ B4
RAGREHEREBEVBHRELUFGRNE
EMBBRREABTELGERERETMELME

BRAR(TEENEZ LEHERE AFTEER
EEERARBEERNE LEER -

REHRER

KEEBR -_ZE-_—F+_AF=+—HERHZ
AfE AT EA R ERIPEEE-

REEZMm

TERITHAAZ
E

mBEIdEE —E-—F=A=+hH



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report in this
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2021.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of Shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Company has complied with the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules during the Reporting Period, except for code provision C.2.1
relating to the role of chairman and chief executive officer. Details of such
deviation and explanation are set out on the section headed “Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer” below.

The Company will continue to review and enhance its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code. Set out
below is detailed discussion of the corporate governance practices
adopted and observed by the Company for the Reporting Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board of Directors

The Board currently consists of five Directors with a combination of one
executive Director, one non-executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors. During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
report, the composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wei Qiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Dr. Liu Zhengang (resigned on 29 January 2021)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Wei Shaojun

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Han Qinchun

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John

Mr. Han Xiaoping

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report. Save as
disclosed in this annual report, the Directors do not have any other
relationships with any Directors, senior management or substantial or
controlling Shareholders of the Company.
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All Directors have carried out duties in good faith and in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, and have acted in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify the
Group’s Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Functions of the Board

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the Board,
which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of the Company
and the Directors are collectively responsible for promoting the long term
success of the Group by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs
and overseeing the achievement of strategic plans to enhance
Shareholders’ value. The Directors are aware of their duties to act in good
faith and expected to make decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company.

The principal functions of the Board are to:

(i) convene general meetings and report the Board’s work at general
meetings;

(i) implement the resolutions passed by the Shareholders in general
meetings;

(i)  consider and approve strategies, financial objectives, annual budget,
investment proposals of the Group;

(iv)  approve and authorise material transactions, including acquisition,
investment, disposal of assets (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests);

(v)  formulate the proposals for profit distributions;

(vi)  assume the responsibilities of corporate governance of the Group;

(vi)  establish and review the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems through the Audit Committee; and

(viiiy  exercise other powers, functions and duties conferred by the
Shareholders in general meetings.
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The senior management is delegated with the authority and responsibilities
by the Board for the day-to-day management and operations of the Group.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the management. The Board meets regularly
to review the financial and operating performance of the Company, and
considers and approves the overall strategies and policies of the Company.

All Directors have separate access to the management and are provided
with full and timely information about the conduct of the business and
operation of the Group. A monthly report containing significant events and
latest development of the Group was provided to all Directors. Upon
request by the Board, independent professional advice will be available to
the Directors to facilitate the decision-making process.

During the Reporting Period, the Board has regularly reviewed the
contributions from the Directors and confirmed that they have spent
sufficient time performing their responsibilities.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Under the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Mr. Wei Qiang, an executive Director, is the chief executive officer and the
chairman of the Board. According to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code,
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The Board is of the
opinion that vesting the roles of both the chairman and the chief executive
officer in the same person could improve the Company’s effectiveness and
efficiency in reaching its business goals. The Board also believes that this
arrangement will not be detrimental to the balance of power and authority
between the chairman and the chief executive officer, while a higher ratio of
non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
will enable the Board to make unbiased judgments more effectively and
provide sufficient supervision to protect the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. After making specific enquiry, all of the Directors who held
their office during the Reporting Period have confirmed that they had
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout
the Reporting Period.

The Company has also adopted its own code of conduct regarding
employees’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the
standard set out in the Model Code for the compliance by its relevant
employees who are likely to be in possession of inside information of the
Company in respect of their dealings in the Company’s securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and code of conduct applicable to
employees and Directors, reviewing and monitoring training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management and the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, as well as reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board has reviewed corporate governance practices of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2021 and this corporate governance
report. It will continue to review, monitor and improve the policies and
practices of the Company for the purpose of ensuring the compliance of
the CG Code and maintaining a high standard of corporate governance.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive Directors. The
Board considers that all independent non-executive Directors have
appropriate and sufficient industry, professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise to carry out their duties so as to
protect the interests of Shareholders. Under Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, listed issuers are required to appoint independent non-executive
directors representing at least one-third of the Board. The Company has
three independent non-executive Directors currently representing more
than one-third of the Board and therefore, the Company has complied with
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

Prior to their respective appointment, each of the independent non-
executive Directors has submitted a written statement to the Stock
Exchange confirming their independence and has undertaken to inform the
Stock Exchange as soon as practicable if there is any subsequent change
of circumstances which may affect their independence. The Company has
also received a written confirmation from each of the independent non-
executive Directors in respect of their independence in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers that all independent
non-executive Directors are being considered to be independent by
reference to the factors stated in the Listing Rules.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. Wei Qiang, the chairman of the Board,
held a meeting with the independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of other Directors.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have brought
a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company.

As regards the CG code provision requiring directors to disclose the
number and nature of the offices held in public companies and
organisations and other significant commitments as well as their identity
and the time involved to the issuer, Directors have agreed to disclose their
commitments to the Company in a timely manner.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF THE
DIRECTORS

Each of the Directors has been appointed for a specific term of three years,
subject to the provisions on Directors’ retirement as set out in the Articles
of Association and none of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation). All Directors appointed
by the Board shall hold office only until the next general meeting of the
Company (in the case of filing a casual vacancy) or until the next annual
general meeting of the Company (in the case of an addition to the Board),
and every Director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Pursuant to the article 108(a) of the Articles of Association, at each annual
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but
not less than one-third, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

Mr. Wei Shaojun and Dr. Han Qinchun will retire from office as Directors at
the forthcoming Meeting, and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-
election.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors are set out in the Articles of Association.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee (the “Nomination Committee”) is responsible
for reviewing the Board composition and making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-election of Directors and succession
planning for Directors. The Company adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) which can be downloaded from the Company’s
website. A summary of the Nomination Policy is set out below:

1. Purpose

To ensure that Board members have the skills, experiences and
diverse perspectives needed by the Company’s business.
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Selection Principle

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate:

O

7

The Company’s development strategy needs;

Reputation for integrity;

Achievements and experiences in the Company’s major
business;

Time devotion and the representation of relevant beneficial
parties;

Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (has to be aged 18 or older), cultural and educational
background, professional experiences, skills, knowledge and
management experiences;

Directorship in other public companies and corporate
governance structures of those companies, etc; and

Independence (for independent non-executive Director).

These factors are for references only and excluded to be exhaustive
and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the discretion to
nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.

Nomination Procedure

3.1

3.2

3.3

The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call a meeting
of the Nomination Committee and invite nominations of
candidates from Board members if any, for consideration by
the Nomination Committee prior to its meeting. The Nomination
Committee may also put forward candidates who are not
nominated by Board members.

For filing a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall
propose candidates for the Board’s consideration and
approval. For proposing candidates to stand for election at a
general meeting of the Company, the Nomination Committee
shall make nominations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation.

The nominated candidate(s) shall not assume that he/she has
been proposed by the Board to stand for election at the
general meeting of the Company until a circular to the
Shareholders is issued.
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3.4

3.5

In order to provide information of the candidate(s) nominated
by the Board stand for election at general meeting of the
Company, the Company will issue a circular to the
Shareholders stating the candidate’s name, resume (including
qualifications and relevant experiences), proposed
remuneration, and other information required in accordance
with applicable law, rules and regulation.

For independent non-executive Director, in addition to the
information listed in clause 3.4 above, the followings should
also be specified in the Shareholders’ circular:

(1) Process used to identify the individual, reason why the
Board considers that individual should be elected, and
reason why the Board considers that individual is
independent;

(2)  If the nominated independent non-executive Director will
serve as a Director for the seventh (or more) public listed
companies, the reason why the Board believes this
individual can still devote enough time to fulfil his/her
director’s responsibilities;

(8) Views and perspectives, skills and experiences that
individual can bring to the Board;

(4)  How will this individual promote diversity of the Board;
and

(5)  Other contents that applicable laws, regulations, listing
rules and regulatory bodies required.

4. Responsibility
The ultimate responsibility for selecting and appointing Directors is
shared by all Directors of the Company.

5. Monitoring and Reviewing

5.1

5.2

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing
composition of the Board and succession plan of the Board,
and conduct a review annually.

The Nomination Committee should regularly monitor and
review formal procedures for the Nomination Policy to ensure
that the Nomination Policy is tailored to the needs of the
Company and reflects current regulatory requirement and
good governance practices.
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THE BOARD COMMITTEES

(1) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 22 November 2011. The
Audit Committee currently comprises three members, namely Mr.
Wong Yik Chung, John (Chairman), Dr. Han Qinchun and Mr. Han
Xiaoping, all of the members are independent non-executive
Directors. The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year with
the Company’s external auditors regarding the review of the
Company’s financial report and accounts.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and removal of
auditor, review the financial statements, reports and accounts, and
review and monitor the financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control systems. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the Reporting Period.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee adopted by
the Board are in line with the provisions of the CG Code and are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee has held three
meetings and mainly fulfilled the following responsibilities:

—  reviewed and evaluated the resignation of the original auditor,
the appointment, independence and remuneration of the new
auditor, and made recommendations to the Board on these
matters;

— reviewed the audited annual results for the year ended 31
December 2020, discussed the annual results with external
auditors (in the absence of the management of the Company),
and formed the opinion that the relevant financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with the applicable
accounting standards and regulation, and that adequate
disclosures have been made;

— reviewed the unaudited interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2021, and formed the opinion that the relevant
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the applicable accounting standards and regulation, and that
adequate disclosures have been made; and

—  reviewed the effectiveness of risk management and the internal
control systems of the Group.
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XER®RE

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the Reporting Period, the remuneration paid or payable to the
Company’s independent auditor, BDO, in respect of its audit and
non-audit services were as follows:

o S EM {9 % B
RAREHE  MAR BB LE
B EL 1 B T AR BOR A5 2 A 1 7
m

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TF

Type of Services RMB’000 RMB’000
REEE AR®ET R ARBT T
Audit services ZE R 1,800 2,000
Non-audit services FEZ AR 333 -
Total @t 2,133 2,000

The statement of the Company’s independent auditor regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the Reporting Period is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 22 November
2011. The Remuneration Committee comprises three members,
namely Dr. Han Qinchun (Chairman), Mr. Wei Qiang and Mr. Wong
Yik Chung, John, the majority of which are independent non-
executive Directors and one of the members is an executive Director.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the Directors
and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once every year to
discuss remuneration related matters. No Director is allowed to be
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
adopted by the Board are in line with the provisions of the CG Code
and are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited Annual Report 2021

(2

ARRBIZHEMAEHAREHAEER
BERRSAVBERRNBRITEZHAN
MAFRBLAZBENRE | —F5 -

yMESS
FMZzBEeR _—_T——F+—A=-+=H
K -FHEZEEmBRFEFTL(ER)
RAETERFREDEE=ZFMEBEMAK K
MOKERBILIFATES  Hh—HK
BERATES -

FHZEeN T ERERAREERSRE
BEEMNFMAESSRHERRZS -

Pz EeeFAZLRIT - REFENUR
WEHENEEEE ERNEFHTF2EE
EERANH M -

ExgMRMNFHZEcEmBEaE
NAahREBRTAMNKRX  XAIRARA
R Bk ZZ P A 1081 %8 o



(3)

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting, passed two written resolutions and mainly fulfilled the
following responsibilities:

— reviewed the remuneration policies of the Group for 2021 and
reviewed the remuneration package for executive Directors
and the senior management personnel; and

—  assessed the vesting of the share options granted by the
Company in previous years.

For the Reporting Period, the remuneration of the five highest paid
individuals of the Group, including those Directors as disclosed in
note 37 to the audited consolidated financial statements in this
annual report, was within the following bands:
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e E AE AEL
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000% 7T 5 4

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

1,000,001 % 7T & 1,500,000 % 7T

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 22 November 2011.
The Nomination Committee comprises three members, namely Mr.
Wei Qiang (Chairman), Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John and Mr. Han
Xiaoping, the majority of which are independent non-executive
Directors and one of the members is an executive Director.

The primary duty of the Nomination Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies
on the Board and senior management and to ensure that the
candidates to be nominated as Directors are experienced, high
calibre individuals.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once every year for
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board, assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors and
other related matters. In reviewing and recommending the
appointment of new Directors, the Nomination Committee would
seek to identify the competencies required to enable the Board to
fulfill its responsibilities. The resume or documents of the nominee or
candidate will be given to the Nomination Committee for
consideration.
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The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee adopted
by the Board are in line with the provisions of the CG Code and are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee has held
one meeting, and mainly fulfilled the following responsibilities:

— reviewed the structure, composition of the Board and the
Board diversity policy;

— made recommendations regarding the re-election of retiring
Directors at the 2021 annual general meeting; and

— assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance. With a view to achieving a
sustainable and balanced development, the Company sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against appropriate criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board. The Board diversity policy (the “Diversity Policy”)
adopted aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. A
summary of the Diversity Policy is set out below:

1. Selection Criteria

Selection will be based on a range of diversity, including but not
limited to gender, age (has to be aged 18 or older), cultural and
educational background, professional experiences, skills, knowledge
and management experiences. When appointing Board members,
the principle is to comply with Company’s development, and the
benefit of diversity of Board members should also fully taken into
account.

2. Measurable Objectives
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experiences, skills, knowledge
and management experiences. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.
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Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will report composition of the Board on
diversification prospect (including gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experiences, skills, knowledge
and management experiences) in the “Corporate Governance
Report” and monitor implementation of the Diversity Policy.

Review of the Diversity Policy

The Nomination Committee will review the Diversity Policy in a timely
manner to ensure that the Diversity Policy is effective. The
Nomination Committee will discuss any amendments that need to be
made and then propose amendments to the Board for approval.

Disclosure of the Diversity Policy
The Diversity Policy is posted on the website of the Company for
public review.

The summary of the Diversity Policy and measurable objectives and
compliance schedules established to implement the Diversity Policy
will be disclosed annually in the Corporate Governance Report.

For the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy, the following
measurable objectives have been adopted:

(@ in terms of professional background, the executive Directors
have more than ten years of experience in the clean energy
sector. The non-executive Director has more than 20 years of
experience in corporate management. The occupational
backgrounds and professional skills of the independent non-
executive Directors cover professional accountants, investment
and financing and clean energy and have more than 20 years
of experience in their industry;

(b) in terms of a regional perspective, the background of the
Directors covers Hong Kong and Mainland China with different
cultural backgrounds; and

() at least 1/3 of the Board members are independent non-
executive Directors.
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The Nomination Committee believes that the current composition of
the Board is balanced and diversified with the high-calibre members
from different cultural backgrounds and possessing professional
expertise of various industries, which indicates that the Diversity
Policy has been well implemented.

The Board will choose to increase the proportion of female members
when it selects and recommends suitable candidates for Board
appointment. The Board will ensure an appropriate balance of
gender diversity with reference to stakeholder expectations and
recommended best practices at home and abroad, with the ultimate
goal of achieving gender equality on the Board.

BOARD MEETING AND ATTENDANCE
RECORD

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding Board meetings regularly, at
least four times a year, and more frequently as the needs of the business
demand. The Directors can attend meetings in person or by means of such
telephone, electronic or other communication facilities so as to permit all
persons participating in the meeting to communicate with each other
simultaneously and instantaneously, and participation in such meeting shall
constitute presence in person at such meetings in accordance with Article
133 of the Articles of Association.

The Board and Committees’ meeting schedule and the agenda of each
meeting are made available to Directors in advance. Notices of regular
Board meetings were served to all Directors at least 14 days before the
meetings. For all other Board and Committees’ meetings, reasonable
notices were given. Papers for Board meetings or Committees’ meetings
together with all relevant information are sent to all Directors or Committee
members at least three days before each meeting to enable them to make
informed decisions with adequate data.

All Directors will also be provided with sufficient resources to perform their
duties, and upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense. All minutes of Board meetings will be recorded in
sufficient detail, including matters considered and decisions reached by the
Board.
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Meetings held and Attendance

The Board held five Board meetings during the Reporting Period. The
composition of the Board and the Committees, the attendance records of
the Directors at the Board meetings, committees meetings and general
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meetings during the Reporting Period are set out below: IR :
Audit Remuneration Nomination Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee general
Name of Directors meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
EEg ENKZEE FHZEEE REZES R R B F
BEEns =i = = = rE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wei Qiang BRI E
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (FEFTEHAEH) 4/5 N/ATN i3 A 11 11 1/
Dr. Liu Zhengang 2R HU Tﬁ =+
(resigned on 29 January 2021) (RZF=Z—F
— A= TN BEE) 1/1 NATER  NATER NATER  NATER
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Wei Shaojun BOBERE 3/5 N/ATN 38 A N/AZ 78 A N/A i F 1/
Independent Non-executive Directors B Y F#HITESE
Dr. Han Qinchun BREEL 5/5 3/3 1/1 N/AZ i A 1/1
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John BRBLEE 5/5 3/3 11 11 1/
Mr. Han Xiaoping BETEE 4/5 2/3 N/A i 1/1 1/1

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Upon their appointments, Directors are advised on the legal and other
duties and obligations they have as directors of a listed company. Each
newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive induction package
designed to enhance his/her knowledge and understanding of the Group’s
culture and operations. Discussion sessions with key management
personnel are also held.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, we have arranged trainings
which were presented by professional firms to the Directors. Through the
course of their directorship, the company secretary of the Company also
from time to time updated and provided written training material relating to
the roles, functions and duties of a director and all the aforesaid Directors
studied such materials. All Directors are also encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expense.
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We have maintained record of the continuous professional development
participated by the Directors. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the current Directors received the following training with an emphasis on
the role, functions and responsibilities of directors of listed companies

BMRBTES2AFBESERRENLR-
REBEEZT-_—F+-_A=+—HLEFE &
FESEREFEISREEME  EXUT
ERERLETAREENAC BERBEN

through attending training sessions and reading materials: =3 -
Reading
materials/
regulatory Attending
updates/ training
Name of Director monthly reports sessions
REME
EEEHREN
= BE®E HEEIE
Mr. Wei Qiang Rk A& v v
Dr. Liu Zhengang 24 Wl 15+
(resigned on 29 January 2021) (R—ZF—-——4F—H =+ HEHT) v N/A7 & A
Mr. Wei Shaojun BRLOBERE v v
Dr. Han Qinchun BRAEBLT v v
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John EBEBRALHE 4 v
Mr. Han Xiaoping SREEF LA v v
DIVIDEND POLICY KB B
The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Policy”) which can be ZARXA T EHMKERE ([ZBE])  ZHFEaR

downloaded from the Company’s website (www.longitech.hk).

1. Purpose

The Policy is made under the premises that the Company fully
considers and guards the interests of all Shareholders, and starts
from actual business operation, and on the basis of the Company’s
various expenditures, maintaining financial stability and autonomy,
and realizing the Company’s sustained, stable and healthy
development.
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2. Policy

2.1

2.2

2.3

Under the Policy, the Board will consider factors such as the
Company’s annual performance, cash flow performance,
future financing needs, major capital expenditures, business
industrial development trends, the
Company’s development stage and strategic planning etc,. in
order to decided on cash dividend or stock dividend.

operating model,

Subject to applicable laws and regulations and the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles of Association”), the Company may pay out cash
dividends when the Company’s distributable profit is positive
and the Company’s cash flow can cover the Company’s daily
operation and sustainable development requirement. When the
Company pays out cash dividend, the proportion of cash
dividend should be or not less than 20%-50% of the given
year’'s distributable profit attributable to Shareholders. This
should serve as a general but not mandatory standard for the
Board when considering paying out dividend.

In complying with the requirements of the applicable laws,
rules and regulations and the Articles of Association and in
order to ensure the Company in maintaining a reasonable
share capital and shareholding structure, in the case the
Company’s attributable profit is positive, the Company may
issue scrip dividend, so as to reward the Shareholders for
investment, to share the profit of the Company and to maintain
the valuation of the Company’s stock within a reasonable
range.

Review

The Board will review the Policy on a regular basis to ensure that the

Policy is in line with market practice and supports the Company’s

continuous development strategy.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group’s financial
statements for each financial period, which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules, the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and applicable
accounting standard. The Company deploys appropriate and sufficient
resources to prepare audited accounts. In preparing the financial
statements for the Reporting Period, the Board has selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments and
estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis. The Directors are responsible for
taking all reasonable and necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the
Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. In addition,
the Company provides all members of the Board with monthly updates on
the Company’s performance, position and prospects.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Risk Management Structure

The Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control system, and regularly
assessing and continuously supervising its effectiveness to safeguard the
overall interests of the Group and its Shareholders, and to foster the
sustainable development of the Group. However, the risk management and
internal control system formulated by the Group aims to manage, instead
of eliminate, all risks exposed to the Group. Such system cannot
completely eliminate inherent limitations such as unpredictable risks and
events beyond control (e.g. natural disasters, fraud and judgment errors),
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited Annual Report 2021
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The Group established an Enterprise Risk Management (the “ERM”)
framework to implement effective risk management. Our risk management
structure is simple and clear, with a defined scope of duties.

Board of Directors

As a body in charge of the Group’s risk management and internal control
system, the Board is responsible for the setting up of clear ERM framework
and risk management policies, aiming to assess and evaluate the business
strategies of the Group and its degree of risk tolerance. With the support of
the Audit Committee, whose authority has been delegated by the Board,
the Board constantly monitors the risk management and internal control
system of the Group, as well as conducts review as to its effectiveness at
least once year.

Audit Committee

As the highest body, second only to the Board, being responsible for the
risk management and internal control system, the Audit Committee
provides advice and support in respect of all risk matters, including on-
going monitoring of the implementation of risk management procedures,
reviewing the Group’s list of major risk exposures, reviewing and approving
the internal control review plans and results.

Management

The management of the Group is responsible for identifying and
continuously monitoring strategic, operational, financial, reporting and
compliance risks associated with the daily operations of the Group. The
management reports to the Board and the Audit Committee on relevant
risks and their changes. The management also designs, formulates and
implements various internal control measures to mitigate the risks, and
rectify internal control deficiencies they identified in a timely manner.

Internal Audit Department and External Team

The Company has an internal audit department, which carried out the
analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems and directly
reported the review results to the Audit Committee. The auditor of the
Company is also able to communicate to the Audit Committee directly any
internal control issues they noticed during their audit process.
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Risk Management Procedures

The Group has established the ERM framework so as to effectively manage
all kinds of risks exposed to the Group. The ERM framework defined the
procedures for identifying, assessing, responding to and monitoring risks
and their changes. Through regular discussions with each operating
function, the Group strengthened the understanding of risk management
so that all employees will understand and report the risks timely which
enhanced the Group’s ability to identify and manage risks.

In the course of risk identification, the management liaises with each
operating function, collects significant risk factors that affect the Group
from the bottom to the top, in various aspects including strategies,
operational and financial matters, reporting and compliances. After
establishing risk assessment scope, the management will assess the
potential impact and possibilities of the risks and prioritise the risks, and
make appropriate internal control measures are then developed to mitigate
the risks identified and monitor the changes of risks in an on-going manner.

Risk Management System

The Group’s risk management system is guided by the three lines of
defence:

The first line of defence — Maintain an effective internal
control system (operational level)

The Group has set up a Risk Management Executive Team, comprising
functional centres, various business departments and all staff. In the course
of their daily operations, the functional centres, business segments and
individuals execute the risk management strategies of the Group, gather
risks in a timely manner based on the changes in the business and give the
Risk Management Leading Team feedback on the risks. The Risk
Management Leading Team revises and optimizes the risk management
system to confine risk management of the Group to the first line of defence.

The major strategies of risk management of the Group include: establish
clear internal control policies and procedures, clearly define the
responsibilities, authorities and accountabilities of each key position;
establish code of conduct, convey to all employee the Group’s
requirements on integrity and ethic; establish whistle blowing mechanism,
encourage employees to report incidents of misconduct or fraud; establish
appropriate level of information technology assess rights, avoid leakage of
price sensitive information; and establish inside information disclosure
policy, including reporting channels and responsible person of disclosure,
unified response to external enquiries and obtain advice from professional
financial advisors or the Stock Exchange, if necessary.
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In 2021,
policies and procedures, including those related to financial reporting and
Listing Rules compliance and the management also conveyed confirmation
of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems to
the Board and the Audit Committee. The Board has considered the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions when reviewing risk management and internal control
procedures.

the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of internal control

The second line of defence — On-going risk monitoring
(risk management level)

The Group has set up a Risk Management Leading Team, comprising the
president, the vice-president and the directors of different centres. The Risk
Management Leading Team based on risk management framework and
risk management policies established by the Board designs, implements
and supervises the risk management system to identify, communicate and
assess the significant risks for the Group, and liaise with each operating
function and collect significant risk information that affects the Group from
the bottom to the top and continually monitors changes in risks.

The Group has established a risk register to record the risks identified, the
management will regularly assess the potential impact and possibilities of
each major risk and formulate relevant internal control measures.

The third line of defence — Annual review (Board level)

The Board and the Audit Committee under the Board, which make up the
third line of defence, are responsible for assessing and determining the
nature and level of risks the Group is willing to take in achieving its strategic
objectives, ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems, and
supervising the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis.

For 2021, the internal audit department of the Company has completed the
analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems for the
Reporting Period and has reported the review results to the Audit
Committee.

The management has established remediation and improvement plan for
internal control weaknesses identified. Nothing has come to the Audit
Committee’s or Board’s attention to believe that risk management and
internal control systems of the Group are inadequate or ineffective.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Risks and uncertainties involved in the business operations of the Group
may affect the Group’s financial conditions or growth prospects. In dealing
with these risk factors and uncertainties, the Group focuses on the control
of risks and uncertainties with the aim of understanding and addressing the
concerns of stakeholders. Such factors are by no means exhaustive or
comprehensive, and there may be other risks in addition to those shown
below which are not known to the Group or which may not be material now
but could turn out to be material in the future.

The key risks and uncertainties affecting the Group for 2021 are
summarized below.

Industry and Policy Risk

The Group’s smart energy business, particularly the household solar power
generation systems business, and public infrastructure construction
business are all located in the PRC. Performance of the Company’s
principal businesses will also be significantly affected by the government’s
policy in respect of clean energy, the extent of subsidy and adjustments, as
well as the planning and storage progress of local land by the Baoding
Government. If the Group fails to grasp and judge macroeconomic and
national policy changes, and adjust its operational strategies in time, the
business development of the Group and realisation of its operation targets
may be affected.

Countermeasures:

° the management continued to focus on the overall economic and
industrial policy changes and conducted analysis, research and
prediction of macro-economic conditions, government policies and
industrial policies and timely adjust business development strategies
according to the industry and policy changes.

Capital Risk

Smart energy and public infrastructure construction businesses require
large capital investment. Financing ability and financing cost of the Group
depend on global economic condition, interest rates and banks’ credit
policy as well as its own financial performance. The Group cannot
guarantee that credit line, cost and terms can be obtained according to the
Group’s preference or project needs, which may affect the expected
returns of business and projects. In addition, the Group cannot guarantee
that it can recover its receivables and the external investment of the Group
in time and in full. The Group’s profit and cash flow may therefore be
significantly and adversely affected.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited Annual Report 2021
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Countermeasures:

° strengthened cooperation with banks and external financing
institutions, adopted diversified financing methods to minimise the
Group’s financial costs;

° strengthened the overall management of funds, specified the
standards for each cost and expense item and strengthened budget
management during the daily operational management process; and

° established the collection mechanism of receivables to follow up the
recovery progress of external investment funds in a timely manner,
and, when necessary, took measures such as litigation and
preservation to recover the funds.

Raw Material Price Fluctuation Risk

The Group’s household solar power generation system business uses raw
materials including components, inverters, brackets and grid connected
cabinets, etc. Components make up the largest proportion of procurement
costs. Therefore, photovoltaic component prices have greater impact on
the cost of the household solar power generation systems business. Any
significant increase in costs of components and other raw materials in the
future will adversely affect the Group’s procurement of raw materials and
control over costs, which will in turn have direct impact on the financial
performance of the Group.

Countermeasures:

° Continued to monitor the demand and supply structure and price
dynamics in the industry, prepared early and reasonable procurement
plan according to the development of the Group’s household solar
power generation systems business, locked up the prices and built
up adequate inventories;

° developed a list of qualified suppliers, maintained an information
exchange mechanism and a stable, continued and reliable
partnership with them, and ensured timely supply and the
competitiveness of procurement prices; and

° developed a list of back-up suppliers and engaged those suppliers
when supply was tight to avoid stock shortage.
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Intensifying Market Competition Risk

The Group operates the smart energy business, especially the household
solar power generation systems business, mainly in Hebei market, that
makes it have stronger brand and resource advantages in Hebei province.
In view of the growing clean energy sector and the coming of an era of
solar grid parity, there is an increasing number of state-owned and private
capital entering into the solar power industry, including the household solar
power industry. Market competition is thus intensifying. In the future, if the
Company cannot compete successfully with its own advantages, further
solidify and enhance its market position and effectively respond to the
challenges from competitors, it will face the risks of losing competitive
advantages and decreasing market share.

Countermeasures:

° exercised strict control on product quality, expanded sales channels,
enhanced the service support capability in operation and
maintenance, further increased brand awareness and market share,
and effectively responded to market competition;

° improved management standard, increased operating efficiency,
created a new talent management and incentive system in order to
provide assurance of efficient corporate operation through systems
and mechanisms and ensure the competitiveness of the Group; and

° continued to monitor the industry development momentum and
development dynamics of competitors, and adjusted internal
business development strategy in a timely manner.

Risk Arising From An Extreme Climate

Typhoon, hail and flood disasters caused by heavy rainfall may lead to
damage to components, increase the risk of operation and maintenance
and inspection, and cause safety accidents in serious cases to endanger
the safety of employees or surrounding communities; Abnormal rainy
weather affects the electricity generation, and then affects the sales amount
of electricity and revenue from power generation ;At the same time, the
extreme high temperature weather and temperature rise significantly, which
is prone to fire and also increases the risk of heat stroke for outdoor
workers.
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Countermeasures:

o Establish an emergency management mechanism and formulate
emergency plans for possible emergencies caused by typhoon, hail
and flood disasters, organize targeted safety inspection and
reinforcement measures focusing on wind prevention and flood
control;

° Accurately evaluate and calculate insurance types based on years of
accidental operation and maintenance failure data, purchase relevant
insurance for power plants, and transfer risks and damages that may
be caused by extreme weather;

° Conduct 24-hour real-time monitoring through the centralized
operation and maintenance platform, effectively identify the abnormal
conditions, improve operation and maintenance efficiency, and
reduce the impact of abnormal rainy weather on power generation;
and

° Implement high temperature operation specification requirements in
high temperature weather, ensure the health of employees by
adjusting operation arrangements, controlling outdoor operation
hours, ensuring adequate rest and distributing heat cooling items
and health care products.

INSIDE INFORMATION MANAGEMENT

The Group’s procedure and internal control measures regarding the
handling and dissemination of inside information are listed below:

° The Group is aware of its obligations under the disclosure
requirements under the Listing Rules and the Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information issued by the Securities and Futures
Commission in June 2012. The overriding principle is for the Group
to make an announcement as soon as any inside information comes
to the attention of the Group or the Group makes any decision based
on such information.
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° The Company has formulated its own Guidelines on Management
and Disclosure of Inside Information in accordance with the Listing
Rules and the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information,
clarifying the organization for managing inside information within the
Company and the processes for reporting and disclosing inside
information, and ensuring that Board members, the senior
management personnel and specific executive personnel with access
to price-sensitive and/or inside information by reason of their position
or employment at the Company or its subsidiaries are in strict
compliance with the relevant regulations and guidelines.

° By way of financial reports, announcements and its website, the
Group discloses information to the public in an extensive and non-
exclusive manner to implement and disclose its fair disclosure policy.

o In the course of communicating with any organization or individual
regarding the Company’s operating condition, financial condition and
other operating developments in a variety of formats, including
presentations on results, analyst presentations, roadshows and the
reception of investors for their research purposes, the Company
designates a specific executing entity for information disclosure.

° The Company has formulated its Confidentiality Protocol, expressly
prohibiting any unauthorized use of confidential information or inside
information. At the same time, staff members are required to sign a
confidentiality agreement during induction, which means they are
expected to take upon themselves the duty of confidentiality when
they start their job.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a corporate
culture of openness, probity and accountability. Apart from setting up “Anti-
Fraud, Anti-Corruption and Anti-Bribery Policy”, a “Whistleblowing Policy” is
also in place to create a system for the employees and business partners
to report to the Audit Committee and the Board about possible
improprieties relating to the Group. The identity of whistleblowers will be
treated with the strictest confidence.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Zou Yanhong (“Ms. Zou”) is the company secretary of the Company.
Ms. Zou is the director of securities affairs department of the Company and
is also responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance matters
and ensuring that the Board policy and procedures, and the applicable
laws, rules and regulations are followed.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, Ms. Zou has undertaken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training respectively in compliance
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear, timely and
effective communication with Shareholders and investors. The Company
has adopted its “Shareholders Communication Policy” with an aim to
ensure our Shareholders are provided with ready, equal and timely access
to balanced and understandable information about the Company (including
the Group’s financial performance, strategic goals and plans, material
developments, governance and risk profile), in order to enable our
Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow
our Shareholders to engage actively with the Company.

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and
comprehensive and transparent reporting of its performance and activities,
including issue/publication of, among others, annual report and interim
report, announcement, circular and press release in both English and
Chinese, in order to provide our Shareholders and the capital market with the
Company’s latest development, these information are posted and made
available for downloading at the Company’s website (www.longitech.hk).

Annual general meeting (“AGM”) provides a constructive forum to maintain
communication with Shareholders, and Shareholders are encouraged to
attend AGM to ensure a high level of accountability and allow our
Shareholders to understand the strategy and development of the Group.
The Company will arrange the Chairman of the Board and the respective
chairman of each of the Board Committees, or if faiing so due to
unexpected and/or uncontrollable reasons, his/their duly appointed
delegate(s), to attend the general meetings to exchange views with
Shareholders and answer their questions. All Directors are encouraged to
attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the view
of Shareholders.
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The external auditor will also be invited to attend AGM of the Company to
answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and
content of the auditors’ report, the accounting policies and auditor’s
independence.

Notice of AGM is distributed to all Shareholders at least 21 days prior to
such AGM and the accompanying circular also sets out details of each
proposed resolution and other relevant information as required under the
Listing Rules. Separate resolutions are proposed on each substantially
separate issue, including the election or re-election of each Director
nominated.

To ensure the votes cast are properly counted and recorded, it is the
practice of the Company to appoint representatives of its branch share
registrar as scrutineer of the voting procedures in general meetings.

Therefore, the Board considers that the Company’s Shareholders
communication policy is still valid.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each issue at Shareholder meetings, including the election of
individual directors.

At any general meetings, a resolution put to vote of the meeting shall be
decided by way of a poll except where a show of hands is allowed under
the Listing Rules and the results of voting by poll will be declared at the
meeting and published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively pursuant to the Listing Rules. At the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 28 May 2021, all resolutions, including
the approval of the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020, were
passed by poll by the Shareholders.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited Annual Report 2021

SNSZBUEN R BB FE AR RN REREF A
T OEAMEBESIE GEZBEMES RER
B B BERRZEE N B L IEERE -

BEREAFASBESERNRREAFAGRTANE
D21 BIRE T A BIR - M BE B 2 8 K 7R 51 A
BERABRZFABRZ(LETRADER 2 H A
FHREN SRERBUNZRHERZEZRS
VYRBR BRESIEREZERZES -

RERMBAZBHZEMHE R AAAAE
A—REZEEBRNDBPELORBNARER W
EERRRERREFNEREA -

At EFERR/ARANCRERBABEEK)
B

IR R BRI

ARERROEZREN ARFAHRBEEKX
EINBRFR(BRERENER)RSR

RFBER

EEAMBRRASE BRIFLTRAUAFUETF
TARR BRARERENRBRBUARES
ARR MBEEFRRERHR G EEM - UARIR
15 £ AR B0 Bl B A2 P R A X R A8 A A A e
RIZBE-—FHAA -+t NBETHEARAKREK
BFEAGLE BRRUKRESTABBEHRER
(B ERARARAREBE_T _TF+—
A=t RALFENKEREAMBERE) -



Convening of extraordinary general meeting and
putting forward proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a general
meeting according to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws
of Hong Kong) and the Articles of Association of the Company. According
to Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company, extraordinary
general meetings shall also be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting
at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board
or the company secretary of the Company for the purpose of requiring an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held
within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director, Article 113 of the
Articles of Association of the Company stipulates that no person, other
than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Board for
election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at any general
meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to propose that person for
election as a Director and notice in writing by that person of his willingness
to be elected shall have been lodged at the Head Office or at the
Registration Office. The period for lodgment of the notices required under
the Article will commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting and the minimum
length of the period during which such notices to the Company may be
given will be at least seven days. The procedures for Shareholders to
propose a person for election as a director are available on the website of
the Company.

Enquiries

Shareholders may directly enquire about their shareholdings to the
Company’s share registrar. To the extent the requisite information of the
Company is publicly available, Shareholders of the Company and the
investment community may write to the Company Secretary by post at
Room 1231, 12/F., China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wan
Chai, Hong Kong or by email at investor@longitech.hk.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

During the Reporting Period, there is no significant change in constitutional
documents of the Company.
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|IBDO

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
EEE : +852 2218 8288 HETHEER11158
{5H : +852 2815 2239 KERHI251

www.bdo.com.hk

To the Shareholders of Longitech Smart Energy Holding Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of LongiTech Smart
Energy Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) set out on pages 81 to 191, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2021 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flow for the year ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the “Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”)’s “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited Annual Report 2021
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Recoverability of trade receivables

Key Audit Matter
Refer to note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the gross carrying amount of trade receivables
amounted to RMB385,258,000, with loss allowance amounting to
RMB205,701,000.

The Group assesses expected credit loss allowances (“‘ECL”) of trade
receivables using credit risk exposure and expected credit loss rates. The
Group assesses the expected credit losses on a forward looking basis.
When measuring expected credit losses, the Group considers historical
loss rates, current market conditions and available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information, including economic policies,
macroeconomic indicators, industry risks and changes in debtors’
conditions.

Assessment on the recoverability of trade receivables and the sufficiency of
the related loss allowances for ECL are performed by the management.

In carrying out impairment assessment of trade receivables under the ECL
model, significant management judgement was used to determine the
underlying estimations.

Our response

Our audit procedures included:

° Ascertaining our understanding on the policy and operating
effectiveness on internal controls which oversee credit control, debt
collection and estimate of expected credit loss;

° Assessing on a sample basis, whether items in the trade receivables

aging report were classified within the appropriate aging bracket by
comparing individual items in the report with relevant sales invoices;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Recoverability of trade receivables (continued)

° Assessing the appropriateness of the key input data, on a sample
basis, used by management to develop the historical loss rates and
assessing the sufficiency, reliability and relevance of that data;

° Involving an auditor’s expert to assist us in evaluating and assessing
the appropriateness of the assessment methodologies and the
reasonableness of the key assumptions and estimations used in the
assessment; and

° Discussing with management about the recoverability status of
material overdue balances and assess whether provision is required.

Recoverability of financial assets measured at
amortised cost

Key Audit Matter
Refer to note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the gross carrying amount of financial assets at
amortised cost amounted to RMB134,365,000, with loss allowance
amounting to RMB70,330,000.

The Group took into account reasonable and substantiated historical data
such as principal and interest payment schedule, ageing, repayment
history, financial information of the counterparties, and available forward-
looking information to determine whether the credit risk has significantly
increased since initial recognition and to calculate expected credit losses.

Assessment on the recoverability of financial assets at amortised cost and
the sufficiency of the related loss allowances for ECL are performed by the
management.

In carrying out impairment assessment of financial assets at amortised cost

under the ECL model, significant management judgement was used to
determine the underlying estimations.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited Annual Report 2021
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Recoverability of financial assets measured at
amortised cost (Continued)

Our response
Our audit procedures included:

e Ascertaining our understanding on relevant controls in place on
granting loans to third parties and on management’s assessment on
the recoverability of financial assets at amortised cost;

e Checking the aging analysis, on a sample basis, against repayment
terms set out on loan agreements of the loan receivables, on a sample
basis, to the source documents, including bank statements;

e Assessing the appropriateness of the key input data, on a sample
basis, used by management to develop the historical loss rates and
assessing the sufficiency, reliability and relevance of that data;

* Involving an auditor’s expert to assist us in evaluating and assessing
the appropriateness of the assessment methodologies and the
reasonableness of the key assumptions and estimations used in the
assessment; and

e  Evaluating the historical accuracy of the management’s assessment of
impairment for loan receivables, on a sample basis, by examining the
actual write-offs, the reversal of previous recorded allowance and new
allowances recorded in the current year in respect of loan receivables
at the end of the previous financial year.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT (Continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging
their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited Annual Report 2021
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEM ENTS (Continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
T 3 1% B R

BEMB S M EHRRA
EMNE T @

B XY

FERBREBKFNREF  ETHRERRE
BREAERETHR  EX - EARERRM
TrE RS A BE B3R o SERRPR AL AT LA i HRFF S8R AR
S MRAERH T E R HERERARE
FEGAMBBREAERBES VB REAM
E B0 R TE - BRI BE AY 88 AR R AT 4 AR 1
BXe

ERBEEBREBFEINETENNBRES &
MERTHERHE RETEXEREE - H
(BPINE

o RAMFMHERKFHBRMEBERS M
BRRFEEAHERBANRER R K
HITEFREFARE S LA - LA KRER
REMEENEABE EAEMERED
AR -mRRFAESRER - BE &
BER ERRL  HEBRAMESZ
£ B REE IR EBRFF T E B E K H
R E R SR R AE B IR AR B
B B K $5 AR R &Y LR -

THREARHBOARES  ARFEE
MESREF BEENYHEYE SEXEAM
EHIONBREERER -

e HEEFEMRASHBEMNRBEERED
SR AEEREN SR -

e HEFERAFBCESTERMNBEMIE
&R REBEFERDETBE  BER
BEEREELXBEREENERNTETE
H-RmMARERYE ESENKELE
RNELAEARE WREMBR/RGFHEE
ARAHEE M - B A & 2 7 12 3603 & 12
FEERBEIBRAVBHRR T MK
BE-REAENORETR  AIBMES
RIFEEFREER - KNSR EERZE
AR & B IEPTES BV BT RE - A R
RERLBRAATEER BEXETESE

K&

BEEZNESRRERARAA FH 2021

79



80

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
A% AN RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEM ENTS (Continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Chan Wing Fai

Practising Certificate no. P05443

Hong Kong, 29 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS
A @K

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 =T - —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

2021 2020
—E-—f T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B & ARBTR ARETTT

Revenue W == 5(a) 462,642 396,413
Cost of sales $HE KA 6 (374,988) (309,105)
Gross profit EF 87,654 87,308
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX 6 (18,242) (11,150)
Administrative expenses THRAX 6 (63,622) (40,688)

Reversal of impairment losses/(impairment losses) on 4 & & & 4 & & BB &

financial and contract assets EiEEEOREER) 8 5,735 (3,316)
Other income E A A 9 149 445
Other gains — net H bz % 88 10 994 1,139
Operating profit KE R 12,668 33,738
Finance income BE WA 11 7,048 5,740
Finance expenses RERY 11 (13,338) (21,247)
Finance expenses — net RLE SRR (6,290) (15,507)

Share of net profit/(loss) of associates accounted for £ F # #5745 A BR B Bt =

using the equity method REIMEER (W) MmE 20 2,457 (17,248)
Profit before income tax B Pt 15 %4 A )% F 8,835 983
Income tax expense Fr8 i F X 12 (38,873) (2,240)
Loss for the year FRER (30,038) (1,257)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
ABEBEER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

2021 2020
—E-—f T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B & ARBTR ARETTT

(Loss)/profit is attributable to: AT AL (5 18), % 7 -
Owners of the Company PiN/NETEZF =N (28,221) 1,064
Non-controlling interests FE 12 AR = (1,817) (2,321)

(30,038) (1,257)
(Loss)/earnings per share for (loss)/profit ARATEE AEWL (EHE)

attributable to owners of the Company (RMB): RBANER (FE),
BRI(AR®E) :

Basic (loss)/earnings per share MRER (EB), BT 13 (0.0190) 0.0007
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share MR (85 48) /B F 13 (0.0190) 0.0007
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOI\/IE

rA & ERE R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZ—F——F+—-A=+—HItFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETTT

Loss for the year FREE (30,038) (1,257)
Other comprehensive income Hih2mEUBA
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to BEE I BEEF D E B A
profit or loss EH
Exchange differences on translation of financial MG INETE B IS REK T
statements of overseas operations EEWER =% (210) (9,041)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax FREMZEEE  SMNBRHE (210) (9,041)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRE2EEBBRARE (30,248) (10,298)
Total comprehensive loss for the year is DTEAFERZHEER
attributable to: B
Owners of the Company NRFEE A (28,431) (7,977)
Non-controlling interests I AR 2 (1,817) (2,321)
(30,248) (10,298)
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FINANCIAL POSITION
iR B B IS AR SR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

As at 31 December 2021 R —_E-_—F+_-_A=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—f T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Mg 3E AR®¥T AREFIT
Assets EE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - RE N&EE 14 432,568 442,794
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 15,083 16,143
Intangible assets EBRAE 16 4,715 6,789
Deferred tax assets BEEMIBE E 17 33,043 71,692
Investments accounted for using the equity method R A # /A ABRA IR E 20 265,854 263,397
Deposits e 26 8,000 —
Other non-current assets HMIEREEE 24 11,728 9,605
Total non-current assets EFRBEEAE 770,991 810,420
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 25 30,805 28,991
Contract assets BB E 18 187,722 181,263
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk H A g W RIE 26 205,404 258,199
Financial assets at amortised cost WEBHEK AT ENSRHEE 23 64,035 72,861
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BATEFEEEEHTA
BEaremEE 22 - 47,061
Restricted cash SR #I35 & 27 18,341 139
Cash and cash equivalents HeRESZEEY 28 222,320 155,446
Total current assets hEBEEHASE 728,627 743,960
Total assets EEHEE 1,499,618 1,554,380
Equity and liabilities EERkEE
Share capital A& 75 29(a) 12,255 12,255
Reserves i 29(b) 1,143,725 1,143,917
Retained earnings R B 10,519 38,758
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RATEE AEERES 1,166,499 1,194,930
Non-controlling interests R ERS 5,092 6,986
Total equity ERAE 1,171,591 1,201,916
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

=]
I

B 755 AR 0L 2R

As at 31 December 2021 R—_ZE - —F+_HA=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—f T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Mg 3E AR®¥T AREFIT
Liabilities =R
Non-current liabilities FRBAME
Borrowings gy 30 186,300 211,000
Lease liabilities HEBRE 15 12,110 9,213
Deferred government grants i 3E B B 2,066 2,173
Deferred tax liabilities EEMIBAE 17 10,854 11,490
Total non-current liabilities IRBEBEHEE 211,330 233,876
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R E A FE TR 31 64,883 68,919
Contract liabilities EHBE 14,237 11,939
Current tax liabilities ENEATL 1E B (& 12,250 10,604
Borrowings =3 30 24,700 24,400
Lease liabilities HERE 15 627 2,726
Total current liabilities mEBEAE 116,697 118,588
Total liabilities BEHEE 328,027 352,464
Total equity and liabilities EEREEHE 1,499,618 1,554,380

The financial statements on pages 81 to 191 were approved by the Board
of Directors on 29 March 2022 and were signed on its behalf

Wei Qiang

L

Director

EF

FEQIEEFIN BBV BHRERR_ZE_—_F=
A-thBKE=ei i THTIWNEEAR

BE

Wei Shaojun

BOE
Director

EFE

= — —
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CHANGES IN EQUITY

A= N\ 7

= dE Nz
e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #;

% 8 =

BEE=

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

—F+ZA=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NG 2PN
Share-based Non-
Share Share  Statutory compensation Exchange Other  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interests Total equity
R X AT FER
BRA RHEE EERE OENEE ELRE HoeRE KRERH @t [ £ BER
RVMB'000  RVMB'000  RMB'000 RVMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'0O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARETRT ARETR
At 1 January 2020 RZE-2F5-F-H 12,255 1,090,355 37,353 14,807 15,911 4,187 40,918 1,215,786 9307 1,225,093
Comprehensive income ETON
Loss for the year FREER = = = = = = 1,064 1,064 (2,321) (1,257)
Other comprehensive loss Hh2EER - - - - (9,041) - - (9,041) - (9,041)
Total comprehensive loss 2EFRLEE - - - - (9,041) - 1,064 (7.977) (2,321) (10,298)
Appropriation to statutory reserve  # Z )% E = = 3,224 = = = (3,224) - - -
Equity-settled share-based REREE R R
transactions IHHRS - - - (12,879) = = = (12,879) = (12,879)
= = 3,204 (12,879) = = 3224  (12879) - (12879
Balance at 31 December2020 R=-Z=Zf+=f
and 1 January 2021 =+-8K
—B2--%¥-5-H
373 12,255 1,090,355 40,577 1,928 6,870 4,187 38,758 1,194,930 6,986 1,201,916
Comprehensive income 2HEBA
Loss for the year FRER = = = = = = (28,221)  (28,221) (1,817)  (30,038)
Other comprehensive loss Hi2EER - - - = (210) = = (210) - (10)
Total comprehensive loss 2HABREE = = - - (210) - (28,221) (28,431) (1,817) (30,248)
Appropriation to statutory reserve %% F Bt - - 1,406 = = = (1,406) = = =
Lapse of share option BRI R - - - (1,388) - - 1,388 - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR - - - = = = = = (7) (77)
= = 1,406 (1,388) = = (18) = ) )
Balance at 31 December 2021 R=-Z=-&
+ZB=t-R&# 12,255 1,090,355 41,983 540 6,660 4,187 10,519 1,166,499 5,092 1,171,591
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
%ﬁé\iﬁim ig

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—FE-—F+_A=+—HILFE

2021 2020
—E-—f T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B & ARBTR ARETTT

Cash flows from operating activities BRETEREESRE

Cash generated from operations KBTS & 33 77,847 194,240
Interest received Llﬁl B A B 1,311 1,099
Income tax refunded/(paid) Rig/ (SE 1) T8 8 787 (5,575)
Net cash generated from operating activities KRETEFEBREFE 79,945 189,764

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

equipment

REZHFBRERE
SRYE - BERREXN

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value H % BAFEFEAEHR

through profit or loss

Repayment of loans by related parties
Repayment of loans by third parties
Repayment of advance to related parties

RIE (32,196) (964)
HEME BERZE

Fr 15 5k 38 - 702

""""" BEGAEBZNSH

BEFRGERE 44,612 107,548
ST EEER 3,114 30,113
E-HEEER 13,850 47,868
EEBH RN 3,711 5,241

Interest received on financial assets at amortised cost Ui B 1% #6 $% i N 51 2 19

EREEME 5,737 4,641
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEWE QT Fﬁ CE ] 5,174 =
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash THREIRES ), H (18,202) 66,249
Net cash generated from investing activities RETHMEBESTE 25,800 261,398

EEZNESRFERARLT  F#H 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERETMER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

2021 2020
—E-—f T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B & ARMT T ARETF T
Cash flows from financing activities METEMERSRE
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (24,400) (299,000)
Interest paid Y FE (13,318) (21,247)
Principal elements of lease payments HENRAEE LD (1,874) (3,117
Funds received from related parties B W E € 35(a) 2,355 2,037
Repayment of funds to related parties BEEBMINES 35(a) (3,952) (172)
Net cash used in financing activities MEIZBHTARESFE (41,189) (321,499
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRASEEWEMEE 64,556 129,663
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year REFHNIRE KRS EEY 155,446 32,228
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and cash equivalents IR & &I & S B WIE ¥,
Wz, (B 18) 2,318 (6,449)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year REXANBEEREASZEEY 28 222,320 155,446
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

re B ERAR W A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 =T - —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 January 2011 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law,
Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman lIslands. The address of its registered office is Windward 3,
Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, the
Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares were listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 12 January
2012.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
principally engaged in smart energy business and public infrastructure
construction business. For this reporting period, the two major
shareholders of the Company are Longevity Investment Holding
Limited and Lightway Power Holdings Limited. The ultimate beneficial
owner of the Company is Mr. Wei Shaojun (the “controlling
shareholder”).

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which include all applicable individual
International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical
cost basis except for certain financial assets measured at fair value.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

1.
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e

ARAREEMBAR(GHIAEER]D E
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HAREHAMS A 2AMBFERR
/& Longevity Investment Holding Limited
Lightway Power Holdings Limited ° 4~ 2 7]
WERERHEBEARBRDE L E(TER
RE D) -

EXETHERBE

21 MEEE

AEENSZEAVBEHRRIDRRABERN
R0 % B 765 e o 22 B (1 B B B 75 S 5 B B )
(tErHERgtEEEe((HERE
sPEERE =& |) 98 M /Y BT A @ M 18 Y B R
Masams 2R BEREE(BEER S
BN RBEAE) REE R BEDH
BRERH - HAMBHRERTIAEL KR
REREH EETRATFERENESH
BERIN -

RETECERMBERELENOTEHRET
ERAETEAG et TREEEE
ERAAS B BREEL A E -
EBRSREHERERENGE  RBER
Rt R A M B MR E AR
4HEE o

BEEZNESRRERARAA FH 2021

89



20

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOU NTI NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has adopted all the new and amended IFRSs which are

effective for the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1

January 2021 throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

. Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16
— Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

. Amendment to IFRS 16 — Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

None of these new or amended IFRSs has a material impact on the
Group’s results and financial position for the current or prior period.
The Group has not early applied any new or amended IFRSs that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited Annual Report 2021

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B IS R I EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B RS R MY o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—FE-—F+_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOU NTI NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.2New standards and interpretations not yet

adopted

The following published new accounting standards and
interpretations are not mandatory for 31 December 2021 reporting

periods and have not been early adopted by the Group:

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IAS 37

Amendment to IAS 16

Amendments to IFRS

Standards

Amendments to IFRS 16

IFRS 17

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1

and IFRS Practice

Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract?

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Annual Improvements to IFRS
Standards 2018-2020?

Covid-19-related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

Insurance Contracts®

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current®
Disclosure of accounting policies®

Definition of accounting estimates®

Deferred tax related to assets and
liabilities arising from a single
transaction®

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR B R AR BT o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.2New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

These standards are not expected to have a material impact on the
Group in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable
future transactions

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

2.2.1 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity where the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
business combinations by the Group (Note 2.3).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are
shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity
and balance sheet, respectively.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited Annual Report 2021

EXSBEHME@

21 B EE @
212 AR ENRBEED

% (#)

! H T - —FMA B2 ERIRNEEH
P A R

2 W_T - —F—F—HKZERANEELS
R A4 &K

s BT -_=—F— B 2ERENFEELY
R A4 3K

IS

HETEARRZREHENFREBRER

% F A RIFE G & 5 AN 5 HI ) 3OR R 3
THHHAEEA LA BENRKXZE
KEAZE -

22 ZERARESREE

221K B A

WEBAR DAEEESZHENETRE(R
EREBEER) SALEESEETENYE
BmAETEEROERKRSZA T EE R
MR BeemEREiEEEeTenE
N B EE RS BNRRAE B H %
ER -WBLAAIREHESETAEE >
RREEHAGHALE LR ZEEEREY
BRIEAPEAR -

AEEMEBAHStRERR KBS
& (FFsE2.3) »

SEARREARS HHREEEARER
SMRBRBSETTIALE - REREIR
NEHE RIZXXIFIEETBRBTME
REELBERE -WEBRRANSFTBEE
BWEERE - DR EANSEATRABR
iﬁo

MREERBRABILIR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B RS R MY o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—FE-—F+_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

2.2.2 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the case
where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting (Note 2.2.3), after initially being recognised at cost.

2.2.3 Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit
or loss, and the Group’s share of movements in other comprehensive
income of the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates are recognised as a reduction
in the carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any
other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested for
impairment in accordance with the policy described in Note 2.9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
r B BB R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.3 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all
business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments or
other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

o fair values of the assets transferred

o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business

o equity interests issued by the Group

° fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s
net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity and acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity over the
fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—FE-—F+_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.3 Business combinations (Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the
amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present value
as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar
borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under
comparable terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is
classified as either equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as
a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in
profit or loss.

2.4 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the
separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.5 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The Board of Directors of the Company has identified the senior
executive management as the chief operating decision-maker, who
assesses the financial performance and position of the Group, makes
strategic decisions and allocates resources.

2.6 Foreign currency translation

2.6.1 Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Chinese
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the Group’s presentation currency.

2.6.2 Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year-end exchange
rates are generally recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred in
equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges or are attributable to part of the net investment in
a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are
presented in the statement of profit or loss, within finance costs. All
other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
statement of profit or loss on a net basis within other gains/(losses).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—FE-—F+_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

2.6.2 Transactions and balances (Continued)
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. For example, translation differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss
and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equities
classified as fair value through other comprehensive income are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.6.3 Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which
has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet,

° income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss and
statement of comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions), and

° all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost or revalued amounts, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives or, in the case of leasehold improvements and
certain leased plant and equipment, the shorter lease term, as
follows:

Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 5-25 years
Motor vehicles 5-10 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and included in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—FE-—F+_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.8 Intangible assets
2.8.1 Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2.3. Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill
is not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might
be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (“CGUs”) for
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those CGUs or groups
of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the business combination
in which the goodwill arose. The CGUs or groups of CGUs are
identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes, being the operating segments.

2.8.2 Patent

Patent acquired in a business combination is recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. It has a finite useful life and is subsequently
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses,
if any.

2.8.3 Software

Acquired computer software is stated at historical cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Costs associated with maintaining software
programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.

2.8.4 Amortisation methods and periods
The Group amortises intangible assets with a limited useful life using
the straight-line method over the following periods:

Software
Patent

5 years
10 years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or CGUs. Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
the end of each reporting period.

2.10 Investments and other financial assets

2.10.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through
profit or loss or through other comprehensive income (“OCI”)),
and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will be recorded
in either profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity instruments
that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—FE-—F+_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

2.102 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

2103 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”) are expensed in
profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.

(@) Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

2103 Measurement (Continued)

@)

Debt instruments (Continued)
FVOCI

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows
and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss and recognised in other gains/(losses). Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in other gains/(losses) and impairment
expenses are presented as separate line item in the statement
of profit or loss.

FVPL

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or
FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—FE-—F+_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

2103 Measurement (Continued)

(b)  Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair
value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or
loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised
in other gains/(losses) in the statement of profit or loss as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.

2104 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost
and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

The Group has three types of financial assets that are subject to the
expected credit loss model:
o trade and other receivables,

° contract assets relating to public infrastructure construction
business, and

° debt investments carried at amortised cost
While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment

requirements of IFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was
immaterial.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

2104 Impairment (Continued)

Impairment losses on financial assets are presented as net
impairment losses within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against the same line
item. Financial assets are written off where there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a
debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Group.

() Trade and other receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for trade receivables and contract assets. The contract assets relate
to unbilled work in progress. To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables and contract assets have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and ageing, assessed collectively or
individually for likelihood of recovery.

Impairment on other receivables is measured as either 12 months’
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit loss, depending on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk of a receivable has
occurred since initial recognition, then impairment is measured as
lifetime expected credit losses.

Quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s loss allowance for
contract assets and trade and other receivables as at 31 December
2021 are disclosed in Note 18 and 26.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B RS R MY o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—FE-—F+_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

2104 Impairment (Continued)

(il Debt investments carried at amortised cost

Impairment on the Group’s debt investments carried at amortised
cost is measured as either 12 months’ expected credit losses or
lifetime expected credit losses, depending on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Debt
instruments are considered to be low credit risk where they have a
low risk of default and the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term. If a significant
increase in credit risk of a debt investment has occurred since initial
recognition, then impairment is measured as lifetime expected credit
losses. Quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s loss
allowance for debt investments carried at amortised cost as at 31
December 2021 are disclosed in Note 23.

2.11 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates
and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

2.12 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold
or services performed in the ordinary course of business.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The Group’s impairment policies of trade receivables are disclosed in
Note 3.1.2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE M ISR M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and deposits held at call
with banks.

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity
as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.15 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided
to the Group prior to the end of the financial year which are unpaid.
Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They
are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees
paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has
been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—FE-—F+_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.16 Borrowings (Continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

2.17 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on
the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income
tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.

2.181 Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

BEASHTHREBME@

2165 & (@)

% IS B G M (R AEAE A B (BB R
SREMKBEEL12EL  BAEEHE
ARBEE -

217 B A

EEREAKE ERftELEREE

mf&&%iﬁgﬁﬁmnﬁﬁﬁﬁéé
NIEEBEEREKEENKEERL - &
BERBEEBVAK —BRSBERNER
TEERAANHEENEE -

REFREREREENXNFEREE
TEREREMBRMNRELAN  EFaE
AAEGEMEER AP -

HMEERAEEEHRRIIZ -

2.18 BN H# % 4 £E Fr 18 Bt

%W% AR =R E N AT
SEAENEATASE  BES B
EERMNBERMSHBEEX RECEHIES

ERaEEREZENRERRBEEED

BH)FHE -

2181 BNHA P15 84

BN HAFT 18 B Sk AR B AR 1 A 9 B I A )
XN MM&FEK%M%A%I%F
WEMADEHRNEY O8O TS E
5 & o & 1P B Bt I8 A RS S I AR IR P AR
@Wﬁ&i%ﬂﬁﬁmﬁm#ﬁ'ﬁﬁi
FIE R T IR 15 T8 1378 A B A5 e A = 1 0 6

KR E L

BEEZNESRRERARAA FH 2021 107



108

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE M ISR M AT

w9

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

2.182 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax
is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that future
taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and where
the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—FE-—F+_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits

2.19.1 Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits
and accumulating sick leave that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the reporting period in which the
employees render the related service are recognised in respect of
employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are
settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the balance sheet.

2192 Post-employment obligations
The Group’s post-employment scheme are defined contribution
pension plan.

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entiting them to the
contributions. The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid.

2.20 Share-based payments

The fair value of options granted is recognised as an employee
benefit expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted:

° including any market performance conditions (for example, the
Company’s share price),

° excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period), and

o including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save or hold shares
for a specific period of time).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE M ISR M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.20 Share-based payments (Continued)

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, over which
all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end
of each period, the Group revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting
and service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

2.21 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the asset is
transferred to the customer. Depending on the terms of the contract
and the laws that apply to the contract, control of the asset may be
transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the asset is
transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer,

o creates and enhances an asset (for example, work in progress)
that the customer controls as the Group performs, or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to the payments for
the performance completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is recognised over
the period of the contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the asset. The progress towards complete satisfaction of
the performance obligation is measured based on one of the
following methods that best depict the Group’s performance in
satisfying the performance obligation:

° direct measurements of the value to the customer of the goods
or services transferred to date relative to the remaining goods
or services promised under the contract, or

° the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation relative to the total expected inputs to
the satisfaction of that performance obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—FE-—F+_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOU NTI NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.22 Earnings per share

2.22.1 Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year.

2222 Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

° the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs
associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

° the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares
that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.23 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivable,

° variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date,

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE M ISR M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.23 Leases (Continued)

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with
similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by
the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third party financing was
received,

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest
rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which
does not have recent third party financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, for example, term,
country, currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease
payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in the
lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease
payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is
reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—FE-—F+_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.23 Leases (Continued)

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

° any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received,

° any initial direct costs, and
° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-
of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-
value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less.

2.24 Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being
appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the Group,
on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the
end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.25 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred
government grants and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.26 Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss is included in the net fair value gains/(losses) on these assets (Note
10).

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is earned
from debt investments carried at amortised cost (Note 11).

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial
assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & & —

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.27 Related parties

a.

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related
to the Group if that person:

M

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

)

(i)

(i)

v)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

R e M ERRK
2o -—F+-A=t+-RALEE

2. EXABHBEEME@

221 5

—BATHBZALTRENERKE
TYEAREBEEEE  WRZIAL:

a.

U)

(i)

(i)

BASBEEEESIHAR
S

HAEBEREATE K

RAEBEFIAEET QAN
RERABMKE -

MRATEMBEER Al —RER
J5 BR7K 5% (8 AH A B -

U)

(i)

(iii)

(vi)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re IR M
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EXRBHBEBRE@w
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)
2.27 Related parties (continued) 221 BAHE 5 ()
b.  (Continued) b. (&)

(vii) A person identified in (a)() has significant influence over (viy @OEFMRMALTHZERE
the entity or is a member of the key management MEAFYERXEZER(KE
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); or AEDWBEREEABSMNK

83

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a (vii) ZERNEB —HBoMNEEM
part, provides key management personnel services to ERKEMAE B AE
the Group or to the Group’s parent. NRREEREEEABRS -

Close members of the family of a person are those family —ZATRENHK S Z 7] 785

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced HZANLTEZER 2B TR E K

by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include: REFENZEREKE 81 :

()  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner; ) BZATHFEZEEBHRRE

fH1E

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; iy RATHWEBXKEEHENT
and 7 Rk

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or (i) TATHZATHEBHEE
domestic partner. HEIZEA-

2.28 Segment reporting 2.28 7 IR EH

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item REDBNIEGRETERERPERS DI
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified from BHEMNcBE IR EHRAEE RS RTT
the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most HEBEALTIREUNETERSE RFH
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating REBSHERRMERBOMBEERF
resources to, and assessing the performance of the Group’s various =2l o

lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for BRI ERNKEED M EREBEOM
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar STEAHTE  BRIEZSEIBEERR
economic characteristics in respect of the nature of products and REHEE  AEBEMEE BEFEEHANE
services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of Al AUADHEHERKIEHREN A RE
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide EREMEIFMASEUNLE RSBk
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating GN o A0 FE R Bl B K A & & 5 20 a0 1E It Z (1§
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if HHEANZEMER - Bl & 45t E o

they share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B RS R MY o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—FE-—F+_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

This note explains the Group’s exposure to financial risks and how
these risks could affect the Group’s future financial performance.

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk), credit risk, concentration risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

3.1.1 Market risk

(@) Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s foreign exchange risk is primarily with respect to the US
dollar (“US$"). Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a
currency that is not the functional currency of the relevant entity. The
risk is measured through a forecast of highly probable US$
transactions.

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk as at 31 December
2021 and 2020, expressed in RMB, is as follows:

3.

Bt 7% L B B

KMTIESL$EIE%TE’JE7T%&‘H WA
[\ Bz an o] 2 B AN SR BUOR R A BE FS R 3R

3.1 MK EREZE

AEENEHFEERSSZEM KRR ™
LERER(EEIERR RERERRF
EMNXER)  EFERR SRR ER
HERE AEEEBRRERFIEDE
I%%mﬁmiﬁﬁ'ﬂTﬁﬁﬂﬂli > A RSN
SEMBRANBETNZE -

3.1.1 W5 E

(@) SMEE B

AEBTEEUKREAET(ET)) BOHNE
AR NERBRKEERKREER S RIIE

Mmﬁﬁﬁmmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmeﬁwéﬁ

MeafE - RBRAERRATEAETETHN
RHETE
AEBR-_ZE-_—FRER_ZT_FTF+=A

=+t HEEMNIIERR(AARE
E5)WF :

2021 2020
—E_—F —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR®T T
Denominated in US$ LZE it E
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY 3 4
Unlisted investment funds (Note 22(a)) FELETREES (Hfik22(a) = 46,099

EEZNESRFERARLT  F#H 2021




3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

3.1.1 Market risk (Continued)

(@) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The following foreign-exchange related amounts were recognised in
profit or loss for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B IS R I EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

3. ERKREREw@w

3.1 B EREZE @

3.1.1 T 35 [ & (&)
(a) SMEE R Bz (&)
RBEZTEZ—GFR_ZT=_FF+=ZA=
T BLEFEEZHERNIIERESE

R
2021 2020
—E-—F —EZETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T
Net foreign exchange gains included in other BIEREMKEFENER

gains — net W F 5

(486) (819)

As most of the Group’s US$ denominated financial instruments are
held by the Group’s entity whose functional currency is Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$"), the Group is primarily exposed to changes in US$/
HK$ exchange rates. The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the
exchange rates arising mainly from US$ denominated financial
instruments is as follows:

MR AEBARIH D AETFHENS R ITEA
HAEEDRERRET(BTNER
FA AEBXTEERETHLAETHEX
B -BERTERBUAXTIHENS R
TREXSBHOHRELN TR

2021 2020
e —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AR®TT

US$/HK$ exchange rate — increase 5% ETHBTHER — 2 IN5% - 2,305
US$/HK$ exchange rate — decrease 5% ETHBTHEER — B 5% - (2,305)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—FE-—F+_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

3.1.1 Market risk (Continued)

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings.
Borrowings with variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk which is offset by cash held at variable rates.
Borrowings with fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
Group’s borrowings were all denominated in RMB. The interest rates
and the terms of repayments of the Group’s borrowings are
disclosed in Note 30.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s borrowings amounting to
RMB211,000,000 (2020: RMB235,400,000) were at variable interest
rates. As at 31 December 2021, if the interest rates on the Group’s
borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, profit before income tax would have been
RMB2,110,000 lower/higher (2020: RMB2,354,000), as a result of
higher/lower interest expense.

As at 31 December 2021, none of the Group’s borrowing (2020: nil)
was at fixed interest rates. The fair value of this fixed interest rate
borrowing estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows
at the current market interest rate for similar financial instruments
available to the Group is RMBnil (2020: RMBnil).

3.1.2 Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, contractual cash
flows of debt instruments carried at amortised cost and at fair value
through profit or loss, as well as credit exposures to customers,
including outstanding receivables.

In respect of deposit with banks, the Group mitigates its exposure to
credit risk by placing deposits with banks with established credit
rating. Given the high credit ratings of the banks, management does
not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
r B BB R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of trade receivables, credit evaluations are performed on
all customers. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability to pay,
taking into account the information specific to the customer as well
as relating to the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Normally, the Group does not obtain any security from its
customers. Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in
Note 26.

The Group’s investment in debt instruments are regularly monitored
for credit deterioration by management. Quantitative disclosures in
respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from debt
investments are disclosed in Note 23.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 December
2021 is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the consolidated statement of financial position after deducting any
impairment allowances.

The Group does not provide any financial guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

3.1.3 Concentration risk

For the year ended 31 December 2021, 32% (2020: 37%) of the
Group’s revenue was derived from one customer (2020: one
customer) (Note 5(a)).

3.1.4 Liquidity risk
Local managements in the operating entities of the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including short-term
investments of cash surpluses and raising loans to cover expected
cash demands, in accordance with practice and limits set by the
Group. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and compliance with the loan covenants, to ensure that
it maintains sufficient cash and adequate committed credit facilities
to meet obligations in the short and longer term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—FE-—F+_A=+—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea) 3. B1 3% B B8 & & )
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B EREZE @
3.1.4 Liquidity risk (Continued) 3.1.4 7 E Iﬁﬂ <i*
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant THRAAEEN - —EN B -TF
maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities as at 31 +-A=+—8#% ﬁﬁé\ B EIBER D
December 2021 and 2020, disclosed in undiscounted cash flows TREEITM BEHRAGREARITER S
(including interest payments calculated using contractual rates or, if MERRFERGOFNEIREREHR
variable, based on current rates at the end of the respective reporting IR TR (ERNFE BTt E R A B
period): FORREE
Within
1 year or Between Between 5 years Carrying
ondemand 1and2years 2and5 years above Total amount
—FRrg
EERXR -5ZmF WEZLE EELE st IREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETRT ARBTRT ARETRT AR®BT:R
As at 31 December 2021 R-Z-—4F
+=ZB=+—H
Borrowings = 35,274 34,969 102,647 81,349 254,239 211,000
Trade and other payables & 5 & H fth & 1 778 64,883 - - - 64,883 64,883
Lease liabilities HEAE 815 795 5,352 17,277 24,239 12,737
100,972 35,764 107,999 98,626 343,361 288,620
As at 31 December 2020 R=-Z=-ZF
+=ZB=+—H
Borrowings fBEE 35,976 34,960 103,357 114,645 288,938 235,400
Trade and other payables & 5 & £ fth & {5 3¢ 68,919 — — — 68,919 68,919
Lease liabilities HEAE 2,802 408 8178 17,339 23,724 11,939
107,697 35,368 106,532 131,984 381,581 316,258

BEEZNESRRERARAA FH 2021




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its
ability to continue as a going concern to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group monitors its capital on the basis of gearing ratio,
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated
as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and restricted
cash. Total capital is calculated as total equity plus net debt.

The Group’s strategy is to maintain its gearing ratio at a healthy level
to support its business activities. The main strategies adopted by the
Group include but not limited to reviewing future cash flow
requirements and monitoring the ability to meet debt repayment
schedules, maintaining an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities and adjusting investment and financing plans, if necessary,
to ensure that the Group has a reasonable level of capital. The
gearing ratios as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 are
as follows:

3.

BEERERE @

32 BXREHE

AEEEREANBNRREASEESRN
BEAFBEEET RIREREMRD RN
RAEMESFHA NGRS - W B4R
REBREBUIRSBEEHA -

AEBABRLEXREZRER - LXDIRE
BEEFERNEBEAAE -BEHEFEEN
REERRRASZEVRIRHIR
T MERNERNERBEM EERFER -

AEBENRBEERFAGBLRERBEAK
U BERED AEERRNEE
REEEETRAEBHARARBASRES
kRERSTMEHERNED  #EEH
CHMNAXREEEERARLEMME T
BB UBERAEEHRFAEKTE
HER - RZEBE-Z—FF+_A=+—AK
TETEEF A=+ —HMARBLE
s

2021 2020

=F=-—F S

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AREF T

Total borrowings BEE®EE 211,000 235,400
Lease liabilities HEarE 12,737 11,939
Less: cash and cash equivalents BWoRERBEEEEY (222,320) (155,446)
restricted cash PR 538 & (18,341) (139)

Net (cash)/debt (&) E%FHE (16,924) 91,754
Total equity =B 1,171,591 1,201,916
Total capital 188 I 1,154,667 1,298,670
Gearing ratio BEL = N/ATRE 7.1%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 =T - —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

3.3.1 Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in
determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are
recognised and measured at fair value in the financial statements. To
provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in
determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial
instruments into the three levels prescribed in the accounting
standards as follows:

o Level 1
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period.

° Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the
use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

° Level 3
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in Level 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

3.3.1 Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets measured
at fair value as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 on a recurring basis:

3. ERKREREw@w

3.3 A {E M @

331 AT EE &K @)
TREIWAEBR=ZZEZ_—FR=_F=_F
F+ A=+ BREEEEEUNRAFE

AEMEREE -
Fair value Significant unobservable inputs
NVE EERAERBARE
Financial assets at As at Asat As at Asat Relationship of

fair value through profit or loss 31 December 31 December Fair value

31 December

31 December

unobservable inputs

(Note 22) 2021 2020 hierarchy Valuation techniques 2021 2020  to fair value
BRATEFEAESBFA RIBZ-F R-E-ZE RZBZ-% R-Z-ZEF SEBERGAUE
BENEREE (W22 TZAZ+-8 TZA=+-H ATEER HEKT TZAZ+-B TZA=+-H RATENBR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTTR ARETFT ARBTR ARETFT
Unlisted investment funds - 46,099 Level 3 Net asset value (Note) N/A N/A NA NA
FLTREES F=R REEE M) TER THEA @R TER
Unlisted exchangeable bond - 962 Level3 Market valuation method by Enterprise N/A 1.20 The higher the enterprise
reference to enterprise value-to-sales value multiplier, the
value-to-sales multiple multiple higher the fair value.
and binomial model
FEMARAES E=R SEREERELHE PEBELHE THEA rEEERAER
BN TS EER B8 ATEED
RZFARE

Bond yield N/A 35.09%  The higher the bond yield,
the lower the fair value

EHMREE THEA EHREEER -
RAEEBE -

One year default rate N/A 10.20%  The higher the one-year
default rate, the lower
the fair value

—FHENE THEA —FHEHEMR
RAEEBE -

- 47,061
Note: The Group determines that the reported net asset value of the unlisted Mizr: REREHR AEFRTIELTIREES R

investment funds represents the fair value of its investments in the unlisted
investment funds at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—FE-—F+_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

3.3.1 Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and out of fair value
hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period. There were no
transfers between levels for recurring fair value measurements during
the year end 31 December 2021. The Group did not measure any
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value on a non-recurring
basis as at 31 December 2021.

3.3.2 Valuation processes

Changes in fair value of investments in the unlisted investment fund,
Yue Xiu Stable Income SP (“YueXiu SP”), is analysed at the end of
each half-yearly reporting period by the Group’s management. Fair
value of investments in the YueXiu SP is, at its most basic level,
equivalent to the summation of the estimated value of underlying
investments as if realised on the measurement date. The proceeds
from such hypothetical realisations would flow through to the Group
in an amount equal to the net asset value (“NAV”). Therefore, the
Group used the NAV as reported by the administrators of the YueXiu
SP as the basis for estimating fair value of investments in the YueXiu
SP. The Group’s management also reviews the financial information
of the YueXiu SP on an on-going basis.

For the unlisted exchangeable bond, the fair value is arrived at on the
basis of valuations carried out by an independent valuer on a half-
yearly basis. Determination of fair value is based on the best
information available in the circumstances and includes appropriate
risk adjustments for lack of marketability. Factors considered in
determining the fair value of this investment include multiples of
comparable companies listed on stock exchanges and discount
rates based on market information. The valuation report prepared by
the independent valuer is reported to and reviewed by the
management on a half-yearly basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

3.3.3Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs

The valuation techniques and inputs applied in determining the fair

values of the underlying investment portfolio of the YueXiu SP as at

31 December 2020 is as follows:

3. ERKREREw@w

3.3 A {E M @

SIIFEHAEEM LB R AHE

EITAEEFE
RZZTZFTF+=-HF=+—HEEYueXu
SPHERAIE B 4 A A (B R 5 B A h B Bl
R ABBAT :

Relationship of
unobservable

Underlying investment ~ Fair value  Valuation Significant inputs

portfolio of Yue Xiu SP  hierarchy techniques unobservable inputs to fair value
FABERARE

YueXiuSPHEREMLEE A FERER HEHKMN EREZEEGAYE BEATENBER

Unlisted debt securities Level 3 Discounted cash flow Liquidity premium The higher the

analysis

FLHERES £

[1]
2

BeEREFBEIN

3.3.4 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried at

amortised cost are not materially different from their fair values as at

31 December 2021 and 2020 since either the instruments are short-

term in nature or the interest receivable/payable is close to the

current market rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—FE-—F+_A=+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires the use
of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the
actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in
applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that may have a financial impact on the Group and that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(a) Recoverability of trade receivables and
debt investments at amortised cost

The loss allowances for trade receivables and debt investments
at amortised cost are based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment assessment, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking
information at the end of each reporting period. In assessing
forward-looking information, the Group considers factors
including macroeconomic factors, industry risks and changes
in debtors’ conditions. The changes in the basis of estimation
or economic conditions could lead to a change in the level of
credit loss allowance recorded and consequently on the
charge or credit to profit or loss.

(b) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined using valuation techniques. The
Group uses its judgment to select a variety of methods and
make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at each end of the reporting period. Details of the key
assumptions used are disclosed in Note 3.3.1.

4. BAEETHEE R E

REGAVBHRRAEB G WE
EE ﬁ?ﬂé:ﬂﬁaﬂﬁd\a,jﬁ?ﬁﬂﬁ’%
KRR - EEERERAEE S BE
IRZAAF i #I B -

AEEREAEERRENRE (BEE
HEER TR FENBREARAS
B R E )BTRS R
18 -

(a)

0 3
=
0

EM R IE IR B R AT E Y
ﬁ%&é%%%%%%%#ﬁ%é
HREREFEHERENRER AEH
BREAEEBERESE - ERMSHANR
AREREMROAEEERET
HE - FREZEBRRIEEREN G
B ABUR - NAT BT IE BRI
AEEEERBRKERE  TRER
REFARREBDFRE - Bt EE
FRBEARREB AL EHEBHNE
EEBRBREKFHEZSY EAmM<o
XHFABRENEBRIFE -

b) EMIENAFLE

WIEREFRMBRSNESMIT AN
AFEXRBEERMEE - ANEEIR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE M ISR M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Useful life of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets

Management determines the estimated useful life and related
depreciation and amortisation charges for property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets with reference to the
estimated periods during which future economic benefits are
derived from the use of these assets. Management revises the
depreciation and amortisation charges if the useful life is
different from previous estimates, or writes off or writes down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

Impairment loss for non-financial assets
(other than goodwill)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether non-financial assets suffered any impairment in
accordance with accounting policy stated in Note 2.9. The
non-financial assets are reviewed for the impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The
determination of recoverable amount requires an estimation of
future cash flows, the selection of appropriate discount rates
and other key assumptions. Changes in these estimates could
have a significant impact on the carrying value of the assets
and could result in additional impairment charge or reversal of
impairment in future periods, where applicable.

Impairment loss for goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the CGU to which
goodwill has been allocated. For the purposes of impairment
testing, goodwill is allocated to its respective CGUs.
Management judgement is required in the area of goodwill
impairment particularly in assessing: () whether the carrying
amount of an CGU can be supported by the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less cost of disposal or
value in use; and (i) the appropriate key assumptions to be
applied in preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—FE-—F+_A=+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(f)

Income taxes

There are certain transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will be reflected in the income tax
expense in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences are recognised as management considers it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised. In case where
the actual future taxable profit generated are less than
expected, or changes in facts and circumstances which result
in revision of future taxable profit estimation, a material reversal
or further recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which
will be recognised in profit or loss in the period in which such a
reversal or further recognition takes place.

4. BRI HEFTRHAH@

(f)

Friig %
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re IR M
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT

(a)

5. EkoBER

INFORMATION
Revenue (a) W=
2021 2020
—B=-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB T ART T
Sales of electricity HES 63,457 63,022
Sales of household solar power generation SHEFAXKRESZ X
systems and rendering smart energy services REEEERRS 253,441 185,242
Public infrastructure construction UNESE 145,744 148,149
462,642 396,413
Timing of revenue recognition e 7= 7 R AT
At a point in time AR — 2y 315,230 242 579
Over time £ — BRI 147,412 153,834
462,642 396,413

(b)

For the year ended 31 December 2021, there was one
customer (2020: one customer) with which the Group’s
transactions exceeded 10% of total revenue. One customer
(2020: one customer) was from public infrastructure
construction business and none (2020: none) was from smart
energy business. For the year ended 31 December 2021,
revenue derived from this customer amounted to
RMB145,744,000 (2020: RMB147,428,000).

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by business lines (products and services). In a
manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group presents the following
two reportable segments:

° Smart energy business, and
° Public infrastructure construction business.

No geographical information is presented as substantially all of
the Group’s business activities were in the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #

AR e B RS R MY o

E_E-_—F+-_A=+—HIEE

tax assets.

22 >: AV
5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. ko HEE @
IN FO RMATI ON (Continued)
(c) Reportable segment profit or loss, assets c) IEZHoHiER EER
and liabilities =R
Public
Smart infrastructure
energy  construction Intersegment
business business  Unallocated  eliminations Total
g8 DR 28
HIRER BREK ROE 4B 8 @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-E-_-f+-A=1+—H
LtEE
Revenue from external customers HINE P s 316,898 145,744 - - 462,642
Reversal of impairment losses on financial & B AN EERFESEEE
and contract assets 5,735 - - - 5,735
Impairment losses on property, plant and ¥ BERREREESR
equipment (11,642) - - - (11,642)
Impairment losses on right-of-use assets FRELENESR (80) - - - (80)
Finance income BEWA 6,802 245 1 - 7,048
Finance expenses MERX (13,320) - (18) - (13,338)
Share of net gain of associates accounted for 5 FI £ 25 7% A BR MY B4 A A
using the equity method wHH 2,457 = = = 2,457
Income tax expense B8R (34,701) (4,172) - - (38,873)
(Loss)/profit for the year ER(EE) H5H (28,016) 2,684 (4,706) - (30,038)
Other information HiER
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH (31,943) (18) (1,211) - (33,172)
Additions to non-current assets (Note) REERBEE (FF) 33,108 - - - 33,108
As at 31 December 2021 R-B--&#+=-A=1+-H
Reportable segment assets AERHHEE 1,723,643 215,280 357,460 (796,765) 1,499,618
Reportable segment liabilities AERDBERE 964,834 159,635 323 (796,765) 328,027
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-E-_ZF+-R=1+-H
LEE
Revenue from external customers HHNE P W2 248,264 148,149 = = 396,413
Impairment losses on financial and contract 4 & & A8 E M REEE
assets (2,434) (882) — - (3,316)
Impairment losses on property, plant and ME BERREREESRE
equipment (5,723) - - - (5,723)
Impairment losses on goodwil BEREEE (138) - - = (138)
Finance income BERA 4,664 1,002 74 - 5,740
Finance expenses AR (15,355) (5,828) (64) - (21,247)
Share of net loss of associates accounted for 5% FE 4 255 A BR B0 5 4 2 71 £
using the equity method M (17,248) - — — (17,248)
Income tax expense FBHAX (630) (1,610) - = (2,240)
(Loss)/profit for the year ER(ER),/ 7 (3592) (3582) 5917 - (1,257)
Other information HiEH
Depreciation and amortisation WEREE (35,849 (36) (49) - (35,934
Additions to non-current assets (Note) REFERBEE (M) 964 = — — 964
As at 31 December 2020 R-B-EF+-A=1+-H
Reportable segment assets ERHHEE 1,354,378 240,042 443,416 (483,456) 1,554,380
Reportable segment liabilties AEHAHAE 644,908 189,247 1,765 (483,456) 352,464
Note: Additions to non-current assets exclude financial assets and deferred Wik : AREFRDEETLREEREENE

EHMIBEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B B S R R BT 5
For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 - — —

6.

F+-A=+—HIFE

EXPENSES BY NATURE 6. EMESIEMNHEX
Cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses and administrative SAEBRRPHEHERN HERDHEAX
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss are listed by ERITHRA YIRS wmT -
nature as follows:
2021 2020
—B=-—F —T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R AREF T
Changes in inventories of finished goods BRMNTEES
(Note 25) (P 5£25) 210,591 139,896
Subcontract costs o B AR 137,517 134,584
Employee benefit expense (Note 7) EBERFRZ (M&E?) 36,536 20,016
Depreciation and amortisation T 88 N B Y 33,172 35,934
Consulting and legal fees BRAKEEER 5,818 4,913
Repair and maintenance expenses HERRERS 6,095 5,382
Transportation and travelling expenses BEH R EKRAS 3,142 1,171
Promotion and advertising expenses EERESRAX 635 392
Short term lease expenses and low-value assets (S ER Y RIEEBEEE
lease expenses HERX 2,969 2,650
Impairment losses of property, plant and WE - BERREREEIR
equipment (Note 14) (MF7E14) 11,642 5,723
Impairment loss of goodwill (Note 16) REREEE (WiE16) - 138
Reversal of inventories write-down (Note 25) 17 & MU [ (M 52 25) (976) =
Auditor’s remuneration A IR A
— Audit services — FZR 1,800 2,000
— Non-audit services — FEZRBE 333 —
Others HAth 7,578 8,144
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution HERAS - HERDHASZ R
expenses and administrative expenses THRAZ B 456,852 360,943
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B RS R MY o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 =T - —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

7. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 7. EERAEX
2021 2020
—F=—F —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARET T

Wages, salaries and allowances IT& #He &kER 32,377 29,909
Post-employment benefit and other welfare EHEBEEN REMAET
expenses (a) 3 (a) 4,159 2,986
Equity-settled share-based payment reversal (b) 1% # 25 45 & LA IR 19 32 - 89
% $ [ (o) - (12,879)
36,536 20,016

(@) Post-employment benefit

Pursuant to the relevant labor rules and regulations in the PRC,
the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC participate in the defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”)
organised by the PRC municipal government authorities
whereby the Group is required to make contributions to the
Schemes at certain proportions of eligible employees’ salaries,
ranging from 16% to 20%. The local government authorities
are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
the retired employees. The Group has no other material
obligations for the payment of pension benefits in connection
with the Schemes beyond the annual contributions described
above.

The Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong participate in the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) Scheme for its employees.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held in the funds controlled
by an independent trustee. The contributions arising from the
MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss represent contributions payable to the funds at the
rates specified in the rules of the MPF Scheme.

(a)

BRREAN
RIEPEMEBEHERIER A&
BHhERAMBARES NE P
B 3 77 KA A B AR A8 O RE RR M FUR
A& (TFH &) - Eit - A%E
BRAEREBEEFHZETHLENT
16% E20%) [7) 5t & 1E H it 50 - 75
BT B B B A MR N E 8 Xt
ERERARENEL AEBEALER E
At FE RN B AR B RN AR
MNFOEMERRE -

AEEREENMBARASERE
SEBHMEAES([RER])E -
BRECAHENEERABLETAE
HNESRHE EREGBRERAIIX
MR AT IR IR BRE S E
BRAMRENLLERABERES B
HE R -

BEEZNESRRERARAA FH 2021

133



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re IR M
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

7. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued) 7. {EE & FIB X @)

(b) Equity settled share-based payment b) ZEZEEURGDZAH
a3

On 26 January, 11 May and 14 September 2018, the
Company announced to grant 36,441,291, 10,140,000 and
66,645,000 share options (the “Options”), respectively, under
its share option scheme adopted on 22 November 2011. The
Options entitled the eligible participants to subscribe for up to
a total of 113,226,291 new shares with par value of HK$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company. The vesting of share
options is based on the servicing period of the employee up to
3 years from the date of grant and the fulfiment of certain
performance targets of the Group, including but not limited to
the financial performance of the Group as well as the grantee’s
individual performance. The maximum term of the options
granted is 10 years from the date of the offer. The weighted
average exercise price is set as HK$1.8 per share. The Options
are deemed as equity settled share-based payment. As at 1
January 2021 and 31 December 2021, the number of share
options outstanding was 26,824,730 and 1,078,200 (2020:
78,000,960 and 26,824,730) respectively. No share option is
granted, exercised or forfeited during the year (2020: Nil).
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the number of
share options lapsed was 25,746,530 (2020: 51,176,190). As
at 31 December 2021, the weighted average exercise price of
options outstanding is HK$1.8 (2020: HK$1.8) and the
weighted average remaining contractual life was 6.1 years (2020:
5.7 years).

For the year ended 31 December 2021, no expense arose
from share-based payment transactions previously recognised
as part of employee benefit expense (2020: reversal of
expense arising from share-based payment transactions
previously recognised as part of employee benefit expense
was RMB12,879,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 =T - —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued)

(c) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 did not include
any Directors (2020: one Director) whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis in Note 37. The emoluments payable
to the remaining five (2020: four) individuals during the year are
as follows:

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

7. BEEEANHE X @

) ENBEEHAL

HE-Z-_—F+ZA=+—HLt
FE -AEENAUESHFALTFIL
EAETINES(ZT _ZTF: —{I
EF) HE B RWIEITH M
EHAM(ZE_TF : Of) AL F
RFHBMBRAT

HMAR T g8

2021 2020

—E-— TE T

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE A

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T 5 4

(REVERSAL OF IMPAIRMENT LOSSES)/ 8. € RANEENCRES
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL BELE) REESRE
AND CONTRACT ASSETS
2021 2020
- 3 —E-E4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETF T
Impairment losses for contract assets (Note 18) & A& E KM EE 1B (i 18) = 882
Reversal of impairment losses for financial assets Z# 4K AN EN S MEE
at amortised cost (Note 23) A R 1B B 18 & o] (B9 7% 23) (8,140) (13,952)
Impairment losses for trade and other receivables & 5 & H fib FE U 3% 18 &9 55 (8 B 18
(Note 26) (Kt 3£26) 2,405 16,386
(5,735) 3,316
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B IS R I EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

o.

10.

OTHER INCOME 9. HAtWA
2021 2020
—E-—& —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETT
Government grants BT #e B 149 445
OTHER GAINS — NET 10. H fb Y =5 7% 5
2021 2020
—E-—F TE T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBF T
Net fair value gains on financial assets at fair value 12 A F{E:t 8 B 28z AB%
through profit or loss MEMEERNFERSFH 700 2,071
Net foreign exchange losses M 5 B 185 58 (486) (819)
Net losses on disposal of property, plant HEME BWEMRENEIR
and equipment ekl = (55)
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries & B R A A Uz 748 =
Others HAh 32 (58)
994 1,139
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B ISR I EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 =T - —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

11. FINANCE EXPENSES — NET

M. BERXFEE

2021 2020
—E-—& —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT T ARET T
Finance income B E WA
Interest income from loans to related parties and  [A1 B 5 5 2 8 = F B2 897 &
third parties PN 5,737 4,641
Interest income from bank deposits RITIFEHABWA 1,311 1,009
Total finance income A& YA B R 7,048 5,740
Finance expenses A H
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBRMERX (726) (732)
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITEEMNBERX (12,592) (20,515)
Net interest expense FEHAZ F5E (13,318) (21,247)
Others HAt (20) -
Total finance expenses BB 85 (13,338) (21,247)
Finance expenses — net A& R FRE (6,290) (15,507)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B IS R I EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. i B X

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETT
Current income tax BVER AR 15 3% (860) (4,326)
Deferred income tax EEFT 1S (38,013) 2,086
(38,873) (2,240)
(@ The reconciliation of income tax expense to the theoretical @ FMETHRXEERBERRNGEESR
amount that would arise using the statutory tax rates MEEMRFESENERHER
applicable to the consolidated entities are as follows: HERAT -
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Profit before income tax % 2 Bi s A 8,835 983
Tax calculated at applicable statutory tax rates 3% F A F i Rt B0 i 18 (2,387) 371
Tax effect of: NTEENBBEE -
Preferential tax rates BEBE 3,115 1,637
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose DGR (297) (5,646)
Research and development tax credit EBHEER = 162
Income not taxable 1578 2R 15 A 410 2,019
Tax losses for which no deferred tax assets RERELERIBEEER
has been recognised THIBEE (4,151) (3,441)
Temporary differences for which no deferred RIEREERIHE EX
tax assets has been recognised L = (2,351) (554)
Utilisation of temporary differences for which HREABRELERIBEEDN
no deferred tax assets has been recognised Sl 529 652
Previously unrecognised tax losses recouped AT RERIBEE
to reduce current tax expense (BAR B ER RS TH A S2) 3,443 2,560
Derecognition of deferred tax assets WILERRERIBEE E (37,184) —
Income tax expense Frig i (38,873) (2,240)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B RS R MY o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—FE-—F+_A=+—HILFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

()

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not recognise
deferred tax assets in respect of accumulated tax losses
arising from the Group’s entities in the PRC amounting to
RMB43,982,000 (2020: RMB36,453,000), as management
believed it is more likely that such tax losses would not be
utilised before their expiry.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the expiry dates of tax
losses arising from the Group’s entities in the PRC with no
deferred tax assets recognised are as follows:

12. FTEBIFE X @

(b)

RZFE-—F+=-A=+—H0 #®&
ErEfAEERFTEAEENRT
FRIBE B A R #43,982,000T (=&
ZEF )\Eﬁ%s&%sooo%)ﬁ&%@
BRERBEE  RAREEERE
HRIBEERE AR KATA ffﬁzﬁﬁﬁ

RZEZ—FR-_ZFT_ZFTF+_A
:+—E| CAREER P EE R R
RIELEFHIEEE) WP IEEBE 8 A
R

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BT R ARETTT

Year of expiry B (7
2021 —E-—%F — 3,092
2022 —_EF_-_— 8,672 10,979
2023 —_= ::ﬂz 9,091 10,227
2024 —ZE 4 4,549 4,549
2025 :gfﬁﬁ 7,606 7,606
2026 —E R 14,064 —
43,982 36,453

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (“the BVI”), the Group is not
subject to any income taxes in these jurisdictions.

(©

RERSHEREABRESE (&
BRZBE D EZRIER  AEEH
BHMLSRAERNTRMAEH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B IS R I EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

©

The Group did not make any provisions for Hong Kong profit
tax as there were no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil). As at 31
December 2021, the Group did not recognise deferred tax
assets in respect of accumulated tax losses arising from the
Group’s entities in Hong Kong amounting to RMB46,358,000
(2020: RMB42,510,000).

For the year end 31 December 2021, the statutory income tax
rate of entities within the Group registered in the PRC is 25%
(2020: 25%), except for certain entities entitled to tax
exemption or preferential rates:

Since the respective first revenue-generating year, subsidiaries
of the Company operating solar power plants are exempted
from enterprise income tax for the first three years and are
entitled to a 50% tax reduction for the subsequent three years.

Tianjin Haitian Fangyuan Energy Saving Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Haitian Fangyuan”), an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, was certified as High-Tech Enterprise of
Tianjin City, effective from 23 November 2018 to 8 October
2024, during which Haitian Fangyuan enjoys a preferential tax
rate of 15%.

From 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2022, Hoboksar
Mongol Autonomous County Sifang Dianjin Energy Co., Ltd.
(“Sifang Dianjin”), an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, is exempted from enterprise income tax for the
first two years and are entitled to a 50% tax reduction for the
subsequent three years.
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12. FTEBIFE X @

©)

HRAEEREBEEZE T - —F+=
A=+ HLEFETERBEBEL
ERBURF MW B BB FBHAE
HEMBEHB(ZE_ZFE &) N
- —F+_A=+—H AEBL
ERAEERESERBMNRTE
E1B AR #46,358000L(—FE - &
£ AR #42510,0007T ) ## RE T
RIBEE -

HE-_ZT-_—F+-A=+—HLt
FE AEBRTREMAOELLE
FEHRE AR (ZT T F :25%)
HETERBERB X =ZZEENE

EXENEEEKEFERL  KNAF
RELNKBUHENMBRARAE=F%
HREBMEERSN RR=F%
50% Bt TE R %

KRABHEFREZEMBRARRESE
RO EfegERMAERAR(EBRT
[Bl ) R AT A5 KR = B B 1 3
EXHE-_ZT-NFE+—-—A=+=
BHE-_Z-_MF+HANB I - ZHHE
N BRABZE15%NEBRRE -

E-ET—-\F—H—H&E=-FT=-_=
F+-—A=+—8L1 ARRIFEEIKE
2EMBARNMRERST G A
BUrEeERERAG(TEAEE
T EMFEREANEERSH
H 1% = FE50%H ERE -



13. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B RS R MY o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 =T - —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

Basic (loss)/earnings per share

(@)
Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing the (loss)/

profit attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year:

13. R (BE) &R

BREL(ER) EF

SRER B/ BAEEA S
NI {5 (BHR), /% FI DA 2E OB B4T
IR A DA B

2021 2020
B —ZE-F
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of NARER AR (BB,
the Company (RMB’000) i A (AR T7T) (28,221) 1,064
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BETEERMNET S
in issue (thousands) (F %) 1,484,604 1,484,604
Basic (loss)/earnings per share (RMB) BREAXR(ER) AT
(NR#5T) (0.0190) 0.0007

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
assuming conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no diluted
(loss)/eamings per share has been presented because the
exercise price of the Company’s options was higher than the
average market price per share.

(b) EREE(HEE) BF

GRES(BR) BEAERSRE
%%ﬁ@&%%%@hﬁﬂﬁaﬁ
TEBBROMEFHHGE - BE
T —FRZF=F ¢+ A=
+—BUHFE YEZERES
(B1B),/BH  FREIZADRERE
MITEESRNERBRONFEATES
R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
r B BB R MY A

w9

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. 9% BEERE

Furniture,
Plant and Motor fixtures and Construction
Buildings  machinery vehicles  equipment  in progress Total
HE #B
BF BEREMW AE &L EEIR Azt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFR ARETRT ARETT ARETRT ARETR
Cost %
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-TF—H—H 16,986 517,384 2,799 20,307 4,728 562,204
Additions B = 834 = 130 — 964
Transfers B - 368 - - (368) -
Disposals of assets HERE - (378) (1,439 (50) - (1,867)
At31December2020and R Z=—ZT-ZH+-F=+—H
1 January 2021 k—ZE-_—%—A—H 16,986 518,208 1,360 20,387 4,360 561,301
Additions NE — 32,043 - 120 83 32,196
Transfers Ei - - - 43 (43) —
Disposals of assets upon & KB 2 Al
disposal of subsidiaries REEE - (4,654) - - = (4,654)
At 31 December 2021 NWZE-_—F+-A=+—8H 16,986 545,697 1,360 20,550 4,350 588,843
Accumulated depreciation Eitif E R FE
and impairment
At 1 January 2020 R-E-TF—HF—H 1,900 71,563 1,477 9,274 - 84,214
Charge for the year FRNIIZ 942 27,456 286 996 = 29,680
Disposals of assets HERE - - (1,089) 1) - (1,110
Impairment A - 5,723 - - - 5,723
At 31 December2020and M- ZE-ZTE+-_HA=1+—H
1 January 2021 ;r—E-_—%—HF—H 2,842 104,742 674 10,249 - 118,607
Charge for the year ERHF 893 23,300 63 3,183 — 27,439
Disposals of assets upon HEH B A 7B
disposal of subsidiaries REBE - (1,313) - - — (1,313)
Impairment A 8,218 3,240 - 184 - 11,642
At 31 December 2021 RZEBE-_—F+=-A=+—8H 11,953 129,969 737 13,616 — 156,275
Net book amount REFE
At 31 December 2021 RZ_BE-_—F+-A=1+—H 5,033 415,628 623 6,934 4,350 432,568
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-_ZEF+-_A=+—H 14,144 413,466 686 10,138 4,360 442,794
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B RS R MY o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—FE-—F+_A=+—HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

(@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021, depreciation
amounting to RMB19,608,000 (2020: RMB20,145,000) was
charged to cost of sales and RMB7,831,000 (2020:
RMB9,535,000) to administrative expenses.

As at 31 December 2021, certain machineries of solar power
plants of the Group with carrying amount of RMB266,055,000
(2020: RMB285,107,000) were pledged as security for the
Group’s borrowings (Note 30).

Based on an outlook of the development progress of Hoboksar
Mongol Autonomous County Hefeng Industrial Park (“Hefeng
Industrial Park”), management carried out an impairment test
on the Group’s property, plant and equipment in the
transformer station at Hefeng Industrial Park as at 31
December 2021, with carrying amount of RMB71,072,000 (2020:
RMB75,307,000). Xinjiang Saier Power Distribution Co., Ltd.
(“Xinjiang Saier”), an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, is under the process of entering into a franchise
operation agreement with the local government of Hoboksar
Mongol Autonomous County to invest and operate the
incremental electricity distribution network at Hefeng Industrial
Park for a period of 30 years.

The recoverable amount of the assets has been determined
based on a fair value less cost of disposal. The recoverable
amount is categorised within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
The calculation uses depreciated replacement cost method
based on the key assumptions including the quoted price in
the market, which reflects replacement cost of the property,
plant and equipment and obsolescence rate which is adjusted
for age, condition, economic or functional obsolescence and
environmental factor existing at the end of the year, if any.
Based on the valuation report prepared by independent third
party valuation firm, the recoverable amount would be
RMB59,430,000.

As a result of the above assessment, impairment loss of
RMB11,642,000 was recognised for the Group’s property,
plant and equipment located in Hefeng Industrial Park in the
smart energy business segment for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: nil).

14. 9% BERRE®

K*f*—¢+*ﬂi+—am
FF . AR®¥19,608,000T (=T =
=4 AR #20,145,0007T ) Eﬁ%ﬁ%
FFAEE KA - M A K ¥7,831,000
TL(ZEZFF : AR9,535,0007T)
SATHAR -

R—ZE-_—F+_A=+—H8" K@\
B A AR #266,055000T( - - %
£ AR #285107,0007T) ) AN £ F
HREBEUME THMEERIEALSE
EEErERFEES) -

BEHNATERET DB ARAEMNE
TXER(METEXERE]) BEE
EHNRE BEER_T_—F+=
B=+—BHMETXEREESE
BEEEAARE71,072,000T (= Z
—ZF: AR ¥75,307,0007T) B
¥ BMEREEBEETRENS - AQ
RMEFZENBRARNEERAE
EEERAB(FBEER]) EEHM
HREBERSOBRSE BN HM
RAIUBTRENBIUREREER
METXFEMNEERER AH
304 o

EEMATKROEERERFERD
EXRNEEE -AHESEERSR
FEEFNE=F ZtERALH
ESERANE AmE ERE(H
ARRYE - BEMRENEEK
R)RBREX (AR F&RK K LF
XPWEEREBRAERFEFRFEN
RERXFELHAR)ZEEIZRRIER
EfE -REBIUE=STHETHRAEN
HEHRS JTRESBEBSHSARE
59,430,0007T °

ER Lt BE2_2 - %+
“A=T-HLEFEE - AKEEER

REREBE DR E I%llﬁﬁ’]%
¥ BELRERERREBEARE
11,642,000 C(ZF_FF : ) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR B R AR BT o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

(d) Based on an outlook of the operating condition of a solar
power plant owned by the Group, management carried out
an impairment test on the property, plant and equipment
in the solar power plant as at 31 December 2021, with
carrying amount of RMB4,880,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB5,230,000). The recoverable amount of the assets has
been determined based on the higher of their fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. The value in use calculation
uses cash flow projection based on approved financial budget
and a pre-tax discount rate of 14%. The key assumption of the
cash flow projection is a nil annual growth rate in revenue for

the budget period and the extrapolation period.

As a result of the above assessment, no impairment was
recognised for the property, plant and equipment in the solar
power plant for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:

RMB1,356,000).
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14. ¥ BEREKRE=m

BEH —HBEAEEEBENLRE
MEERANBE BEER_Z
——Ft+_A=+t—BHZAXNKRE
kR EE A A K #4,880,0007T (=
T_TFE+_A=+—H: AR¥¥
5,230,0007C) B ¥ %« R 5 K 5%
TREANR - BE/MTKESERE
ERFEREER ANz ZHFERAE
EFNBRREETE FHEBKEERN
EHENBKEENHESREEN L
FRATIT IR L14% 5 E - HE mE 8
MEZBRXBTEE IR E AUk
ENFEERAET -

ER s #E2—2 - —F+—
B=+—BLEFE ZXKESTHD
ME - MERREBL ERDREESIE
(ZZ2 =% : AR®1,356,0007T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B RS R MY o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 =T - —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

15. LEASES 15. HE
This note provides information for leases where the Group is a HHaFEREAEBEEAABANTEE
lessee: AR
(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (@ REEMBERRERERZDN
statement of financial position €5
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

R=-B=-—F RZZEZTF
+=A=+—-8 +ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR% T AR®T T

Right-of-use assets EHEEE

Leasehold land and land use rights THE L & L A 11,252 9,474

Properties LyES 3,810 6,630

Equipment B 21 39
15,083 16,143

Lease liabilities HEERFE

Current mE) 627 2,726

Non-current JET &Y 12,110 9,213
12,737 11,939

The additions to the right-of-use assets were RMB912,000 B -_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H1I1t

during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil). FE O ANENEAEEEABARKE

912,000 (=T T F : &) o

BEEZNESRRERARAA FH 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A B RS R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z —T — — %+ —

15. LEASES (Continued)

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss

A=+—HILFE

15. H & @)

b) REEEBEREINEEHE

2021 2020
—E-_—F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T T
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets EHEEENITEER
Leasehold land and land use rights FAE b & 4t 5 B #E 799 267
Properties LIS 2,841 3,342
Equipment B 19 21
3,659 3,630
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets 1 FH HE & R (B B 18
Leasehold land and land use right FHE L b & 4t {5 B i 80 -
Interest expense (included in finance expenses)  F| 8.5 X (5t AR & B X2) 726 732
Expense relating to short-term leases REEERERX
(included in administrative expenses) GTATTEHAZA) 2,969 2,650
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets TR RREEAEENEKE
that are not shown above as short-term leases A& EHR EEBAH X
(included in administrative expenses) Gt ATTERASZA) = =

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the total cash
outflow for leases was RMB5,569,000 (2020: RMB6,499,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B ISR I EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 =T - —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B EE
Goodwill Software Patent Total
e 4 =5 @t

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE ARBTE ARETT ARETRT

At 31 December 2019 R-E-AE+=B=+—H
Cost B AR 3,261 17,630 4,038 24,929
Accumulated amortisation and R EERRE

impairment (2,209 (12,597) (672) (15,378)
Net book amount REEE 1,052 5,033 3,466 9,551

Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-Z2-ZH5+-A=+—-HLEE

Opening net book amount HYREFE 1,052 5,083 3,466 9,551
Amortisation charge HHET - (2,220) (404) (2,624)
Impairment WA (138) — — (138)
Closing net book amount HRREFE 914 2,813 3,062 6,789
At 31 December 2020 R-B-8&+-A=+-8H
Cost [HEN 3,261 17,630 4,038 24,929
Accumulated amortisation and R EBHEKAE

impairment (2,347) (14,817) (76) (18,140)
Net book amount REFEE 914 2,813 3,062 6,789

Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-E--H+-A=+—-HLEE

Opening net book amount YR E S A 914 2,813 3,062 6,789
Amortisation charge BHTH - (1,671) (403) (2,074)
Closing net book amount HREREFE 914 1,142 2,659 4,715
At 31 December 2021 R-ZB-—-%+=-B=+-H
Cost B AR 3,261 17,630 4,038 24,929
Accumulated amortisation and R EEIRE

impairment (2,347) (16,488) (1,379) (20,214)
Net book amount REFE 914 1,142 2,659 4,715
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
r B BB R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 16. B EE @)

(@) For the year ended 31 December 2021, amortisation @ BEZ—Z-_—F+-A=+—H1
amounting to RMB1,543,000 (2020: RMB1,953,000) was FE  AR¥A1543000L(ZFE=F
charged to administrative expenses and RMB531,000 (2020: F: AR™1,953,0007T) K9 # 855 A
RMB671,000) to cost of sales. THRX - i AR%531,000T(=ZF

—ZTF: AR#671,0007T) 5t AHE
BN ©
(o)  The following table presents the changes in goodwill for the ) TERHFINHEZE-_Z-_—FR_ZT_—
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. ZE+ _A=+t—HILEFENHE
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 Additions 2020 Additions 2021
R=B-N% R=-Z-%& R-ZB=-%
+=-A=+-H #m +=-A=t+-H #m +=A=t+-H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR AREFT ARETR AREFT
Goodwil BE
Gao Bei Dian City Guangshuo New Energy S Em tBH R EE
Group Co., Ltd. (‘Guangshuo’) BRAR(HE]) 686 - 686 = 686
Haitian Fangyuan BALE 366 = 366 = 366
Hebei Fakai Energy Development Co., Ltd. 73t & %8l 4 R 5 ¢
(“Fakal") BEREMTAA (%)) 2,209 - 2,209 - 2,209
3,261 — 3,261 - 3,261
Impairment R fE
Guangshuo (Note) YR8 (B 7E) = (138) (138) - (138)
Haitian Fangyuan BXAE = = = = -
Fakai %y 2,209) - (2,209) - (2.209)
(2,209 (138) (2,347) — (2,347
1,062 (138) 914 — 914

Note: Guangshuo and its subsidiaries (together the “Guangshuo Group”),
engaged in the electricity sales business, owns two solar power
plants. The assets of each solar power plant represent a cash-
generating unit (‘CGU”). The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have
been determined based on the higher of their fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. The calculations use cash flow projections
based on approved financial budgets and pre-tax discount rate of
14%. The key assumption of the cash flow projections is a nil annual
growth rate in revenue.

As a result of the above assessment, no impairment of goodwill was
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
RMB138,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B ISR I EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—FE-—F+_A=+—HILFE

17. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

17. EEREH

2021 2020
e —E_EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 33,043 71,692
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIE & & (10,854) (11,490)
Movements in deferred tax assets are as follows: REFREEEMNZEHNAT
Loss
allowance  Loss allowance Loss Impairment
for trade and for financial ~ allowance  Provisions of property, Impairment
other assetsat for contract for  plantand of intangible
receivables  amortised cost assets inventories equipment assets Total
EEREM REHHATE
EWHEN HEREEN ANEE N¥E BE EREE
BEEE BREEE FHEEE FEBE RRXEAE HE @
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR
As at 1 January 2020 R-E-ZE- H A 45,323 18,422 4,787 403 - 1,072 70,007
Credit/(charge) to profit or loss 782 A B/ (312 3,922 (2,394) - (216) 339 34 1,685
As at 31 December 2020 RZB-BE+-A=+-H
and 1 January 2021 —E-_-f¥-8-H 49,245 16,028 4,787 187 339 1,106 71,692
Charge to profit or loss nEEAR (18,005) (14,598) (4,787) (187) - (1,072) (38,649)
As at 31 December 2021 R-B--£#+-A=+-8H 31,240 1,430 - - 339 34 33,043
Movements in deferred tax liabilities are as follows: REFHBEENESHWOT :
Fair value
adjustments in
business
combinations
EBEOM
AFEBE
RMB’000
ARETTT
As at 1 January 2020 R-—ZE-_ZF—H—H 11,891
Credit to profit or loss REz= AR (401)
As at 31 December 2020 R-—EB-_ZBFE+=-—A=+—8H 11,490
Credit to profit or loss Rz AR (636)
As at 31 December 2021 R-B-_—f+=-A=+—H 10,854

EEZNESRRERARAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B IS R I EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

18. CONTRACT ASSETS 18. EHNEE
2021 2020
—E-—& —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT T ARET T
Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits ~ Fff & 4 & 49 A 78 10 _F 2 1§ R
less recognised losses i AR B T R 18 1,683,689 1,532,573
Less: progress billings R IR (1,495,967) (1,351,310)
Net balance sheet position for ongoing contracts #4& & K H)F & E B ERIR N 187,722 181,263
Of which are: Hr
Current contract assets MBENEE 187,722 181,263
Non-current contract assets FERBEHNEE = —
187,722 181,263

According to the amendment to the original agreement of Baoding
Donghu Cultural Center Project entered into between Baoding
Municipal People’s Government and the Group in the end of 2019,
contract assets in respect of income tax and certain expenses
incurred in previous years as well as related profits would not be
compensated. Therefore, a provision of RMB882,000 was made by
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2020. No such

BERETARBRNEAEER - —
NERBRERBAXAFROLIEEB LD
EmEnEs] SREFEENMEH -
BORIRAEBEFNENEETSES
HWE - At A"EBRBE-_ZS_ZTF+
AT HLEGEERNARBEBHEARYE
882,00 HE-_TE-—F+-_A=+—

provision was made during the year ended 31 December 2021. BIEEFEATEELBEBEE - EHNEE
Movement in the loss allowance of contract assets is as follows: NEEREEZHNT :

2021 2020

—E-—F T

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE T ARET T

Opening balance HA ) 45 R = -
Increase in loss allowance B 1B B L N = 882
Written off as uncollectible 42 55 W 3] M A 8H = (882)
Closing balance AR 4 8% = -

150

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited Annual Report 2021



19. SUBSIDIARIES

The Group’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021 and
2020 are set out below. The place of incorporation is also their

principal place of business.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #; =

4T E

N

T —F+=

B A5 ¥R R Y ot
A=+—BLFE

19. i B 2 =]

TRIWREAEBR _TE-_—FR_FT_-F
F+ZA=Z+—HOEEMBERA -
BB N R R F B A

Place of Incorporation Ownership
and kind interest held
Name of entity of legal entity Registered capital by the Group  Principal activities
&E il AR 3 it B % rEBEREN
EREB EEBERER 2MELX FEEER FEEH
Beijing Longguang Energy Technology the PRC RMB90,000,000 100%  Smart energy service
Co., Ltd limited liability company
RS REREIR AR AR FE AR #90,000,0007T BERIRTS
BREEAT
Beijing LongjiTaihe Energy Technology the PRC RMB50,000,000 100%  Smart energy service
Co., Ltd limited liability company
L REEFMEEREIRBR AR PE AR ¥50,000,0007T BERIRIRTS
BREEAF
Hebei Longitech Cloud Energy the PRC RMB300,000,000 100%  Smart energy service
Technology Co., Ltd. limited liability company
AMIEEEFRMNEERER AR A A FE A R #300,000,0007T BERIRRES
BREERA
Gao Bei Dian City Guangshuo the PRC RMB125,708,800 100%  Operation of solar
New Energy Group Co., Ltd. limited liability company power plant
S ET A EEREBMBR QA HE AR #125,708,800 7T EENRREU
EREMEDA
Zhongneng Hexin Longhua County Solar the PRC RMB10,000,000 100%  Operation of solar
Power Generation Co., Ltd. limited liability company power plant
MENER(CEAGREEREREELAT FH A F #10,000,000 7T BEXREU
BREMERA
Tianjin Haitian Fangyuan Energy Saving the PRC RMB111,111,100 55%  Smart energy service
Technology Co., Ltd. limited liability company
REFRFEHERMER A A # AR#111,111,1007T BEERRG
BREERA
Hebei Yuedu City Construction the PRC RMB120,000,000 100%  Public infrastructure
Investment Co., Ltd. limited liability company construction
AL RBETRERKRERRD E A R #120,000,0007T NEER
EREMELDA
Baoding Qiantai Investment Co., Ltd. the PRC RMB120,000,000 100%  Public infrastructure
limited liability company construction
RELFKREFRRAA HE A R #120,000,0007T NEER
BREMERA
Notes: BisE
(0] The principal place of operation of each subsidiary is the same as its place (i) BM B Az £ B AL I B R H o K S i 2
of incorporation. HHE -
(ii) The English names of certain subsidiaries represent the best effort by the (ii) ARETHBARYTEE A RERE HK
Group’s management to translate their Chinese names, as these XEBNIAEEEREEBERABABEFRX
subsidiaries do not have official English names. ZIBBIEMSG
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re IR M
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

20. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD

20. RAREZEZABRHNKRE

The table below provides the reconciliation of the Group’s aggregate TREFHAEEREZENTHIEEEZEH

carrying amounts of investments in associates from opening to V)L B R A e 9 ¥ BR -
closing balances:
2021 2020
—E-—fF e Sl o= 5
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AR T T
Opening balance HA ) 45 5 263,397 280,645
Share of net profit/(loss) of associates accounted  ££ FA # 25 7% A BE B Bk & A 7]
for using the equity method AR, (4 E)mDE 2,457 (17,248)
Closing balance AR 4 8% 265,854 263,397

Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31 December
2021 and 2020. The entities listed below have share capital
consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the
Group. The place of incorporation is also their principal place of
business, and the proportion of ownership interest is the same as the
proportion of voting rights held.

NTEHIWAEER=ZZE=Z—FR_FT=_F
FH+ZA=+—BMBEL A Ty EE
MR ERTBBRAEN AAEBHEER
BoRAradMEK I TIAEFTFELEM
OB ERERMLLAEEENREREL
BIFE R -

% of ownership interest
As at 31 December

Carrying amount
As at 31 December

152

BB & R o Al REE
Wt+t=HA=+—-H R+=-A=+-8
Place of Measurement
Name of entity incorporation 2021 2020 method 2021 2020
BEREH MR EYE —E--—F —_T_TF HEFE B —ZT-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETR
Longyao (Beijing) Clean Energy the PRC 45% 45% Equity method - —
Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Longyao Beijing”) (a)
iR (b 7)) B RERRHR B R A A HE &%
(Mz b2 1) (@)
Gao Bei Dian City Longchuang the PRC 40% 40% Equity method 265,854 263,397
Central Heating Co., Ltd.
(“Longchuang Heating”) (b)
SEETRASEHHAGRA R B B E
(28120 1) o)
265,854 263,397
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B RS R MY o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—FE-—F+_A=+—HILFE

20. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
US'NG THE EQU'TY METHOD (Continued)

(a

(b)

On 4 June 2018, Baoding Yize New Energy Technology Co.,
Ltd. (“Baoding Yize”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and Beijing Yaohui Hengchang Technology
Partnership Enterprise (Limited Partnership) (“Beijing Yaohui”),
an independent third party, agreed to make capital contribution
to Longyao Beijing, which is principally engaged in heat supply
business. As a result, Baoding Yize obtained 45% equity
interest of Longyao Beijing and shall contribute
RMB135,000,000 to Longyao Beijing before 31 December
2021. During the year ended 31 December 2021, Baoding
Yize and Beijing Yaohui had entered into supplemental
agreement that the unpaid amount to be paid before 31
December 2025. RMB33,400,000 has been paid by Baoding
Yize as of 31 December 2021 and 2020.

On 21 May 2019, Beijing Longguang Energy Technology Co.,
Ltd. (“Beijing Longguang”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a capital increase agreement
with Hebei Julin Chuanghe Cultural Communication Co., Ltd.
(“Hebei Julin”), a company owned by the controlling
shareholder, pursuant to which Beijing Longquang agreed to
make capital contribution to Longchuang Heating, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Hebei Julin. As a result, Beijing Longguang
obtained 40% equity interest of Longchuang Heating by
making capital contribution of RMB245,000,000. According to
the valuation report issued by an independent third-party
valuer, the Group’s share of the fair value of Longchuang
Heating’s identifiable assets and liabilities on the acquisition
date was RMB263,000,000. The excess of the Group’s share
of the fair value of Longchuang Heating’s identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of investment amounting to
RMB18,000,000 was included as share of net profit of
associates accounted for using the equity method for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

According to the capital increase agreement, Hebei Julin has a
profit guarantee for Longchuang Heating, which will be
assessed by Beijing Longguang and Hebei Julin every three
years from 1 January 2020. The profit compensation will be
calculated at the end of each three-year term and settled by
Hebei Julin on or before 31 March of the year immediately
following the relevant three-year term. The first three-year term
ending 31 December 2022 will be assessed and settled on or
before 31 March 2023.

20. RAZEEZEARARE @

(a)

(b)

RZE—N\FNANBE  AQ A MEE
2ENE R RRE B ZENERE
BERABR(RERE)BBYLE=H
ErRREEEREAREX(ERE
B) (M7 RE]) R mERIER(F
EREHEABER)ETEE - B
RE B IEENS [ 4t ;R 45% I 7 B 78
R —F+=_A=+—HAMA
P2 3k i & A R #135,000,0007T ©
NEgz-—_ZE=-—®+=-A=+—8
IEFE - RERZBEI BB/
nHE BN _TE-_AF+-_A=+
—BAXNANR -BHEZZT=—F
;rZZEZEF+ZR=+—8 RE
a0 B X A R #33,400,0007T ©

R—ZE—-—hAFRA-_+—H ' &R
FIEEZENEB QR RE XER
B AR AN REN]) HEhiE
A% R% B8 4% A /9 ] db B0 Al A0 (b &
BAERQAA(NDILEM]) EEHE
W bt REXRE BRI 2
2EWBARIEAZ HETIEE -
At tRBEAEREEARE
245,000,000 7T BX 15 [ &l 2 17 40% %
- REBYE=HAHEMEAEN
HERS ~AEBEGEAR DR
KWEAMABINEERBENRF
B B A R #263,000,0007C ° A~ & &
EHEAIRNAZNEERABEN
ATEFEBLEHEEKREANIED AR
18,000,000 Tt A E - — N F+
A=+ —BLEFEHRRAERZEA
BR A & A AR AL A n 58 -

R AR L B 1 ’/Tit %B;TE%EJxﬂjJ
FEMRE ZRBEN-_Z=_ZF
—H—Ell?ﬂﬁéﬁﬂib/?\ﬁ%tﬂﬂib%
HMEB=FZZ— R - mfHEBES
= FHEREFTE WAL BT
REEBEE=-FHEZ2FEZ=A
=t —HRZAGEE -BHEZ_T ==
F+-—A=Z+-—BHNE—HBE=FH
REE_—_ZE_=F=A=+—H3K
ZRIETERMGEH o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B IS R I EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

20. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR 20. RAESEEARNKRE @

US'NG THE EQU'TY METHOD (Continued)

() The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of losses (c) remERIIERENERILERY
of Longyao Beijing. The amount of unrecognised share of the EEME HEARRBILRAFES
associate, extracted from the relevant management account of FERERAMZEE AT AER
Longyao Beijing for the year is as follows: MEBEEWAT

2021 2020
—B=-—F —E_EF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BT T ARETTT

Unrecognised share of losses of associates REFEHE DA RER
for the year BRM5 2 945 491
(d) Commitments in respect of associates (d) B&EQRHEHEBRAE
2021 2020
—E-——F —E T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR F T
Investment in associate REE R FIRE 101,600 101,600
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B RS R MY o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—FE-—F+_A=+—HILFE

associates

20. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR 20.
US'NG THE EQU'TY METHOD (Continued)

(¢) Summarised financial information for

The table below provides summarised financial information for
the Group’s associates. The information disclosed reflects the
amounts presented in the financial statements of the relevant

associates, which have been amended to reflect adjustments
made by the Group when using the equity method, including
fair value adjustments and modifications for differences in

accounting policy.

FASREARNEBE @

() BE QT HBERBL

AEBBRERRMBESBLMT
RETR c WEMNEBRRAARE 2R
AMBHRERTERNESHE  ZFEE
EETER  URBASEERA#E
SERMERAE BREATERER
S BRRERBENER -

2021 2020
—E-—F Sl o= =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREF T
Longchuang Heating ERIZ N
Summarised statement of financial position B #5 AR SR R A A
Current assets BB E 1,396,150 1,062,059
Non-current assets EMEEE 677,193 536,525
Current liabilities wREBBEE (858,607) (545,984)
Non-current liabilities EmEBAE (714,567) (665,773)
Net Assets FEE 500,169 486,827
Reconciliation to carrying amounts B4 B T B ¥ IR
Opening net assets HYFEE 486,827 475,031
Profit for the year F A g A 13,342 11,796
Closing net assets BRFEE 500,169 486,827
Fair value adjustments NSRS
Revaluation surplus on acquisition kg S (g E 182,440 182,440
Amortisation of share of revaluation surplus BHEEDREEH (17,973) (10,774)
Closing net assets adjusted using the equity RAERZEZAZRNER
method HEE 664,636 658,493
Group’s shares in % 7N & [ F5 AR ) 40% 40%
Group’s shares in RMB NEB R D AAREESR 265,854 263,397
Carrying amounts of investment in associates REEE QAR EREE 265,854 263,397
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR B IS R I EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z —T — — %+ —

20. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD (cont

(e) Summarised financial informat

A=+—HILFE

20. RAEREARNKRE @

inued)

ion for

e BMEAAMBEEBL

associates (Continued) (%0
2021 2020
—E-—& —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Longchuang Heating (Continued) 2Rl &0 ()
Year ended 31 December BE+-A=+—-HLEE
Revenue Il ogss 221,576 195,458
Expenses 53 (208,234) (183,662)
Profits from continuing operations 5B AS T A 13,342 11,796
Other comprehensive income Em2EEA = =
Total comprehensive income MR A BT 13,342 11,796

Dividend record from associate

NG SRR

B

T

el
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B ISR I EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 =T - —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

20. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
US'NG THE EQU'TY METHOD (Continued)

20. RAZEEZEARARE @

(¢) Summarised financial information for

€ BMEAAMBEEBL

associates (Continued)

(%)

2021 2020
—E-—& —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Longyao Beijing R 24k
Summarised statement of financial position B 75 AR SR 3R A
Current assets MEEE 1,762 2,487
Non-current assets EREEE 67 124
Current liabilities neaE (5,015) (8,702)
Net liabilities FEE (3,186) (1,091)
Reconciliation to carrying amounts HEmMEHR
Opening net (liabilities)/assets HyF (AR, AE (1,091) 42,412
Loss for the year FAEE (2,095) (43,503)
Closing net liabilities HRFEE (3,186) (1,091)
Group’s shares in % 7N 55 [ F5 AR b A 45% 45%

Group’s shares in RMB

SEBRMHAARESIR — —

Carrying amounts of investment in associates

B R RR A BRE(E - —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
Re P BHmR N
For the year ended 31 December 2021 & - &~ —F+

21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY

The Group holds the following financial instruments:

(a) Financial assets

STATEMENTS

—A=+—HBIHFE

21. €T EER

AEERBETIERITA:

(a eMEE
As at
31 December 2021
R-B=-—F
+=A=+-—H
Financial assets at
amortised cost

REBERATE
WEmEE
RMB’000
ARET
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk H b fE Y TR IA
(excluding non-financial assets) (TREFeHmEE) 208,705
Financial assets at amortised cost REHEK AT ENECREE 64,035
Restricted cash PR R e 18,341
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEY 222,320
513,401
As at 31 December 2020
RZTE-_TF+-_RA=+—8H

Financial assets

at fair value

Financial assets through profit
at amortised cost or loss Total

BRAFE

REBHKA EHHES

ATERSE FAEEA
EEMESRMEE SHAE At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT

Trade and other receivables B 5 & H A Y F IR

(excluding non-financial assets) (T"BEFEEmEE) 212,639 — 212,639
Financial assets at amortised cost 1z 44 5k AN 51 & 9

TREE 72,861 - 72,861

Financial assets at fair value BRATHEFEEEE
through profit or loss AN EREE = 47,061 47,061
Restricted cash R HI3R & 139 — 139
Cash and cash equivalents BERBEE2EEY 155,446 — 155,446
441,085 47,061 488,146
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B ISR I EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 =T - —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 2. €@ T EEA @
CATEGORY (Continued)
(b) Financial liabilities (b) ERLEE

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost

REBHERATENESRESE
2021 2020
—E-—F —EZEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARBTT

Trade and other payables B 5 Rk E A ERFRIE
(excluding non-financial liabilities) (T"BEFerRER) 64,883 68,919
Borrowings TEWE 211,000 235,400
Lease liabilities HESE 12,737 11,939
288,620 316,258
22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 2. BZAFEFTEBHEH
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS AEBERWNERMEE
2021 2020
— B —E T4
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AR¥TT

Unlisted exchangeable bond (a) JELEMAI R #BEZ@Q) - 962
Unlisted investment funds (b) FEEMBREES () - 46,099
- 47,061
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B IS R I EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 22,
THROUGH PROF'T OR LOSS (Continued)

The following table presents the changes in financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss for the years ended 31 December 2021

RATEFEEHE
AEENEREE @

TEE2IBE-_S-_—GER-_FT-_TEF+
A=t BLFEERAFEFEAEHE

and 2020: it \BaNEREENES)
Unlisted Unlisted
investment exchangeable
funds bond Total
FETRE FEH
ES A RBRES @et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREBTIT AR%®TT
As at 1 January 2020 R-ZZE-_ZF—H—H 152,090 4,913 157,003
Disposals == (1083,650) (3,898) (107,548)
Gains recognised in other gains — net A EMIN R FEEH ERH
1 &= 1,340 30 1,370
Exchange differences & =% (3,681) (83) (3,764)
As at 31 December 2020 and R-B-ZF+=-HA=+—H
1 January 2021 E=—=Z=-_—F—H—H 46,099 962 47,061
Disposals & (43,722) (890) (44,612)
Gains/(losses) recognised in other gains 7 - {th U 25 )% %8 1 7 A &
— net Wi (E#8) 776 (76) 700
Exchange differences PE 5 =%8 (3,153) 4 (3,149)
As at 31 December 2021 R-B=-—F+=-HA=+—H — = =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z — &

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROF'T OR LOSS (Continued)

(@)

On 11 September 2018, the Group subscribed for an unlisted
exchangeable corporate bond issued by Supreme Trillion
Development Limited (“Supreme Trillion”), an independent third
party. The principal amount was HK$10,000,000. The
convertible bond matures on 15 May 2020 and bears coupon
of 13.5% annually. During the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Group had applied for redemption of the exchangeable
bond in eleven equal installments and held the right to convert
the remaining amount of the bond into ordinary shares of Asia
Interactive Content Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of Supreme
Trillion, before its maturity.

As at 31 December 2020, the remaining principle amount was
HK$715,000 (equivalent to RMB602,000), while the fair value
of the exchangeable bond was HK$1,142,000 (equivalent to
RMB962,000). During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
remaining principal and interest income of the exchangeable
bonds was fully redeemed. No interest income was included in
fair value gains as other gains for the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: HK$36,000, equivalent to RMB30,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group held
shares in Yue Xiu SP, an unlisted third-party investment fund
registered with Cayman Islands Monetary Authority, with
investment cost of HK$88,800,000. As at 31 December 2020,
Yue Xiu SP invested in unlisted debt security. As at 31
December 2020, the investment in Yue Xiu SP was stated at
fair value amounting to HK$54,773,000 (equivalent to
RMB46,099,000). During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the full amount of investment was redeemed. A fair value gains
of HK$909,000 (equivalent to RMB776,000) was recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: a fair value loss
of HK$250,000, equivalent to RMB222,000).

22.

=

> 55
i D>

R e M ERRK
——#+-A=t+—ALFE

TESEBHS
HEHNEMEE @

R_ZE—NFhLA+—8 &x&H
REHEZKRKERBR QA (EK]D
(—BBILE=F)BETMNIELTA
RIR A EFH o AN % 5 410,000,000
BreAimRESFNIBABR-Z
“ETERATRB EBEMNEXA
1835% - HE-_ZT—NFE+_F=+
—HLEFE AEBEHRBFH T+ —H
SHELORBES  KEFEAEREH
B TEFEREBEKREREBR
AEIB AR ENEBERIERE
PR A 7] & 3 38 AR AR 1 B B F o

RZZE-_TF+-_A=+—H" &
T A & 58 A715,00058 7T (48 & B A
K #602,0007t)  MAI RM|EFHF A
F1{E /1,142,000 T (HHE R AR
962,0007T) cHE-_T=-—F+=A
=t+t—BHIEFE ZARBREFFT
MASHMFBWRARZEHER - &HE
—E - F+-_A=+—HILEE
WEEABEMBFTARTFEKE
B F B WA (ZF ZF F : 36,000
7T ABE R A R #30,0007T) °

HEz_Z2-_=2F+_-_A=+—HL
FE AEEFBYueXuSP(RHAE
HESCREEREMKIMNIELD
EZFREES)NRMD  BERE
/488,800,000 L - R=—E—_FF +
—A=1+—8 " YueXiuSP#% & T 3
EWEHF RZE_TF+_A=+
— B RYueXiuSPHI & & A T E
| Bk £54,773,0008 T (HHE R AR
#46,099,000) c BE T = —F
+—A=1t-BLHEE REHE2H
o -HE-_ET-_—F+-A=+—
H 1k & [ 75 2 F {8 U 25 909,000 7%
T(HERARET776,0007T) (ZZ =
T4 A F B 1#8250,0007% 7T 0 7
R ARK2220005T) °

EEZNESRFERARLT  F#H 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B IS R I EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 2. ZAFEFEHEHBEG
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued) ABEBZHNEREE @
(€©)  The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss © AEERZAFEFEBEZEHTA
were denominated in the following currencies: BROSREENTYEEEHE -
2021 2020
=B —F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AR¥TT

US$ xETT — 46,099

HK$ BT — 962

— 47,061

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED W ZHBERNELTENE
COST BE

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-THF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AR¥TT

Loans to related parties REERT @S 12,662 15,778
Loans to third parties REERTE=H 61,703 76,153
Receivable relating to investment in Shandong B 38 5 252 8RR (5
Hailifeng Clean Energy Joint Stock Co., Ltd BRAB(NENEDKEE
(“Hailifeng”) (Note 23(c)) B 78 89 FE W IE (M 3E23(c)) 60,000 60,000
134,365 151,931
Less: loss allowance R SR (70,330) (79,070)
64,035 72,861
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B RS R MY o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 =T - —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED

COST (Continued)

Interests from loans to related parties and third parties charged at
commercial rates are included in finance income.

For debt investments at amortised cost considered to have low credit
risk, applying the expected credit risk model result in loss allowance
recognised of RMB126,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
RMB587,000).

For debt investments at amortised cost showing a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a total allowance of
lifetime expected credit losses amounting to RMB70,204,000 was
recognised as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020:
RMB78,483,000).

Movement in the loss allowance of financial assets at amortised cost

S.EBERATENERE

= m

REHEERTHEB I RE=TNEEEE
M EWE - S ABEWRARA

HEWRAEBEREERRMOIREHEK AR
EMERKRE EAEHEERKER
BYR _E-_—F+-_A=+—"HERE
BEEARK126000T(Z T _TF: A
R #587,0007T) °

HE AR EREEERREZE N
REEANAFENERERE RZ2F=
—F+ - A=+—ERRANEFEHES
FEEEBEMNBELTE R ART70,204,000
T(ZE-_ZETE+-_A=+—H0: AR
78,483,0007T) °

REERAGFENEREENBEREE

is as follows: EZ RN
Receivable
Loans Loans to relating to
to related third parties investment
parties (a) (b) in Hailifeng (c) Total
HigR g
REHEERT REERT REFBEMN
BHA@ SE=Ab EWFKIE() et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTT ARBTT ARBTT AR®BTT

As at 1 January 2020 R-—B-ZEF—-H—H 2,156 78,471 15,162 95,789
Increase/(decrease) in loss B 18 B 1 0, Crt 4)

allowance 587 (14,539) — (13,952)
Written-off i — — (2,767) (2,767)
As at 31 December 2020 R-—E-_ZEFE+-A=+—H

and 1 January 2021 K=B=—%—HA—H 2,743 63,932 12,395 79,070
Decrease in loss allowance &5 48 5 & R (461) (1,629) (6,050) (8,140)
Written-off I 58 = (600) — (600)
As at 31 December 2021 NR-—-E-_—%+=-_H=+—H 2,282 61,703 6,345 70,330
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re IR M
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED 2. REERATENERE

COST (Continued)

(@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the loss allowance of
RMB461,000 was reversed for (2020: RMB587,000 was
charged to) loans to related parties based on the
management’s impairment assessment.

The Group’s loans to third parties mainly include various loans
provided to target companies in accordance with the payment
arrangement of potential acquisition transactions. The Group
recovered part of the loans during the year ended 31
December 2021, a total allowance for expected credit losses
amounting to RMB61,703,000 was recognised as at 31
December 2021 (2020: RMB63,932,000).

The security of loans to third parties is as follows:

Principal amount as

= m

@ BzE—Z-_—4F+=-A=+—HL
FE RETEEMENRBETR -
0 BB T IR A B KB B R (A B
BAR®EL61,000C(ZZE=ZFF : 1
B A R ¥587,0007T) °

b)) AEERAF=ZFREMNEREESR
BZ2EREERBRIONRETH
MEZEARRHEMNER REEZT
4+ A=t HLFE AE
BB THBHIER MR =—
+TZA=+—BREHEEEER
R B LR AR61,703,0007T (=
T T F : AR¥63,932,0007T) °

ME=ZHDRENEREROT

at 31 December 2021 Pledged assets Guarantees
R=ZZB=—-F+=H
=t+t—HNELLHE CEREE ERA
RMB’000
AR®BT T
2,000 Borrower’s assets By the borrower’s controlling shareholder and
an independent third party
BERABE BRAERBRRE—EBIE=H
7,000 Equity interest in the borrower By the borrower’s parent company, controlling
shareholder and his spouse
CEUNE ERAZBRE] - ZERRER R A RS
24,600 Borrower’s assets and equity interest By one of the shareholders of the borrower

in a third-party company

ERABER—HFE =77 2 A IR

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group’s financial
assets at amortised cost were all denominated in RMB.

Since the financial assets at amortised cost were short-term in
nature and the interest rates were close to the market rates,
the carrying amounts of financial assets at amortised cost were
not materially different from their fair values as at 31 December
2021 and 2020.
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and independent third parties
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23.

24,

25.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B RS R MY o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 =T - —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED
COST (Continued)

(c) Based on management’s estimate of the future cash flows of

Hailifeng discounted at a current lending rate, a loss allowance
amounting to RMB6,345,000 (2020: RMB12,395,000) was
recognised as at 31 December 2021.

B BBEAATENEHE

= m

by BEEEEBEHENERRESRE
REMNBERMERBENGT  RZF
T+ _fF=+ - HEREBEE
B AR #6,345,000c (—Z - T4 :
AR #12,395,0007T) °

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 24. HhIERBEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —EZEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T
Recoverable value-added tax to be utilised R—FEFERANFREET
after one year HEIFF S 11,728 9,605
INVENTORIES 25. 7 &
2021 2020
=B —F —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETF T
Finished goods B2 B 30,828 29,990
Less: write-downs of inventories B FE®RE (23) (999)
30,805 28,991

Cost of inventories amounting to RMB210,591,000 (2020:
RMB139,896,000) were recognised as cost of sales during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Write-downs of inventories to net realisable value amounting to
RMBnil (2020: RMBnil) were recognised in cost of sales during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

The Group reversed RMB976,000 (2020: RMB904,000) of previous
write-downs of inventories during the year ended 31 December 2021
since the Group has sold the goods to independent customers. The
amount reversed was included in cost of sales for the year ended 31
December 2021.

BE-_ZE-—F+=-_A=+—RILEE"
FEKARARK210,591,000t( = T =
THE . AR #139,806,0007T) R A HE
BN o

BE_T-_—F+_A=+—BLHFE"
GFEREAEZRFENKEARKEZT T
(Z2Z2F  ARBZ D) BRNEEK
ANH o

BHE_TZ-_—F+-A=+—HLFE"
HRASEEEBEREETBLR P
REBBOBLAERNGEREARE
976,000t (= T =T F : A & #904,000
L) cBEMESEABE=TS=_—F+=
A=+ —BLEFEREERANR -

EEZNESRFERARLT  F#H 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B IS R I EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26. E5 R EMEWRIE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AR®TT

Trade receivables (a) 2 5 W FRIE () 281,949 310,493
Tariff adjustment receivables (b) & 1 B FE FRE (0) 103,309 84,592
385,258 395,085
Less: loss allowance o IR s (205,701) (203,296)
Total trade receivables B 5 RE R IERTE 179,557 191,789
Notes receivables R E & 400 550
Prepayments TEAS IR 4,699 45,560
Deposits and other receivables & & & H Ath 8 W I8 29,305 20,857
Less: loss allowance for other receivables R E A FE W R IE B R (557) (657)
Gross trade and other receivables B 5 Kk E A fE W SRIB B 58 213,404 258,199
Non-current portion IFERBE D (8,000) —
Current portion mENEB 205,404 258,199
As at 31 December 2021, the collection rights of trade receivables R-_E-_—F+_A=+—HBH kB H
derived from certain solar power plants with carrying amount of FHRRE U ER@EE AR 141,797,000 7T
RMB141,797,000 (31 December 2020: RMB94,234,000) were (ZEZZEF+ZA=Z+—H: ARK
pledged as security for the Group’s borrowings (Note 30). 94,234,0007T) B B 5 & Uz 7K 18 UK 3Rk 4 A

FIERAKEEEMNER (HFEI0)

Ageing analysis of trade receivables in gross basis, based on the EREZAHNESRKNFIERLTENRR
invoice date is as follows: DT :

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARBTT

Within 1 year R—F R 66,023 93,182
1 year to 2 years —FERF 38,322 76,065
2 years to 3 years MEE=F 74,195 206,618
Over 3 years =F Y E 206,718 19,220

385,258 395,085
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B ISR I EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—FE-—F+_A=+—HILFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26. E 5 & H i /& W X EH @)

(Continued)

(@) Trade receivables from sales of household solar power @ REHEEFPAALRKEGHNEZIER
generation systems are due within 180 days from the date of HIBEFME B EEI80K AN F|HY o 3K
billing. Trade receivables from rendering smart energy services BIREESERREMNE S EKRR
are due within one year from the date of biling. Trade HEMAERSEE—FREE - KREH
receivables from sales of electricity are due within one month EFTINESEWNZEBELKEHH
from the date of billing. To measure the expected credit losses, #E— {I BAARRHE - At ETEHEER
trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit B - B5REKFEREEREZERR
risk characteristics and ageing. The allowance for trade s ﬂ&ﬁﬁhﬁﬁ‘ UotE R-ZEBE-—4F
receivables as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 was F—_EBE_TF+_A=+—"H EBH
determined as follows: JEWRIERBEEERT :

As at 31 December 2021 R-—EBE-—F+=-A=+—H
Past due
Sales of household Past due within 6 Past due
solar power generation Not yet within months to over
systems HEFRAXRERES past due 6 months 18 months 18 months Total
HmHe6E A e

BAREE BHeEAR Z181A 18EA L Hat
Individually assessed: 18 B 5T A -
Gross carrying amount IR A%

(RMB’000) (ARBFT) = = = 202,871 202,871
Loss allowance (RMB'000) /&5 18 # & (A R # T 7T) - - - (185,802)  (185,802)
Collectively assessed: HEFHE
Expected loss rate TEEEEX 0% 0% 5% N/ATEHR
Gross carrying amount R 4a%

(RMB’000) (AREF ) 3,644 20,364 410 - 24,418
Loss allowance (RMB'000) E#E#EBH(AREF L) - - (19) - (19)
Total loss allowance R R E A

(RMB’000) (AREF L) (185,821)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR B R AR BT o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

26. 55 & H it FE UK IE @)

(@)  (Continued) @ (&)
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZEF+=ZR=+—H
Past due
Sales of household Past due within 6 Past due
solar power generation Not yet within months to over
systems HEFAXREAES past due 6 months 18 months 18 months Total
m6E A m
MABH BmH6EAR 188 18EA ML Ht
Individually assessed!: 16 BY 71
Gross carrying amount R4
(RMB'000) (AEBEFT) — - 18,258 187,812 206,070
Loss allowance (RMB’000) 518 # & (AREE FT) = = = (187,076) (187,076)
Collectively assessed: A
Expected loss rate TRHIEE X 0% 0%  NATER  NATER
Gross carrying amount BR T 4858
(RMB'000) (AEBEFT) 47,804 284 - - 48,178
Loss allowance (RMB'000) E5#E##E (ARE T 1) = = - - -
Total loss allowance BERERR
(RMB’000) (AR F ) (187,076)

A total allowance for expected credit losses in trade receivables
amounting to RMB185,821,000 was recognised as at 31

December 2021 (31 December 2020: RMB187,076,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B ISR I EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 =T - —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26. B 5 [ H I F& R TE )

(Continued)
(@)  (Continued) @ (&)

As at 31 December 2021 R-—-E-_—==+-B=+—H

Past due Past due
Past due between between Past due
Rendering smart Not yet within 1yearand 2 yearsand over
energy services BREEERKRE past due 1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total

HAEH BE1FR 15ZE2F  25FE3F  3FULE st

Individually assessed: {5l sF 1% :
Gross carrying amount 8% [ 4258

(RMB'000) (AREFT) = 1,908 816 10,914 — 13638
Loss allowance E 18 # B
(RMB’000) (AR¥%F ) - (1,908) (816) (10,914) —  (13,638)

Collectively assessed: — #H#& A

Expected loss rate TEHi B 1E =& 0% 5% 9%  N/ATEA 16%
Gross carrying amount B [ 42 58

(RMB'000) (ARBFT) 208 230 16,029 - 200 16,667
Loss allowance EERE

(RMB’000) (ANREF ) — (11) (1,428) = (32) (1,471)
Total loss allowance BREEELE

(RMB’000) (AR¥%FTT) (15,109)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B IS R I EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2020

26. 55 & H it FE UK IE @)

@@ (&)

RZFEZZEF+_A=+—H

Past due Past due
Past due between between Past due
Rendering smart Not yet within 1yearand 2 yearsand over
energy services BREEERKRE past due 1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
g gt gt
MABE BHEIER 15ZE25 25F3F 3FNLE Ht
Individually assessed: {5l sF 1% :
Gross carrying amount 8% [ 4258
(RMB’000) (ARBETFT) 1,909 816 11,169 - - 13,894
Loss allowance a1
(RMB’000) (AR®ETT) - (816) (11,169) = - (11,989
Collectively assessed: A& A
Expected loss rate TEHi B 1E =& 0% 6% 11% 16% N/ATNiEF
Gross carrying amount B [ 42 58
(RMB'000) (ARBFT) 2,135 16,800 671 320 — 19,926
Loss allowance EiERE
(RMB’000) (ANREF ) = (931) (75) (51) = (1,057)
Total loss allowance BEEELEE
(RMB’000) (ANR®EF ) (13,042)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B RS R MY o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 =T - —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2021

26.

B 5K HMEWRKE @

@@ (&)

R-FB-_—-%+=-A=+—H

Past due Past due Past due
between between between
Past due 11 months 23 months 35 months  Past due
Sales of electricity HEE D Notyet  within 11 and 23 and and over
(non-government entities) (FEHFEE) past due months months 35months 47 months 47 months Total
BY BHNER BE22NBEA AHBMEA BH47
HABE 11EAR Z23f@ A Z3518A F4718R @AM L @t
Individually assessed: 51
Gross carrying amount REAE
(RMB'000) (ARETFT) 52 791 497 581 507 1,113 3,561
Loss allowance BERE
(RMB'000) (ARETFT) (52) (791) (497) (581) (527)  (1,113) (3,561)
Collectively assessed: HE T
Expected loss rate BHEEE 0% 0% 5% 9% 13% 16%
Gross carrying amount RHARE
(RMB’000) (ANR®&FTT) 1,100 6,354 4,861 7,286 1,098 95 20,794
Loss allowance BEEE
(RMB'000) (ARETFT) - = (222) (649) (140) 15) (1,026)
Total loss allowance BEEBLE
(RMB’000) (AR®TT) (4,587)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B IS R I EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2020

26. 55 & H it FE UK IE @)

@@ (&)

RZFEZZEF+_A=+—H

Past due Past due Past due
between between between
Past due 11 months 23 months 35 months  Past due
Sales of electricity HEE D Notyet  within 11 and 23 and and over
(non-government entities) (EBFEE) past due months months 35months 47 months 47 months Total
aE BH1ER BEH2BEA BHSMEA B 47
HABE 11EAR Z23f8A Z351A ZE478R @BANL st
Individually assessed: 51
Gross carrying amount REAE
(RMB’000) (ARETFT) 46 450 582 507 671 641 2917
Loss allowance (RMB'000) &1 5 {5
(AREBFT) - - (582) (527) (671) 641)  (2,421)
Collectively assessed: HE T
Expected loss rate BHEEE 0% 0% 6% 11% 16% 20%
Gross carrying amount RHARE
(RMB’000) (ANR®&FTT) 3,738 6,024 7,711 1,336 499 200 19,508
Loss allowance (RMB'000) &5 18 & &
(ARBFT) - - (440) (149) (80) (40) (709)
Total loss allowance BEEBLE
(RMB’000) (AREFT) (3,130)

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B ISR I EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—FE-—F+_A=+—HILFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26. B 5 [ H I F& R TE )
(Continued)
(@)  (Continued) @ (&)
As at 31 December 2021 R-B-_—F+=-—A=+—H
Past due Past due
Past due between between
Sales of electricity Past due between 23 months 35months  Past due
(tariff adjustment HEED Not yet within 11 months and and and over
receivables) (EEMEERTE) pastdue 11 months 23 months 35 months 47 months 47 months Total

g BHNMEA B#2sEA @AHBEA w47
HEAH NEAR Z23f8A Z35f A Z47f88 fEAML @t

Collectively assessed: A
Expected loss rate BHEEX 0% 0% 0.13% 0.31% 0.55% 0.82%
Gross carrying amount REATE
(RMB’000) (AREF) 2,17 30,738 30,416 31,225 6,589 1,570 103,309
Loss allowance (RMB'000)  [BERE (ARETT) - = (39) (96) (36) (13) (184)
Total loss allowance BREELES
(RMB'000) (NR¥FT) (184)
As at 31 December 2020 R-E-_EF+-_A=+—H
Past due Past due
Past due between between
Sales of electricity Past due between 23 months 35 months  Past due
(tariff adjustment HEED Not yet within 11 months and and and over
receivables) (EERMMERNE) pastdue 11 months 23 months 35 months 47 months 47 months Total
By  A¥NER RBHBMEA  BHBMEA afar
HAEE 1EAR ZBMEA Z35f8A Z47A f@ANLE E
Collectively assessed: AR
Expected loss rate BHEEX 0% 0% 0.05% 0.12% 0.24% 0.37%
Gross carrying amount EEE
(RMB’000) (AREFT) 299 30,401 31,900 16,779 4,359 852 84,590
Loss allowance (RMB'000  f#E#E & (ARB T ) = = (15) (20) (10) &) (48)
Total loss allowance EREEELEE
(RMB’000) (AR¥F ) (48)
(b) As at 31 December 2021, RMB69,800,000 (2020: (o) %72:—@—% —A=+—8" &k
RMB53,890,000) of trade receivables aged over one year —FU N ESEIRFIE ARK
represent tariff adjustment receivables, derived from the 69,800,00075 (—CE-_THE: AR
subsidies in respect of sales of electricity. Applying the 53,890,000 ) & & B #5 Bh /B L &
expected credit risk model result in loss allowance amounted B BEBZERAHEEE N &
to RMB184,000 recognised for tariff adjustment receivables as AEHCERRENENGEEH
at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB438,000). BEEWHRER _ZE-—F+—- A=

+— H R EE & B A K% 184,000
T(ZZEZFF : AR¥48,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B IS R I EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26. € 5 & H fth f& W 5XIE )
(Continued)
©)  Movement in the loss allowance of trade and other receivables © EBESRHEMEKWFREEGEERENE
is as follows: ER NN
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AR¥TT

Opening balance B ) 45 85 203,853 187,467
Increase in loss allowance B R B g N
— Trade receivables — B S EWHIAE 2,405 15,829
— Other receivables — E b fE Y FRIR = 557
Written off as uncollectible 4 5% 15 [o] 1 #f 88
— Trade receivables — B 5 EWHIEA = =
— Other receivables — Efb fE W KIA = —
Closing balance HA R 45 4 206,258 203,853
(d)  The Group’s trade and other receivables were denominated in d ANEBZEHNKEHMEWRZKIETZ
the following currencies: B E
2021 2020
—E-—F —EZEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBTT

HKS BT 26 425
RMB AR 213,378 257,774

213,404 258,199
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the carrying amounts of NR—E-—FER_FET_FTF+_H4
trade and other receivables approximated their fair values. =t+t—H B RHEMEKFIEDNE

HEEREAFERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B ISR I EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 =T - —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

27. RESTRICTED CASH 27. ZRREIB &
RZEBE-_—F+_A=+—8 K"EHHEH
BXZREIIE S ARA18,341,0000( = F
—EHF: AR¥139,0007T) 0 X EHEBIE
7 2 8] 50 B 2R A BT AT 7 B AR B 3 0 IR K AT
MR AEBARRBERFERE
BAZBEBRTES - WZRHBSET
ERARBNEERET AERREBME

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s restricted cash amounted to
RMB18,341,000 (2020: RMB139,000), mainly representing the
deposits made in accordance with the terms of loan agreements
between the Group and the lender, whereby the Group is required to
deposit the entire loan proceeds into restricted bank accounts. The
restricted cash can only be used to finance the development of
designated public infrastructure construction business.

28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 28. REREEEEY
2021 2020
—E- & —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Cash at bank RITFER 222319 155,354
Cash on hand BERR% 1 92
222,320 155,446

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the
following currencies:

AEENRSRBESFEMUTIEE

5HA

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE T AREFIT

uss$ ET 3 4
HKS$ BT 40,052 87,087
RMB AR 182,265 68,355
222,320 155,446
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

29. R A K fwt &

(@) Share capital (@) B
Authorised and issued share capital: EENRBEBITRA:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
No. of
shares Amount No. of shares Amount
BRBER €8 B 10 2x B |
’000 HK$’000 ’000 HK$'000
T FTHER T FAT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each & % [ (B 0.01 7 7T #) & A% 2,000,000 20,000 2,000,000 20,000

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:

HER CBITHEHE:

2021 2020
—ECZ-F —E-THE
No. of RMB No. of RMB
shares Amount equivalent shares Amount equivalent
BRBEE £ SHEARY Rt 2B eE FEARE
’000 HK$'000 RMB’000 ’000 HK$'000 RMB’000
TR TERL AR¥TrR Fi& THET ARETR
At1Januaryand HR—A—HBEK
31 December +-A=+—H 1,484,604 14,846 12,255 1,484,604 14,846 12,255
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & & —

29. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(b) Reserves

(i)

Share premium

The excess of the issued price net of any issuance
expenses over the par value of the shares issued has
been credited to share premium of the Company.

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in share premium are distributable to
the shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

Statutory reserve

The PRC statutory reserve were established in
accordance with the relevant rules and regulations of the
PRC and the articles of association of the companies
within the Group. The companies in the PRC are
required to transfer certain proportion of their net profit
(after offsetting prior-year losses) to general statutory
reserve. For the year ended 31 December 2021,
RMB1,406,000 was credited to statutory reserve (2020:
RMB3,224,000).

General statutory reserve can be used to reduce prior-
year losses, if any, and may be converted into paid-in/
share capital by issuing new shares to shareholders
proportionate to their existing percentage of equity
interests provided that the balance after such issue is
not less than 25% of the registered capital. General
statutory reserve is non-distributable other than in
liquidation.

R e M ERRK
2o -—F+-A=t+-RALEE

29. R A K &% 8 @
(b) f#E

(i)

i% =B

MBREMBETR % 178
BEEBTROAENT S E
FTARR B MR @ AE o

REREFE RRE(KEE
) BOEERHNESANIK
FADAKRR  HERERS
EKEBBE ARABAFER
—REBHBRETIHNER -

EE B
AEBEREBESREBEAEER
EHRARAKREEE TR AIMNA
BERAAR TP BEEE R
HeRBERNQRERS T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE M ISR M AT

w9

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &£ — =

F+-A=+—HIFE

30. BORROWINGS 30. & &
2021 2020
—E-—F —TFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
Secured bank borrowings BERRITEE
Pledged and guaranteed borrowings (a) BERKEEREE@Q) 211,000 235,400
Current J=1p:}
Pledged and guaranteed borrowings BEENEREE 24,700 24,400
Non-current FERIEE
Pledged and guaranteed borrowings BERNMEREE 186,300 211,000

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group’s borrowings were

repayable as follows:

TR FR-EEF+_A=+—

B AEEEEEEEWT :

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARBT T

Within 1 year R—ER 24,700 24,400
Between 1 and 2 years —FEWF 25,800 24,700
Between 2 and 5 years FERF 84,200 81,000
Over 5 years HEFELE 76,300 105,300
211,000 235,400

(@  As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s borrowings amounting
to RMB211,000,000 (2020: RMB235,400,000), with interest
rates ranging from 5.39% to 5.63% (2020: 5.23% to 5.46%)
per annum, were jointly guaranteed by the controlling
shareholder, his spouse and a company controlled by the

controlling shareholder. Property, plant and equipment of solar

power plants of the Group with carrying amount of
RMB266,055,000 (2020: RMB285,107,000) and the collection
rights of trade receivables derived from the solar power plants
were pledged as security for these borrowings (Note 14(b) and

26).
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30.

31.

32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B ISR I EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 =T - —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

BORROWINGS (Continued) 30. ﬁ% E (#8)
(b)  As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group’s borrowings by R-ZEBE-_—4FEK-_ZFT-_ZFTF+_-A
were all denominated in RMB. =+—HB FAEEBEE2BAARE
FTH1E ©
(¢) As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the carrying amounts of 00 RZBE-_—Fk-_ZFT_ZFTF+_A
the Group’s bank borrowings were not materially different from =+—HB BRFERZFLTIEHE -
their fair values as the interest rates were close to the market AEBEBETEEMNERMEHEEQAFE
rates. BIWMEAER-
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES M. EZFRHEMEMRE
2021 2020
—E-— T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE TR ARET T
Trade payables B 5 IR 23,557 32,917
Accruals and other payables FEETE R K& E b FE - 3R IB 41,326 36,002
64,883 68,919

Ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice date is as follows:

ERNBERAHNEZERNRENRE SN

I
2021 2020
—EBEC-—F —EBE-THE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T
Within 1 year —FHUA 11,976 19,810
Over 1 year —E A F 11,581 13,107
23,557 32,917

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group’s trade and other
payables were all denominated in RMB and the carrying amounts

approximated their fair values.

DIVIDENDS

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Company
did not declare any dividends to the shareholders of the Company.

R_E——FR_ZFT_ZTF+_A=+—
B AEENZESREMEMNZEBBHUA

R (e BEEERAATEEE -

32. kB

IRAERAS e

BE-_T-_—FR-_ZT-_ZFTF+=-A=+
—BALEFE ARQAYERARARREES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re IR M
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

33. CASH FLOW INFORMATION B.HEREEH
(@) Cash generated from operations (@) REMBRE
2021 2020
—EZ-F —T-TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt & ARBTR ARBTF T
Profit before income tax B BT 15 &4 A i A 8,835 983
Adjustments for: KAELTIER
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME BENRETE 14 27,439 29,680
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEHEEETE 15 3,659 3,630
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets FREEERERE 15 80 -
Amortisation of intangible assets B A 16 2,074 2,624
Impairment loss of intangible assets B EERERE 16 - 138
Reversal of inventories write down FEMARD 25 (976) (904)
Impairment loss of contract assets BHEERERE 18 - 882
Impairment losses of trade and other receivables & 5 & H b i Y 5 I8 7 &
B 26 2,405 16,386
Reversal of impairment losses of financial assets at 1% # 44 5k < 5+ 8 69 4 &
amortised cost EEREBBED 23 (8,140) (13,992)
Impairment losses of property, plant and equipment ¥ % - lE R X EREEER 14 11,642 5,723
Net fair value gains on financial assets at fair value 2 A F B+ & B H %
through profit or loss STABENEREE
NTEEREFE 10 (700) (2,07)
Net losses on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BEKLE
equipment BiREE 10 = 55
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries & W B 2 ) Ak ss 10 (748) -
Deferred income from government grants R B BT 4 BG BYIE T Y A (107) (106)
Equity settled share-based payment (reversal) R EE UM AR
X (B E) 7(0) = (12,879)
Finance expenses, net AT 6,290 15,507
Share of net (profit)/loss of associates accounted £ F3 # 25 54 A BR /Y Bt &
for using the equity method NAEY (FEF) /B
h%a (2,457) 17,248
Foreign exchange losses IE 8B 486 819
Changes in working capital: EEEXRE:
Increase in inventories FE®mn (866) (19,332
(Increase)/decrease in contract assets BREEGEM,/ R (6,459) 223,321
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables & 5 K H # & i 718
w8 n) 35,174 (103,301)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables & 5 K& H #f & [+ 5718
O ),/ 3 (2,082) 18,859
Increase in contract liabilities AR EEEM 2,298 10,930
Cash generated from operations KEMBHRE 77,847 194,240
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B ISR I EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 =T - —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

33. CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Net debt reconciliation

B.EHEREEH @

(b) BEHFEH K

2021 2020

—E-— TE T

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE TR AREF T

Cash and cash equivalents HeRESEEY 222,320 155,446
Restricted cash SR 3R & 18,341 139
Borrowings — repayable within one year BE-—MNR—FHNEE (24,700) (24,400)
Borrowings — repayable after one year BE —RN—FEEE (186,300) (211,000)
Lease liabilities HEBE (12,737) (11,939)
Net cash/(debt) Be (B F5E 16,924 (91,754)
Cash and cash equivalents HeRESZEEY 222,320 155,446
Restricted cash PR IR & 18,341 139
Gross debt — fixed interest rates EfeEE — EE R (12,737) (11,939)
Gross debt — variable interest rates BI5ia% — ZEF =X (211,000) (235,400)
Net cash/(debt) Re,/ (EK)FE 16,924 (91,754)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re IR M
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

33. CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 3BBHEREER @
(b) Net debt reconciliation (continued) (b) EREFEHR@®
Liabilities from financing activities
REMEEZDNAE
Borrowings  Borrowings Amount due
due within due after to related Lease

1 year 1 year parties liabilities Total
—FR —F% EABE®S

IBNEE FBNREE RE HEAE @st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT AR®TRT ARETT ARETR

Balance asat1January 2020  WR-B-BE—B—A&H (2990000  (235,400) (745) (15144  (550,289)
Cash flows RenE
Funds paid YHES 299,000 — 172 3,117 302,289
Funds received W E & - — (2,037) — (2,037)
Interest paid FAFE 20,515 - - 732 21,247
Non-cash changes FBEEH
Interest expense MERL (20,515) — — (732) (21,247)
Foreign exchange adjustments &A% - - ) 90 88
Other non-cash movements HiEREE (24,400) 24,400 = ©) ©)

Balance as at 31 December2020 R=-ZE=-ZEF+=-A=+-—H

and 1 January 2021 R—E-_—-5—-HF-H&#H (24,400) (211,000) (2,612) (11,939) (249,951)
Cash flows Rene

Funds paid XRES 24,400 - 3,952 1,874 30,226

Funds received WEE & - - (2,355) - (2,355)

Interest paid FAFE 12,592 = = 726 13,318
Non-cash changes FHe#

Interest expense MEFL (12,592) - - (726) (13,318)
Foreign exchange adjustments fE R AR - - 165 22 187
Other non-cash movements HiEH 4 & (24,700) 24,700 — (2,694) (2,694)
Balance as at R-ZB-_-%+-A=+-H

31 December 2021 g3 (24,700) (186,300) (850) (12,737) (224,587)

34. COMMITMENTS 34, & IE
(@) Investment commitments (2 BEAE

Commitments in respect of associates are disclosed in Note £ B 2 X A) AR B8 A9 R HE Y B 5E20(d)
20(d). B 5E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar B B 15 R MY A
To—Ft+t-A=t+-BLEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & & —

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Transactions with related parties

35. BB IS
() EEEBENRS

2021 2020
—E-— TE T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREF T
Funds received from parent company HEARESES = 2,037
Funds received from companies controlled ?ﬁéq“ AR IR RSl & A
by the controlling shareholder B5EL 5,652 3,255
Funds received from companies controlled e $ NAEl—BHITESES
by an executive Director of the Company MARNEES 3,995 1,986
Funds repaid to parent company EEEETER (1,872) -
Funds repaid to companies controlled BEESTAR
by an executive Director of the Company —RYITES E G LEOPANGT! (2,080) (172)
Loans (repayment received from)/provided m&AE (WEES)
to parent companies SIREE K = (2,339
Loans (repayment received from)/provided ) 422 i B %? illoked /NG
to a company controlled by the controlling (WEER) IRIEER
shareholder (2,334) (28,700)
Loans (repayment received from)/provided MARE —BRITEFES
to a company controlled by an executive W— AR (WEERE)
Director of the Company RBHEHEX (1,386) (1,551)
Interest from loans to parent companies M & AR EBERA
W ER /9 F1) 2 = 70
Interest from loans to a company controlled Fﬂ % A% Hxﬁ% i ) — [
by the controlling shareholder N BB UE R AT U ER A
A2 89 1,249
Interest from loans to a company controlled MARB —ZBHITEEZEH
by an executive Director of the Company B — A a3 W E Z T
HR &9 A2 716 1,158
Sales of goods or rendering services HEEmIRERS 10,228 12,445
Purchases of goods or receiving services BEERIEXRE 2,355 80
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re IR M
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3B.BELERZ @
(Continued)
(a) Transactions with related parties (Continued) () HEABAINXSZ @
Sales and purchases of goods and services were made on HEERMIEERBXBEEER R
normal commercial terms, conditions and market rates. BEXREE—MREEER EERT

HERETT -

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s borrowings amounting R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H &&E
to RMB211,000,000 (2020: RMB235,400,000) were jointly BB A R#211,000,000T (= =
guaranteed by the controlling shareholder, his spouse and a T A R #235,400,0007T) M 5 A%
company controlled by the controlling shareholder (Note 30(a)). A% BR ~ H DB LA K — ) Pl R AR AR B A

1 B 22 B K E 42 AR (KT £ 30(0)) °

(b) Key management personnel compensation b) TEEHEE A S FH N
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, REBFEEEEAENTMN(BE
including amounts paid to Directors, is as follows: XNFESHRBE)OF :

2021 2020
—E-——F —E T4
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETTT

Wages, salaries and allowances IE - Hre RER 2,481 1,667

Post-employment benefit and other welfare RRAE F) B B Ath A8 A B 2
expenses 540 294
3,021 1,961
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B ISR I EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 =T - —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

35. BEE A R Z @)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties

(c) EEEEHE TS B RBEGEER

2021 2020
—EBE-—F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T T
Amounts due from: EWRERE :
Companies controlled by the controlling 2 % B B AR I B9 A A
Shareholder 8,973 7,801
Companies controlled by an executive RRAB—BMITES
Director of the Company 2 Eof/NG] 8,609 15,300
An associate —E B & R A 15,296 16,029
32,878 39,130
Amounts due to: BRRERE
Parent company NG — 2,037
Companies controllied by the controlling 2% R AR BR 2 il 8 2 A
Shareholder 489 489
Companies controlled by an executive KRR —BHITES
Director of the Company =5 H) A A 361 86
850 2,612
Loans to: RHERT:
A company controlled by the controlling 2= iR R B 2 ) A
shareholder (i) — [ 2 Al) - 1,804
A company controlled by an executive KRR —BHITES
Director of the Company (i) P25 ) — R A Al() 10,581 11,230
10,581 13,034
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re IR M
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties
(Continued)

(0

(i)

The Company entered into a revolving loan agreement
with Longjitaihe Group Limited (“Longjitaihe Group
Limited”, [EEFMEBEBGRAFR]) (formerly known as
“Longjitaihe Industrial Co., Limited”, BEEZME XA
727\]), a company controlled by the controlling
Shareholder, on 13 June 2018, pursuant to which the
Company and its subsidiary had provided revolving
loans in a maximum principal amount of up to
RMB110,000,000 to Longjitaihe Group Limited, the
Company’s parent companies, and a company
controlled by the executive Director of the Company for
the period from 13 June 2018 to 12 June 2019, with an
interest rate of 9% per annum.

On 12 June 2020, the Company and Longjitaihe Group
Limited renewed the revolving loan agreement for the
period from 13 June 2020 to 12 June 2021, with the
maximum principal amount adjusted to RMB18,000,000.

On 18 June 2021, the Company and Longjitaihe Group
Limited renewed the revolving loan agreement for the
period from 18 June 2021 to 18 June 2022, with the
maximum principal amount adjusted to RMB11,000,000.

Other amounts due from and due to related parties were
interest-free, unsecured and with no fixed terms of
repayments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B ISR I EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 =T - —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 36. QA Z B RN R & &#
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE HEEH

COMPANY
(@) Statement of financial position of the (@) A2 7 zHBEMRRE
Company
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T
Assets 5E
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- BE RZ 63 105
Right-of-use assets EREEE 30 1,207
Intangible assets B\ A E = 3
Investments in subsidiaries RBRARHNEZE 342 342
Loans to subsidiaries REERTHEBE AT 1,017,547 967,153
1,017,982 968,810
Current assets REEE
Other receivables o {th fE W SR8 35 467
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BRATFEFEEHE
SFABERNEREE - 46,099
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 14,248 53,167
14,283 99,733
Total assets EERE 1,032,265 1,068,543
Equity and Liabilities ERRkEE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AATIEZEAELER
Share capital A% 7 12,255 12,255
Reserves (b) 1 % () 1,066,391 1,094,823
Accumulated losses (b) REHE 8 (b) (46,667) (40,418)
Total equity AR 1,031,979 1,066,660
Liabilities 8E&
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HEaR 18 21
Total non-current liabilities IREBEELTE 18 21
Current liabilities RBAE
Other payables H A eI 5RIB 253 654
Lease liabilities HMEE®E 15 1,208
Total current liabilities REBEEEE 268 1,862
Total liabilities BEHE 286 1,883
Total equity and liabilities ERLEEAEH 1,032,265 1,068,543
The statement of financial position of the Company was KRB ZHBRARR=_ZT ==
approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2022 and —A-t+hBEESESHE TAHT
was signed on its behalf NEEREKESE
Wei Qiang Wei Shaojun
A BOE
Director Director
= -

BEEZNESRRERARAA FH 2021 187



188

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR B R AR BT o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 =T = —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 36. QA Z B RN R & &#
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE B2 E @
COM PANY (Continued)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) XAFREES
Accumulated
Reserves losses
& 2itEE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTTT ARBET T

At 1 January 2020

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Equity-settled share-based transactions

R-—ZE-_ZTF—H—H 1,177,593 (46,550)
F N F — 6,132
Hib2EKA (69,891) =
EREZEEUBRO IR S (12,879) =

At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021

RZFEZZEF+_A=+—HEK

—E-—4%—HF—H 1,094,823 (40,418)
Loss for the year FANEE = (6,249)
Other comprehensive income Hibh2EKA (28,432) -
At 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H 1,066,391 (46,667)

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B ISR I EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 =T - —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

37. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 7. EZE /AN ES
DIRECTORS
The remuneration of Directors of the Company for the years ended Bz - FR-_E-_TF+-_H=+
31 December 2021 and 2020 is set out as follows: —BIEFERRAREZTHHFHAT :

Year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z--S+-A=+-HLH¥E
Other
emoluments paid
or receivable in
respect of
Director’s other
services in
connection with
the management
Employer's  of the affairs of
contributiontoa the Company or

retirement its subsidiary
Name i Fees Salary  benefit scheme  undertaking (c) Total
RESRM
BHEERDNT
REMEAF
EBMEMLRYE
RANBERFE mEARERH
e £ ZEEMHK Hiti# £ (c) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARB TR AR TR AR TR ARBTR ARBTR

Chairman TE

Mr. Wei Qiang BT e - 249 12 = 261
Executive Director HBTER

Mr. Liu Zhengang (o) 214 B %% 4 (o) - = = = -
Non-executive Director FHTES

Mr. Wei Shaojun ROEEE = - - - -

Independent non-executive BUFHTES

Directors
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John BEAEL 208 — - - 208
Dr. Han Qinchun BEEE T 208 - — — 208
Mr. Han Xiaoping BETEL 208 = — - 208

624 249 12 - 885
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR B R AR BT o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £ =& =

—F+ZA=+—HILFE

37. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DlRECTORS (Continued)

7. EE 2 E/AN R ER @

Year ended 31 December 2020

BE_Z-ZF+-_A=+-HLLEFE

Other
emoluments paid
or receivable in
respect of
Director’s other
services in
connection with
the management

Employer’s of the affairs of
contributiontoa  the Company or
retirement its subsidiary
Name ek Fees Salary  benefit scheme undertaking (c) Total
HESRE
BRERADA
KHMBAR
FBMEMRYE
BRABHEE MENIERD
we ) ZEEHK HAiM £ () st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARET T ARETT ARBTFT ARMT T
Chairman TE
Mr. Wei Qiang M EAE - 267 13 = 280
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping () REFHRAE(Q - 1,556 12 - 1,568
Mr. Liu Zhengang (b) S4B 5% 4 (o) - — - _ _
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Wei Shaojun BOBEELE - - - - -
Independent non-executive BIFHTES
Directors
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John BEARELE 220 - - - 220
Dr. Han Qinchun BEEE L 220 — _ _ 220
Mr. Han Xiaoping BETLAE 220 - - - 220
660 1,823 25 - 2,508

Notes:

(a) Mr. Yuen Chi Ping has resigned from the Board from 16 September 2020.

(b) Mr. Liu Zhengang has resigned from the Board from 29 January 2021.

(c) These represent the fair value of share options granted to the Directors
under the Company’s share option scheme and recognised as equity-
settled share-based payment expense for the respective years. The value of
these share options was measured according to the Group’s accounting
policies for share-based payment transactions as set out in Note 2.20,
including adjustments to reverse accrued in previous periods where grants
of equity instruments are forfeited prior to the vesting date. The principal

terms and the number of options granted are disclosed in Note 7(b).
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37.

38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B RS R MY o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 =T - —F +-_A=+—HIEFE

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DlRECTORS (Continued)

No Directors of the Company waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the current and previous financial years. During
the current and previous financial years, there were also no amounts
paid or payable by the Group to the Directors or any of the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

APPROVAL FOR CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of Directors on 29 March 2022.

37.

38.

EEZEMNRER@®

RAFBFERLE-MBRFE  ARAE
EMERARUAFAERETAHH - R AH
BERE E—FRFEARN - NEE T EE
MREEEEFIRAMNEEHFALEMT A
XNHENERKE ER/MARKEK
MAREEFENFE  RIE/KREBA
e -

HESRE M B RE

RAVBRIAN_-_ZE-__F=A-+1H
REEGHERKETE-
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
R

A summary of consolidated results and assets, liabilities and equity of the AEERBFRAEATBRFENGEEEEUALRE

Group for the last five financial years is set out below: E -BERERBEEHINWT :
CONSOLIDATED RESULTS RE¥EE
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

—F—tF —T-)N\F —T-NF —T_TF =ZB--F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARBTIT ARBTRE AR®BTT AR¥TR

Revenue & 897,902 708,493 147,460 396,413 462,642
Income tax (expense)/credit  FriSH: (FAs2) /W 28 (22,328) (10,386) 64,454 (2,240) (38,873)
Profit/(loss) for the year FRE T (EE) 135,488 108,501 (261,414) (1,257) (30,038)
Attributable to: LA A -

Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZFEWN 135,197 107,720 (264,522) 1,064 (28,221)
Non-controlling interests I 12 AR 7 = 291 781 3,108 (2,321) (1,817)

(EXQ)BIISI%LIDATED ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND mEEE BAERER

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—E—+F ZTE-N\F ZT—NEF ZETF ZEB-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFTT AR®TT ARBTT AR®TR

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE 547,537 799,002 926,511 810,420 770,991
Current assets EEE 1,404,387 1,370,646 925,343 743,960 728,627
Total assets BEBE 1,951,924 2,169,648 1,851,854 1,554,380 1,499,618
LIABILITIES =i
Non-current liabilities EmEBAE 662,352 549,077 261,586 233,876 211,330
Current liabilities mEBE 514,771 140,622 365,175 118,588 116,697
Total liabilities BEEE 1,177,123 689,699 626,761 352,464 328,027
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners 2 7l A A FE(L

of the Company R 773,587 1,473,790 1,215,786 1,194,930 1,166,499
Non-controlling interests FE 5 AR 7 = 1,214 6,159 9,307 6,986 5,092
Total equity WS B 774,801 1,479,949 1,225,093 1,201,916 1,171,591
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